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Financial Highlights
MBEE

Percentage
Change
2019 2018 - EIER
(Approximately) (Approximately) (Approximately)
(#4) (8E49) (BE49)
Revenue (RMB milion) WA NRBEET) 4,041.3 46157 (12.4%
Adjusted gross profit margin (Nots) ICRBERE 52) 20.7% 15.4% 5.3%
Consolidated net profit (RMB milion) AUFFBAREBET) 89.8 88.2 1.8%
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 2872 1A% 3 E & i F
of the Company (RMB million) (ANREBET) 89.8 79.1 13.5%
Net cash generated from operating REEBEE TR
activities (RMB milion) (AR%BET) 129.9 98.2 32.3%
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREERF(ARER)
(RVB cents) 145 127 14.2%
Proposed final dividend per share BEBRARERE (&L)
(HKD cents) NIL NIL
Note: Adjusted gross profit margin represents gross profit after impairment Hiat - SHEBERNEINTENELERE S
losses for trade receivables and contract assets. BRFREREEZ RBEEXEZE
=
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Corporate Culture & Mission

¥R fEaw

OPERATION PHILOSOPHY
Technology leads markets
Services create value

ENTERPRISE MOTTO

To do things honestly

To treat people sincerely

To understand causes and results
To unify theory and practice

CORPORATE MISSION
For the country

For the customers

For the employees

For the shareholders

MANAGEMENT CONCEPTS
Sustainable Development
Circular Improvement

Statistics Analysis

Continuous Improvement

PRODUCT CONCEPTS
Service

Quality

Cost

WEALTH CONCEPTS
Wealth means responsibility

TALENT CONCEPTS
Judging people on his performance
Talent comes first

MARKETING CONCEPTS

|dentify the needs of the customers
Create value for the customers
Provide best services to the customers

CULTURE CONCEPTS
Respect

Communicate
Understand

Integrate

Pursue

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES
Independent Brand

Independent Intellectual Property
Independent Marketing Network
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“Winter will eventually pass and spring is sure to come.”

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Yuanda China”), | hereby present
to you the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

The eventful year of 2019 finally came to an end after a series of
major events, including the celebration of the 70th anniversary of
the founding of the People’s Republic of China, Sino-US trade
dispute and Brexit negotiations. In 2019, the macroeconomic
environment remained complicated and the industry competitions
became increasingly intense with lots of uncertainties in the external
operating environment. All the staff strived to improve management
capability and operation efficiency, which helped the Company
maintain a steady business scale. The management has also laid a
solid foundation for the Company’s sustainable development in the
future by reviewing various internal control systems and improving
management level.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company increased by about RMB10.7
million or about 13.5% as compared with last year to about
RMB89.8 million (2018: about RMB79.1 million). The improvement
was mainly attributable to the strict control of contract quality and
the effective contract budget management implemented by the
Group during the Reporting Period, which resulted in an increase of
gross profit margin from the Group’s construction projects.

Chairman’s Statement
EEHmE

RE—ELXFTIER - RE—EEFX
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B SR
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AADEREWBRAR (KB AEH]
S EATEDEF(EE)S([EE
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%:o
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BMEEBEZ - INPEEREZERES
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ey E) ]
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”) has caused a short-term impact on
various industries. Past experiences here and elsewhere show
that there should be a rebound once a public health threat is over.
The negative effect also will not extend to a second year. Despite
these difficulties, the Company remains confident in the long-term
development given the loose monetary and fiscal policies adopted
by global governments. The Company will carefully address the
current situation of COVID-19 outbreak to reduce the risks relating
to business operations and continue to adopt precautionary
measures to protect the safety of all the staff members and working
partners as necessary.

Kang Baohua
Chairman

24 April 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall performance

In 2019, amid complicated macroeconomic environment, the
industry competitions became increasingly intense with lots of
uncertainties in the external operating environment. The domestic
growth of investment in non-residential commercial real estate
remained low while the floors pace of buildings started in 2019
remained steady. The Group removed redundant structures and
links from organizations and enhanced the efficiency laying a solid
foundation to counter downward pressure.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company increased by about RMB10.7
million or about 13.5% as compared with last year to about
RMB89.8 million (2018: about RMB79.1 million). The improvement
was mainly attributable to the strict control of contract quality and
the effective contract budget management implemented by the
Group during the Reporting Period, which resulted in an increase of
gross profit margin from the Group’s construction projects.

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT)

During the year 2019, the aggregate amount of newly-awarded
projects of the Group increased by about RMB42.5 million or about
0.9% as compared with last year to about RMB4,626.8 million
(2018: about RMB4,584.3 million).

BEEENWR DT

E 3 0]
A

2019%F » RBIEER IR ER - 175
BEBRIMNBRERFEZRHSTENT
HEM - BAFETHEFMEMER
BIRRFBEER - AM2019FEHFHL
REMBRDRET PR - AREBHAER
RiE - ERESNE  REHEETT
[EB2T TEREERE o

EHZE2019F 128318 » KR RIHEEN
BRHARES.8EHEIT (20184  #IA
RE791B8T)  REFHEMH AR
10.7B BT H18.6%  TBREEAE
EEENHERESNEREIEZERTRE
RAERNBEERE  FEAEEITRE
BEEMELH -

FrEZ TR (BEEER)

20194 » REERF&AE TIEAENA
R#4,626.8B &L (20184F : HHAREE
4,584.3HE L) REFEMHARE
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BRTEERARAR | ZZ—JURER

9



10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Newly-awarded projects (including VAT) (continueq)

EBEIE(E

g T2 (B 21BER) (8)

2019 2018

Number of Number of
projects RMB million projects RMB million
HEHE ARKEE HE#E ARBEHE
Domestic B 33 1,213.5 25 1,659.9
Overseas p=Zd 27 3,413.3 17 2,924.4
Total &5t 60 4,626.8 42 4,584.3

Details of certain landmark projects obtained by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Project name

HE&H

Pacific Park, the U.S.A.

AR FFRE

Uniber tower, Italy
BAAMERBERE

Shenyang Fuli IFC, PRC
&S E NIFC

Xinghai International, PRC

BB

Fengtai Science and Technology Park, PRC
L AR E3s#

Mingzhu Square, Dianchi Lake, PRC
ERREMBAIRES

Shanghai Fuli, PRC

EBEH

Guiyang Hengfeng, PRC

gHEYg

Hangzhou Fuli, PRC

MINE H

Shangdiyuan of Zhongguancun, PRC
REAR i

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019
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HE ARER

Communal facilities
N
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Communal facilities
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Office building
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Office building
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Office building
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Communal facilities
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Backlog

As at 31 December 2019, the remaining contract value of backlog
of the Group decreased by about RMB1,030.2 million or about
7.4% as compared with last year to about RMB12,927.6 million (31
December 2018: about RMB13,957.9 million), which could support
a sustainable development of the Group for the next 2-3 years.

BEEENWR DT

EBEIRE(E
AEIAR

M2019F12A31H * AEBMAZT LA
BEeENARKE12,027.6 A& T (20184
128318 : HHARK13,957.98&7T) -
BEFEROHARE,030.38 BT84
7.4% - BRAAREBRKR2-3FHEER
HENZE -

2019 2018
Remaining value of contracts Remaining value of contracts
SR TEE SRHTEE
Number of Number of

projects RMB million projects RMB million

HAYE ARBEE HEHE ARBEE
Domestic A 218 4,682.0 292 5,428.9
Overseas sEIN 85 8,245.6 87 8,529.0
Total a5t 303 12,927.6 379 13,957.9
Major technology achievements and awards FERMIAR R AR 11T

In 2019, the Group obtained 31 patents for utility model.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Against the backdrop of uncertainties relating to COVID-19
outbreak, oil price plunge, political and economic risks, the
Group maintains prudent but optimistic towards its business. The
construction of domestic projects have been resumed in certain
cities after suspension during the Chinese New Year which means
the epidemic impact is not expected to have a long-term overall
impact. The Group will adhere to prudent financial management
in project selection and cost control for future sustainable
development.

2019 + REEMEEBFHA EF31
I o

EBRE

M EEOF VT IREZIHA - AhE
RBEER ~ BUR A S A8 7 L & B EY T
E - AEEHAREBREEELE
MREE - TR A BERA T HIEA
BEEHMEIZREOEREL  ATAR
BRORETERBERFE - AREKR
T B HUE M ARKAES T m B ESEENY
BEER  BREFHNFEER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Company aims to increase shareholder value through
sustainable revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow
generation. In order to achieve this objective, the Group uses the
following indicators to measure business performance:

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue of the
Group decreased by about RMB574.4 million or about 12.4% as
compared with last year to about RMB4,041.3 million (2018: about
RMB4,615.7 million). Among which:

1. the revenue from domestic market of the Group decreased
by about RMB544.0 million or about 24.2% as compared
with last year to about RMB1,703.6 million (2018: about
RMB2,247.6 million), contributing approximately 42.2% of
the total revenue of the Group. The decline was due to the
revenue shrank in most of the sales regions of China except
for West China; and

2. therevenue from overseas market of the Group decreased by
about RMB30.5 million or about 1.3% as compared with last
year to about RMB2,337.6 million (2018: about RMB2,368.1
million), contributing approximately 57.8% of the total revenue
of the Group, which was due to the combined effect of
decreasing revenue for contract modifications from United
Kingdom and increasing revenue from Middle East.

Cost of sales

In 2019, the cost of sales of the Group decreased by about
RMB664.8 million or about 17.9% as compared with last year to
about RMB3,049.9 million (2018: about RMB3,714.7 million). Cost
of sales decreased as a result of the corresponding decrease in
revenue during the year ended 31 December 2019.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Adjusted gross profit margin

In 2019, the adjusted gross profit margin of the Group increased by
about 5.3% to 20.7% (2018: about 15.4%). The main reason was
due to the growth in both domestic and overseas adjusted gross
profit margin of the Group. Among which:

1. the domestic adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
increased by about 6.3% as compared with last year to about
22.4% (2018: about 16.1%); and

2. the overseas adjusted gross profit margin of the Group
increased by about 4.6% as compared with last year to about
19.4% (2018: about 14.8%).

Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue generated from
the five largest customers of the Group accounted for an amount
of less than 30% of the total operating revenues of the Group. The
five largest customers were not connected to the Company in any
way. None of the Directors, senior management, key technical
personnel, shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares, de
facto controller and other connected parties of the Company had
any direct or indirect interest in any of the aforesaid five largest
customers. None of the Directors of the Company or their close
associates or, to the knowledge of the Board of Directors, any of
the shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares of the Company
had any interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for an amount of less than
30% of the total annual purchases of the Group. The five largest
suppliers were not connected to the Company in any way. None
of the Directors, senior management, key technical personnel,
shareholders holding 5% or more of the shares, de facto controller
and other connected parties of the Company had any direct or
indirect interest in any of the aforesaid five largest suppliers.

BEEENWR DT

BRI (A2
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other income

Other income of the Group primarily comprised of government
grants, rental revenue from investment properties and operating
leases, net income from provision of repairs and maintenance
services and net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
land use rights and assets classified as held for sale.

In 2019, the other income of the Group decreased by about
RMB51.3 million or about 29.7% as compared with last year to
about RMB121.4 million (2018: about RMB 172.7 million). The
decrease in the Group’s other income was mainly due to the
decline in net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
land use rights and assets classified as held for sale during the
Reporting Period.

Selling expenses

In 2019, the selling expenses of the Group decreased by about
RMB4.6 million or about 5.0% as compared with last year to about
RMB86.5 million (2018: about RMB91.1 million), accounted for
approximately 2.1% of the operating revenue of the Group (2018:
2.0%), which was due to the effect from improvement of working
efficiency and headcount optimization policy.

Administrative expenses

In 2019, the administrative expenses of the Group decreased
by about RMB34.2 million or about 6.0% as compared with last
year to about RMB531.7 million (2018: about RMB565.9 million),
accounted for approximately 13.2% of the operating revenue
of the Group (2018: 12.3%), which was due to the effect from
improvement of working efficiency and headcount optimization

policy.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Finance costs

In 2019, the finance costs of the Group increased by about
RMB73.7 million or about 107.1% as compared with last year to
about RMB142.5 million (2018: about RMB68.8 million), accounted
for about 3.5% of the operating revenue of the Group (2018: 1.5%).
The main reasons for the increase were (i) the increase in interest
expenses; (i) the drop in net foreign exchange gain; and (i) a net
loss on forward foreign exchange contracts during the Reporting
Period rather than a net gain recorded for the corresponding period
in last year.

Income tax

In 2019, the income tax expense of the Group increased by about
RMB40.2 million or about 60.9% as compared with last year to
about RMB106.2 million (2018: about RMB66.0 million).

Consolidated net profit

As a result of the foregoing, in 2019, the consolidated net profit of
the Group increased by about RMB1.6 million or about 1.8% as
compared with last year to about RMB89.8 million (2018: about
RMB88.2 million).

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

In 2019, the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company increased by about RMB10.7 million or about 13.5% as
compared with last year to about RMB89.8 million (2018: about
RMB79.1 million).

BEEENWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Net current assets and financial resources

As at 31 December 2019, the net current assets of the Group
increased by about RMB116.1 million or about 7.0% as compared
with last year to about RMB1,774.2 million (31 December 2018:
about RMB1,658.1 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the cash on hand and in bank of
the Group increased by about RMB175.3 million or 10.3%
as compared with last year to about RMB 1,878.1 million (31
December 2018: about RMB1,702.8 million), mainly denominated
in RMB, British Pound Sterling (“GBP”), Australian Dollars (“AUD”)
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”), Swiss Franc (“CHF”) and USD.

Bank loans and gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2019, the total bank loan of the Group
decreased by about RMB704.6 million or about 30.0% as
compared with last year to about RMB1,645.0 million (31
December 2018: about RMB2,349.6 million). The bank loan as
at 31 December 2019 were denominated in RMB which were
repayable within one year.

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated by total liabilities divided by

total assets) as at 31 December 2019 was 71.3% (31 December
2018: 73.1%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) M e (E

Turnover days A RE

Turnover days (day)

AEXE(X) 2019 2018
Receivables (note 1) FEWBR K (K77 1) 427 398
Trade and bills payables (note 2) B I RNRRENEE (#it2) 485 434
Inventory (note 3) T8 (#it3) 74 63
Notes: Kt -

1. The calculation of the receivables turnover days is based on the 1. EREREAEXEIVRBEE@EREN

average amount of trade and bills receivables and net contract assets
(contract assets less contract liabilities) as at the beginning and
ending of the relevant period divided by total revenue of the relevant
period and multiplied by 365 days.

2. The calculation of turnover days of trade and bills payables is
based on the average amount of trade and bills payables as at the
beginning and ending of the relevant period divided by cost of raw
materials and installation cost of the relevant period and multiplied by
365 days.

3. The calculation of inventory turnover days is based on the average
amount of inventory as at the beginning and ending of the relevant
period (net of provision) divided by cost of raw materials of the
relevant period and multiplied by 365 days.

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of receivables
increased by about 29 days or about 7.3% as compared with last
year to about 427 days (2018: about 398 days).

During the Reporting Period, the turnover days of trade and bill
payables increased by about 51 days or about 11.8% as compared
with last year to about 485 days (2018: about 434 days).

HAA) I BR R AN B B 0 & 5 R R K
R EERBEREFAREE(ARE
ERARAE) TS 56 AAEEE
MHI IR A B IRLABBSKETE -

2. HBIRENRMENEEREXHENE
SEN R RENEEOIY R RS S
FHBREHRURMAERARZEBAE
JLABBSRETE

3. GFEREXZNEESENIHT LR
BRI EREE (FNBR B ) BR AR M AL B A
BIRLABBSKAE o

MEER - EWIRFKEE X427
(20184 : #9398K) & EF L INLI29
K #497.3% o

BEMA EHERMNFARENRERE

KB 41485 (20184F : 49434K) » &&=
FAEHNA)51K511.8%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Inventories and contract costs

The Group’s inventories primarily consist of materials used in
fabrication of curtain wall products, including extrusions aluminum,
glass, steel and sealant. Contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfill a
contract with a customer which are not capitalised as inventory.

As at 31 December 2019, the inventory and contract costs of the
Group decreased by about RMB85.1 million or about 20.9% as
compared with last year to about RMB 322.0 million (31 December
2018: about RMB407.1 million).

Capital expenditure

In 2019, the payment for capital expenditure of the Group increased
by about RMB2.4 million or about 22.9% as compared with last
year to about RMB12.9 million (2018: about RMB10.5 million),
which was mainly related to the payment on land acquisition,
construction of plant and purchase of equipment.

Foreign exchange risk

The overseas projects of the Group were mainly dominated in
USD, GBP and AUD. To hedge any foreign exchange risks, the
Group has entered into forward foreign exchange contracts which
hedge the forecast transactions and monetary assets denominated
in foreign currencies of the Group. The Group ensures that
net exposure to currency risk arising from assets and liabilities
maintained at an acceptable level.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019
are set out in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying value of the
property, plant and equipment, land use rights pledged for the
Group’s bank loans is RMB480.8 million.

As at 31 December 2019, no time deposits or trade receivables
were pledged for the Group’s long-term bank loans.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the time deposits
pledged for the Group’s short-term bank loans is RMB30.0 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the deposits
pledged for the bank loans and bank bills issued by the Group is
RMB356.2 million, the carrying value of the time deposits pledged
for the bank bills issued by the Group is RMB650.0 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2019.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of its subsidiaries and associated
companies.

Resumption of land in Foshan

On 7 August 2019, the Group entered into an agreement with
local representatives in Foshan pursuant to which the Group
surrendered one parcel of land in Foshan City for a compensation
of RMB116,060,000. For future details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 7 August 2019 and Note 21
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Significant investment

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Future plans for significant investments or capital assets

The Group does not have any future plans for significant
investments or capital assets as at the date of this report.

Global offering and use of proceeds

In May 2011, the Company conducted a global offering (the “Global
Offering”) through which 1,708,734,000 new ordinary shares
were offered at a price of HK$1.50 per share. Net proceeds raised
were approximately HK$2,402,947,000. The ordinary shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
17 May 2011.

As stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April 2011
and the supplementary prospectus dated 5 May 2011 (the
“Prospectus”), the Group intended to use the proceeds from the
Global Offering for expansion of its production capacity, repayment
of its existing debts, investment in research and development,
expansion of its sales and marketing network.

As at 31 December 2019, an accumulated amount of
approximately HK$2,041 million of proceeds from the Global
Offering (of which expansion of production capacity: HK$598
million; repayment of bank loans (mainly comprised the bridge loan
of Standard Chartered Bank): HK$962 million; expenses in research
and development: HK$261 million; and expansion of its sales and
marketing network: HK$220 million) was utilized in accordance with
the intended use as stated in the Prospectus. It is intended that the
remaining proceeds of approximately HK$362 million will be used in
accordance to the proposed allocation as stated in the Prospectus
in 11to 5 years.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

Br TS EI R (45
EAREREREERARKAE

RARE B - AREB W EERERKR
B EREENARRETE -

ERBENAEFIERRE

R2011F58 « ARRBETRIREE (2
BREE|) - 5E H1,708,734,000/ 51 &
A BEBAER1.508T  £25H
FTS s B F 3849 52,402,947,000/8 7T °
ANA R ERAGF 201145 A 17 B B 2P
FRET o

BN A RIEHEIR2011F4H20H /)
HRERZEN2011F5 AsHME T IBRE
BR(BRER] MM - NEERGFRE
HIEREERER  EERBEES K&
BERARAMAE - RIETIHE ML HEHA
% o

HZE2019%F12A31H » AEERHEA
MR EMBH2,041H5EBT(HAh
ERIER  598E BB EEIRITE
H(EEZERBITHRITBRBER 9628
BT WIS 261EEBIT 0 RIBERE
EIHABLS - 2208 8BEIT) c BTSN
BHB2E BATLRIERAEERRER
R BRERTEH N AR KBSFAFE
ﬁ °



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 4,016 full-time employees
in total (31 December 2018: 4,604). The decrease in number of
the full-time employees was a result of the Group’s headcount
optimization. The Group has sound policies of management
incentives and competitive remuneration, which align with the
interests of management, employees and shareholders’ alike.
The Group sets its remuneration policy with reference to the
prevailing market conditions and the performance of the individuals
concerned, subject to review from time to time. The components
of the remuneration package consist of basic salary, allowances,
fringe benefits including medical insurance and contributions to
pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus and
share options.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEAE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua (B ), aged 66, is the founder and chairman
of the Group, and was appointed as an Executive Director on
February 26, 2010. Graduated from Liaoning University (EZ X
£) with a diploma in politics in 1984, Mr. Kang has over 26 years
of experience in the curtain wall industry and has been responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the
Group since 1992. Prior to founding the Group, Mr. Kang was an
executive director of Shenyang Strong Wind Group Company (/&F5
58 @ 5[5 /A 7). Since the establishment of the Company, Mr. Kang
has been involved in the management of the Company, including
business development, finance and corporate strategy formulation.
Mr. Kang is also a director of various other subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. Li Hongren (Z3#t A), aged 53, the chief executive officer of
the Group and an Executive Director of the Company, obtained
his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Northeastern Industrial
College* (R4t TEZB7) (currently known as Northeastern University
(BE4EKE2) in 1990 with a major in machinery manufacturing
processes and equipment. Mr. Li was qualified as a senior engineer
by Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the
People’s Republic of China in 2006. Mr. Li joined the Group in 1999
and has more than 20 years of experience in manufacturing and
marketing of curtain wall products. Since 2006, Mr. Li has been a
manager of various Eurasian subsidiaries of the Group. Since 2014,
Mr. Li was promoted to the vice president of the Group and is
responsible for management.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Liu Futao (2|3875), aged 55, an Executive Director of the
Company, obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Shenyang Correspondence University (%85 & BB 18 AE) in 1987
with a major in machinery manufacturing.Mr. Liu joined the Group
in 1997 and has more than 22 years in manufacturing and project
management. Since 2008, Mr. Liu has been a manager of various
Mideast subsidiaries of the Group. In 2012, Mr. Liu was promoted
to the regional manager of the northeast China of the Group.

Mr. Ma Minghui (F8#), aged 39, an Executive Director of
the Company, obtained his bachelor's degree in Management
from Shenyang Institute of Aeronautical Engineering (&[22
T2E67) in 2003 with a major in public administration.Mr. Ma
joined the Group in 2007 and has accumulated more than 12
years of experience in human resources management and budget
management. Since 2011, Mr. Ma has been the secretary to the
president of the Group. In 2015, Mr. Ma was promoted to the
director of human resources of the Group.

Mr. Wang Hao (£ &), aged 39, the chief financial officer of the
Company and an Executive Director of the Company, obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Management from Jilin University (&5 7K E2) in
2002 with a major in accounting. Mr. Wang Hao joined the Group
in 2007 and has accumulated more than 12 years of experience in
financial management.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Zhang Lei (5RE), aged 47, since February 2013, he acted
as vice President of Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., Ltd.” (&fZEXinx TI2HBR A7) (‘Shenyang
Yuanda”), one of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group in July 2002 and has over 17 years of experience
in curtain wall industry. Before joining the Group, from 1994 to
2000, Mr. Zhang held various managerial positions in Northeast
Refractory Plant, including vice director in charge of production and
equipment and director of equipment department in No.4 branch of
Northeast Refractory Plant. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Zhang acted
as a management intern in Japanese YKK company. From 2002 to
2005, Mr. Zhang held various key positions including quality control
and technology minister in Northeast Branch of Shenyang Yuanda.
He acted as a designer in Zhongdong Branch of Shenyang Yuanda
from 2005 to 2006. From 2006 to 2008, he acted as chief designer
in Dubai Branch of Shenyang Yuanda, responsible for the Group’s
ACC44 residential buildings, imperial buildings and commercial
bay administration building and other projects. From 2008 to
2012, Mr. Zhang held various positions in Shenyang Yuanda,
including assistant to chief engineer in International Operation of
Shenyang Yuanda, deputy director of International Curtain Wall
Manufacturer under Shenyang Yuangda, factory controller and
factory president of Shenyang Yuanda. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Shenyang Electrical Industrial School with a diploma in electrical
and mechanical engineering in 1994,

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (EMEE]), aged 57, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011. Mr.
Poon obtained a Master’s degree in international accounting, a
Bachelor’s degree in laws and a Bachelor’s degree in business
studies. He was awarded a postgraduate diploma in laws by the
University of London. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia Ltd.,
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute (also an associate
instructor), a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formally known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). He is also a member of the Technical Consultation
Panel, Mainland China Focus Group and audit committee of
HKICS.
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Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Poon has years of experience in regulatory affairs, investment
banking and listed company management. He now serves as an
executive director and company secretary of Huabao International
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 336). Currently, he
is also an independent non-executive director of the following
companies: Sunac China Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock
code: 1918), Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (Hong
Kong stock code: 1292), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong stock code: 1249), TUS International Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 872), AUX International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 2080), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings
Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 631), Greentown
Service Group Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 2869), Jinchuan
Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code:
2362), Honghua Group Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 196) and
Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
1171). Mr. Poon was a non-executive director of Chong Kin Group
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1609) from 5 January
2018 to 6 June 2018.

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#ZX#), aged 50 was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 12
April, 2011. Mr. Woo has over 26 years of experience in the
accounting and financial services industry. He began his career
as a certified accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co where he
qualified. Subsequently, he was employed in senior positions as
an investment banker at ING, CITIC Securities and Credit Suisse.
Mr. Woo holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree. He is a member
of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Woo is an independent non-executive director of IRC Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 1029), and an independent non-executive
director of SMIT Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 2239).
Mr. Woo was an executive director of TUS International Limited
(Hong Kong stock code: 872) from 1 September 2015 to 7 June
2018. Mr. Woo was an independent non-executive director of
Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
958, subsequently withdrawn listing voluntarily with effect from 24
February 2020) from 28 June 2019 to 22 April 2020.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEAE

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny (¥ &), aged 47, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 12 April 2011.
Mr.Pang is a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Pang
is the managing partner of Benny Pang & Co. and a partner of F.
Zimmern & Co. who specializes in capital markets and general
corporate and commercial work. He was an independent non-
executive director of Huabang since June 2012. Between 1997 and
2009, Mr. Pang practiced as a lawyer with several international law
firms in Hong Kong and Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s
degree in laws (honors) from Bond University, Australia, in 1996. In
1997, Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate Diploma in Legal Practice
and master’s degree in laws from The College of Law, Sydney
and the University of New South Wales, Australia, respectively. He
has been admitted as a legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of
New South Wales, Australia since 1997 and as a solicitor of the
High Court of Hong Kong since 2009. He is a member of both the
Law Society of New South Wales, Australia and the Law Society
of Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Pang is also an independent non-
executive Director of Sanbase Corporation Limited (Hong Kong
stock code: 8501) and Janco Holding Limited. (Hong Kong stock
code: 8035). Mr. Pang is a non-executive of Huabang Financial
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 3638).

On 15 July 2019, Mr. Pang was criticized by the Stock Exchange
in relation to his breach of Rule 5.01(6) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and his obligations under the Declaration
and Undertaking given by him to the Stock Exchange set out in
Appendix 6-A of the GEM Listing Rules, in discharging his duties
as an independent non-executive director (which he had retired
since 1 June 2018) of China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited (Stock Code: 8158) (“CRMI”), and for failing to use his
best endeavors to procure CRMI to comply with the GEM Listing
Rules in relation to certain lending activity conducted by CRMI (the
“Criticism”). At all material times, Mr. Pang had raised his concern
over the lending activity conducted by CRMI in a numerous
occasions, although his recommendations were not accepted.
Pursuant to the Criticism, Mr. Pang is directed to complete 24
hours of trainings in relation to the GEM Listing Rules compliance,
director’s duties and corporate governance matters together with
four hours of training on Chapter 19 and Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 8 August 2019.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2)(a) to (e) and (g) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December
2019. All Directors are not involved in any matters concerning Rule
13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai, Philip (R= ), aged 43, was appointed as the
company secretary and authorized representative of the Company
in June 2012 and has over 13 years of experience in corporate
services field. He was an auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
from 2000 to 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Yu joined Fung, Yu & Co.
CPA Limited and is currently the company’s managing partner.
Mr. Yu has also been the company secretary of Beijing Media
Corporation Ltd. (Hong Kong stock code: 1000), and Sany Heavy
Equipment International Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code:
631) and independent non-executive director of Realord Group
Holdings Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 1196) and Dowway
Holding Limited (Hong Kong stock code: 8403), all of which are
listed companies in Hong Kong, since 2010, 2017, 2014 and 2019,
respectively. Mr. Yu graduated from the University of Toronto with
a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2000 and from the University
of London with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2005. He is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified
Practicing Accountants of Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Hongren (=3 A), Chief Executive Officer of the Company
- see the paragraph under [Executive Directors | above.

Mr. Wang Hao (£ &), the chief financial officer of the Company —
see the paragraph under [Executive Directors] above.
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TEERRE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December
2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles
emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective internal
controls and accountability to shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has adopted
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as
its own code to govern its corporate governance practices. The
Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices regularly
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance with the objective of enhancing shareholders’
value including setting and approving the Company’s strategic
implementation, considering substantial investments, reviewing
the Group’s financial performance and developing and reviewing
the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
overall performance in environmental, social and governance (the
“ESG”). The Board has delegated to the chief executive officer,
of whom the directors also undertake, and through him, to the
senior management the authority and responsibility for the day-
to-day management and operation of the Group. In addition, the
Board has established Board committees and has delegated to
these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities (continued)

All directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.

BOARD COMPOSITION
As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of nine members
in total, with six executive Directors and three independent non-

executive Directors. The composition of the Board is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kang Baohua Chairman

Mr. Li Hongren Chief executive officer
Mr. Liu Futao

Mr. Ma Minghui

Mr. Wang Hao Chief financial officer
Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continueq) EESHERE

BYFHTES HiTES

Independent Non-executive Executive Directors
Directors
@ @ @ @ [ ) ® O [ J [ )
IFEMEES 6 BN IREE

3 Elected Directors 6 Directors Appointed From The Group

#4281 /Age Group 30-40 41-50 51-60 |
22EF IREE SEET 12EF
2 Directors 3 Directors 3 Directors 1 Director

REREEEENEH

with the Group 4IEES 18ESB

4 Directors 1 Director
FEEEEHEM EH DR

HES(RRAKE)/

ARES
4 Directors

Companies

6HES

Directorship(s)
6 Directors

EZEREEXEAER AR
Board Expertise and Skills
FEEETE R EE R AE/Budget
management and leadership skills

REFNHERHEEEFEEN
B R ARSI R MEBRES
Experience in manufacturing and Sound judgement and

marketing of curtain wall products effective oversight of and

guidance to management
A ith 45 2 AN/ Mainland market

expertise

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time. The independent non-executive directors
are expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to
the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this report. None of the members of the Board is related to one
another.
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
Company.

Save as otherwise disclosed, there is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material relationship) between
members of the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedures to
nominate candidate as a Director. Pursuant to the Nomination
Policy, the Nomination Committee shall identify suitable board
candidates and make recommendation to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, after assessing
a number of factors of a candidate, including, but not limited
to, reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of available time and attention on relevant
matters, independence of proposed independent non-executive
Directors and diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the final
decision in relation to the nomination of any candidates to stand
for election at general meetings of the Company. The Nomination
Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, and
recommend revision to the Board for consideration and approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has considered a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
considered diversity of Board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of
the selected candidates and their contribution to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman (the “Chairman”) and the
chief executive officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) of the
Company are carried out by different individuals and have been
clearly defined in writing.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Kang Baohua, and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Li Hongren. The positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer are held by separate persons in
order to preserve independence and a balance of views and
judgments. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.
The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is
also responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organizational structure, control systems and internal procedures
and processes for the Board’s approval.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors is engaged on a service contract for
a term of three years, and the appointment may be terminated by
not less than one month’s written notice. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has been appointed for a term of one year
and the appointment may be terminated by not less than three
months’ written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the first
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s articles of
association. The Nomination Committee established on 12 April
2011 is to be responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors.

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Ma Minghui, Mr. Wang Hao and Mr. Zhang Lei
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
16 June 2020 (the “2019 AGM”).

Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, any further
appointment of an independent non-executive Director in excess
of nine years should subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Woo Kar
Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny were appointed
as independent non-executive Directors in April 2011 and will be
serving on the Board for more than nine years starting from April
2020. Therefore, separate ordinary resolutions will be proposed
at the 2019 AGM to re-elect each of Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr.
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang Chung Fai, Benny as an
independent non-executive Director.
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BOARD MEETINGS
Board practices and conduct of Board meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The Company’s senior management, including the Chief Executive
Officer, chief financial officer and company secretary, attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings, to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking
and keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to the Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and final
versions are open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Company’s articles of association contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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BOARD MEETINGS (continued) EES2RE(E)
Directors’ attendance records BEEHEeRECx

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings HE2019F12A31BHILFE  &FFH
and committee meetings being held during the year ended 31 FEEgemkZEggmUREER
December 2019 and the annual general meeting for the financial 201945 H31 A B K201 8F M FE
year of 2018 held on 31 May 2019 (the “2018 AGM") are set out BEEAFAS ([2018FERRAFEAE])
below: HIRCEREAILN T -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, &EHE
Chairman’s
Annual Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General meetings
Name of Director Board  Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting  with INEDs
TREBY
FHTESH
EEpA Exe REZEE® FMHZEE BLZEEE KRRAFTAS FEER
Kang Baohua 77 2/2 11 11
REE
Li Hongren 77 11 11
FHEA
Liu Futao 77 11
2R
Ma Minghui 77 11
HHE
Wang Hao 777 11
iz
Zhang Lei 77 0/1
RE
Poon Chiu Kwok 77 2/2 2/2 11 11
i
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond 777 11 2/2 11 11
B
Pang Chung Fai, Benny 77 2/2 11 2/2 11 11
ZhiE
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company would provide to each newly appointed Director or
alternative Director an induction package covering the summary
of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of a Hong Kong
listed company, the Group’s businesses and the statutory
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company as well
as the Company’s constitutional documents to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Group also provides briefings and other trainings to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills from time to time.
Further, the Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Details regarding the trainings attended by the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are as follow:

EEEI

EEPNEBRERFREE - ARFAZE
EX2HEFEFIRER  UBRNMEE
BEMB NG - NRARKRAZGERHIE
TESFIBTESFREEAREN &N
MEFBELTAREENRENEE -
AEEXEH R LT RBIESHNEATERE
BERRARREBHIXMF - ARERET
DEMER EMRAMEMBREELT
MBEREE AEETBITHN SR
HiEdlRiE - ATRHEREINEES
K IEE © BHN  RABTERES
ETRANEMBERREZRERK
R - URERETHRE LB KRE
B RFEFRERTRINBA -

FEENEHE2019F12A31HILFEHE
BIINFFBOT

Types of training

Directors 2= EIEE
Executive Directors HITES

Kang Baohua BEE A B, C,D,E
Li Hongren A A B, D E
Liu Futao e A B,C,DE
Ma Minghui SRS A B,DE
Wang Hao = A B,C,D,E
Zhang Lei RE A B,DE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFEITES

Poon Chiu Kwok &M A B,C,D,E
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond IERA A/B,CDE
Pang Chung Fai, Benny ZhE AB,CDE
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

Note:
A. Attending seminar(s)/forum(s)

B. Reading materials relating to general business, real estate
development, directors’ duties and responsibilities and so on

C. Giving talks to external seminar(s)/forum(s)
D. Attending corporate event(s)/visit(s)

E. Directors E-Trainings in HKex

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and devised its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ dealings in the Company’s
securities (the “Company Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code and the Company Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
Company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full support of the Chief
Executive Officer and the senior management for the discharge of
its responsibilities.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of
the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 8 to the
Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices, the
Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference which are available on the Company’s website.
Each of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Kang Baohua (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent non-
executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee:

° reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and
made recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o made recommendations to the Board to ensure that the
independent non-executive Directors comprise at least one-
third of the Board;

° assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continueq)

° made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of Directors; and

o made recommendations to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, ethnicity, professional experience,
knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee will meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Two Nomination Committee
meetings were held during the year under review.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (chairman), Mr. Li Hongren and Mr.
Pang Chung Fai, Benny, the majority of which are independent
non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Directors’ remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular
monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that level
of their remuneration and compensation are reasonable. Their
written terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of
the CG Code. Pursuant to code provision B.1.4 of the CG Code,
the Remuneration Committee would make available its terms of
reference, explaining its role and the authority delegated to it by the
Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

° conduct an annual review with reference to companies with
comparable business or scale and recommend remuneration
adjustments, if appropriate;

° reviewed and approved the disclosure details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band in the annual reports; and

° conducted regular evaluations of the Board on its
performance as it may consider appropriate.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond and Mr. Pang
Chung Fai, Benny, all of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and risk management and
internal control systems and to provide advice and comments to
the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee:

° made recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

o reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 as well as significant issues on financial
control, internal control and risk management systems;

° reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2019,
and received periodic updates on the status of internal audit
activities;

° discussed the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal control
system. This discussion included the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

° developed and reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors of the
Company twice without the presence of the executive Directors.

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has also adopted an information disclosure policy which
has set out guidelines in respect of handling and dissemination of
inside information. The Board is entrusted with the responsibility for
monitoring and implementing the procedural requirements in the
information disclosure policy. Release of inside information shall be
approved by the Board. Unless duly authorized, all staff members
of the Company shall not disseminate inside information relating to
the Group to any external parties and shall not respond to media
report or market speculation which may materially affect the trading
price or volume of the shares of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Board is responsible for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company performing the corporate governance duties as below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

EEEBRE

EEZREE(E
BERLZEE(HE)

o HENMBHARABREEEER
FH TRESSRIER -

HZE2019F12A31BILEE - BZEE

A RE Lo AN
o @RITOND R ©

ERZBENMENTESTREZBRT
EARRASMNZBENE TRAEH

REHEEE

AEBNCRMNEEREBERR  EPH
JIEBRERBEMABBEENES - &
FEXAAEEENERESHRERRK
FHEFRE  ARENERESSH
fE o BRIFELNIRE - BRAIARRIAA
BT AGAERIIMBALEREBAAE
BHAREE  MASOEREHEAR
AR EBRAREENERTEDN
ReeRER IS -

HE Mg el AR E R DR ERBEK
KER - WEH R -

e RINMEREZFRSMEEEMNSE
IR FHEE R

o RINMERAKEETHEERR
MERTE ER) RN ER

BRTEERARAR | ZZ—JURER

43



44

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (continuead)

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements of inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. An internal audit department has been
established to perform regular financial and operational reviews
and conduct audit of the Company and its subsidiaries. The work
carried out by the internal audit department ensures the internal
controls are in place and functioning properly as intended.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Risk management framework

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assets and with the support of the Audit
Committee, and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an
annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The internal auditor and senior management review and
evaluate the control process, monitors any risk factors on a regular
basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on any findings and
measures to address the variances and identified risks.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Significant risks and control measures
Business risk

As most of the Group’s customers are property developers or
main contractors of public infrastructure and commercial buildings,
the business and prospects of the Group heavily depend on the
performance of the construction and real estate industries, which
are cyclical and could be significantly affected by fluctuations in
economic conditions.

The time and costs involved in completing construction can be
adversely affected by many factors, including shortage of materials,
equipment and labour, adverse weather conditions, natural
disasters, labour disputes with contractors and subcontractors,
accidents, changes in government priorities, and other unforeseen
problems or circumstances. The occurrence of any of these factors
could give rise to delays in the completion of a project, which
may result in cost overruns and potential disputes and claims
from service recipients. This may also result in the profit derived
from the design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall system not being recognised in the year in which it was
originally anticipated to be recognised.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Business risk (continued)

The industry in which the Group operates is closely related to the
macro-economy and people’s livelihood. In 2019, domestic and
foreign risk challenges have risen significantly. Economic structural,
institutional and cyclical issues intersected and increased the
pressure on growth. Some of the traditional factors which have
contributed to economic growth over a long period of time, such
as demographic dividends, capital investment and export mobility,
have all shown signs of fatigue. At the same time, the COVID-19
epidemic in early 2020 temporally affected the normal operation of
various industries.

In order to better respond to the opportunities and challenges
from the changes in economy environment and policies, the
Company carries out in-depth study on the macro-economy and
policies all over the world to implement its strategies to develop
and strengthen penetration of different regional markets thereby
reducing its dependence on specific markets.

Industrial risk

However, the industry will remain polarized and extremely
competitive; leading towards the Matthew Effect of “the strong
becomes stronger” as the sector centralises and segregates. As
the market becomes more concentrated, market share will quickly
gravitate towards leading companies.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests
with every function at divisional and departmental levels. Delay in
supply of construction materials, unskilled construction workers,
safety accidents, natural disasters, adverse weather and other
factors may bring risks such as construction progress, project cost,
construction quality and customers satisfaction, and thus affecting
the results of operation and reputation of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)

Operational risk (continued)

The Company has established various systems for management of
quality, progress, safety, material and cost of project development
to strengthen the overall management of construction schedule,
quality and safety, reduced construction risks and emphasize safe
development.

Compliance risk

The Company’s operation is subject to a wide range of policies
and regulations, including the company ordinance of the region
where it locates, financial and taxation regulations and regulations
in relation to construction and listing rules of Hong Kong and
mainland China etc., and the requirements and changes of laws,
regulations and policies may also affect the Company. In 2019, the
Company actively complied with laws, regulations and policies, and
continuously improved its knowledge and management awareness
of compliance requirements.

The Company has designated special personnel to study new
regulations and policies and make relevant arrangements, and
reflected the requirements of relevant laws and regulations in
its business activities and operation management in a timely
manner. The Company also consults external experts for handling
compliance matters in order to comply with various relevant
regulations, policies and guidelines.

Credit risk

The Group is serving a large customer base with different credit
status, and its business development will inevitably be affected by
the varied credit profiles of these customers. The Group seeks to
reduce the aforesaid impact by identifying and managing credit
risks through internal credit management measures, such as
credit search, credit rating, credit limit management, overall credit
risk assessment and stringent credit control against customers
with faulty payment records, as well as by transferring credit risks
through the purchase of credit insurance.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

Significant risks and control measures (continued)
Financial risk

The financial risk management of the Group are set out in note 31
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Audit Committee reviewed the findings of investigations on
material internal control and the management’s feedback thereof.

Based on the assessments made by the management and taking
into account the audit works of the independent auditor, the Board
and the Audit Committee considered that no significant areas of
concern in respect of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were identified during the year of 2019.

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems performed during the year, the Board
considers such systems effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yu Leung Fai of Yu & Co. CPA Limited, the external company
secretary service provider of the Company, has been engaged
by the Company as its company secretary since 30 June 2012.
The primary corporate contact person at the Company is Alice
Li, the secretary of the Finance and Securities Department of the
Company.

The company secretary’s biography is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the company secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update his skills
and knowledge.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 112 to 119.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB9.3 million. The external auditors
of the Company provided non-audit services with contract-value
of about RMB0.6 million to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (including making proposals/moving
a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting)

° Any one or more shareholders of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company (the
“Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
including making proposals or moving a resolution at an
extraordinary general meeting.

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for the purpose of making proposals or
moving a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit E 14/F, Hang
Seng Tsuen Wan Building, 289 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders of the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (including making proposals/moving
a resolution at the extraordinary general meeting) (continued)

° The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in
the Company, the reason(s) to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included the
details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted in
the extraordinary general meeting, signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned.

° If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any outcome to
the contrary and fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of associations of the Company, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned by the
Company.

Disclaimer

The contents of this sub-section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”
are for reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The
information does not represent and should not be regarded as legal
or other professional advice from the Company to its shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the
Company. The Company disclaims all liabilities for losses incurred
by its shareholders in reliance on any contents of this sub-section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.
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Corporate Governance Report

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong by post or through the

following means:

Telephone number:  (86) 24 25273288

By post: 20, Street 13 Shenyang Economic &
Technological Development Area,
Shenyang, 110027, China

Attention: Investor Relations Department

By email: investors@yuandacn.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Amendments to the articles of association of the Company

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of
the Company’s articles of association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Investors communication policy

The Company regards the communication with institutional
investors as important means to enhance the transparency of
the Company and collect views and feedbacks from institutional
investors. To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at www.yuandacn.com, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted are available for public
access. During the year under review, the Directors and senior
management of the Company participated in numerous road
shows and investment conferences. In addition, the Company also
maintains regular communication with the media through press
conferences, news releases to the media and on the Company’s
website, and answering enquiries from the media.

EEEBRE

IRERBERI (2
MESEELEN
BRRAEBFEARNAREBNETES

EHIBEBBATTARNESTSHAE
BT

BEEIRNS ¢ (86) 24 25273288
R - B RS T

G E BT EE

1355 A7205% E 47110027
B REEBERE
BH : investors@yuandacn.com
REERHF

AR BEBERAAERT

REBEFE  AARAEFNEAEE
AR - AR R EBEIZ AR IR
AR R B 22 P A8 uh L TIE -

REEBMBER

AArEEEEEEBERERRES
REBEARE RN EREREENE LA
ZRNEZART - BEEBBES - K
N AR A Bhwww.yuandacn.com © EA
EBAARRREBRERMNKHEERE
B - MBEE - PEERATHLE
e - WEARATEE - REIESF
B ARAFEERSREREEL2ESL
HEBEREESZ o LI NAAINE
BIEEGE  MEBEBOEE - EAX
ANEREEEE R KB EHENERM
JE B EA A BE R o

BRTEERARAR | ZZ—JURER

51



52

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Investors communication policy (continued)

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders of
the Company with face-to-face dialogue. The Chairman of the
Board as well as chairmen of each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees and, where
applicable, the chairman of the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at general meetings.

The annual general meeting regarding the financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (“AGM”) will be held on 16
June 2020. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders of the
Company at least 21 clear business days before the AGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors including earnings and financial conditions, operation
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that
any other Directors may deem or are relevant and will be subject
to the approval of our shareholders of the Company. There can
be no assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or
distributed in any given year.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year under review
and a discussion on the Group’s future business development and
outlook of the Company’s business, possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing and important events affecting the
Company occurred during the year ended 31 December 2019
are provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 9 to 21 of this annual report. An account of the
Company'’s relationships with its key stakeholders is included in the
paragraph headed “Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers” of the Report of the Directors on page 56 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2019 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 9 to 21 of this annual report and the Group’s “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 276 of this annual report.

In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Company
are provided in the report headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance” on pages 74 to 111 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since early 2020, the Group’s operation has been adversely
affected by quarantine measures imposed by the government to
contain the COVID-19 outbreak. The Group has been paying close
attention to the impact of the situation on the operation and taking
all possible and reasonable measures to mitigate and limit the
impact on the Group’s operation. As how the COVID-19 outbreak
will continue is uncertain, the overall effect that the COVID-19
outbreak may have on the Group’s businesses cannot be reliably
estimated as at the date when the financial statements were
authorised for issue.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental conservation remains a key focus for the Group.
The conscientious use of resources and adoption of best
practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its commitment
to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection and complies with environmental
legislation and promotes awareness towards environmental
protection to the employees.

The PRC government has imposed strict requirements of the laws
of production safety and environmental protection for enterprises.
Since the PRC government is adopting laws on strengthening
environmental protection from time to time and implementing
stricter environmental protection standards, it is expected that the
Group will have to comply with more regulations in the future. In
addition, the Group predicts this trend will continue and additional
expenses may be incurred for complying with new regulations, thus
increasing the Group’s operating costs.

To cope with the risk, not only are we certified with ISO 14001
Environmental Management System, but we have also set up an
Environmental Division to monitor and manage the environmental
performance of our plants and maintain communication with
the Ministry of Environmental Protection. In addition, the Group
has been optimising its management system for safety and
environmental protection, regularly keeping abreast of the relevant
laws and regulations of environmental protection in order to ensure
full compliance with local laws of environmental protection. Further
details are set forth in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report as set forth in this annual report

MAJOR BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of one-stop
integrated curtain wall solutions for its customers to meet the
technical specifications and performance requirements of their
projects. The analysis of the revenue of the Group for the year is set
out in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
financial condition of the Company and the Group as at that date
are set out in the Financial Statements on pages 120 to 275.

SHARE CAPITAL

The changes in the share capital of Company during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 29 to the Financial
Statements.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to declare any annual dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

BOOK CLOSURE PERIOD AND RECORD DATE

For the purpose in determining who will be eligible to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 11 June 2020
to Tuesday, 16 June 2020 (both days inclusive), during which
time no transfer of shares will be registered. To ensure that the
shareholders of the Company are entitled to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders must deliver their
duly stamped instruments of transfer, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, to the Group’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Room
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
10 June 2020 for registration of the relevant transfer.

RESERVE

Details of movements in reserve of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Financial Statements. Details
of movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 29 to the Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution of dividends to
the shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s articles
of associations, and with the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividend may be declared and paid out of share premium account
or any other fund or account which can be authorized for this
purpose. As at 31 December 2019, the distributable reserves
from share premium of the Company were RMB574.0 million (31
December 2018: RMB574.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

The changes in property, plant and equipments of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 12 to the
Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest suppliers and the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately
1.9% and 7.7% of the Group’s total purchase, respectively.
The percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customers and the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 6.1% and 20.5% of the Group’s total
turnover, respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, so far as is known to the Directors,
none of the Directors or his/her close associates and none of the
shareholders possessing over 5% of the interest in the share capital
of the Company possessed any interest in the abovementioned
suppliers and customers.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract
and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

AR IR

REFSESARE  AAaKRN &
EBAREADKTRENRE - HAF
AARNRMMABERMAETE - BBB
TRREARIER  TERDAEBERR
FREEELAEHEME SRS R
FIRSORTIRE - R2019F 124318 -
AN ERDEED RFEEAAR
#574.0A 87T (R2018%F12A31H : A
R¥57408ETT) ©

HE2019F 12 A31HILEE - REEW
Y - BERREBEBH I EREKM
12

FREFRHER

REBFA  AEEZAKHEREEAE
BRAREREERER D LLAEED R
BN B ARBREAN 9% KRT7.7% A&
BSEAEPEAEERAREPRAE X
BMEDLL DS A EERERIEL61%
}20.5% °

BRARERBEEIN  REFHM - BIE
EEARENETERALREEAR
AR B %R N L B
KEFREA TR -

BES HERKEF ZENEE

AEEHE  EERRMNEEEE -
AEERUABFNOFIEE - LR
Bl HEES - AREEHREEE
R - S B TS TR I 44
SR -



Report of the Board of Directors

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS (continued)

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture.
The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil its immediate
and long-term goals. To maintain its market competitiveness within
the industry, the Group aims at delivering constantly high standards
and high quality products to its customers. During the year under
review, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its most suppliers and/or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the year and as of the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Kang Baohua (Chairman)

Li Hongren (Chief Executive Officer)
Liu Futao

Ma Minghu

Wang Hao (Chief Financial Officer)
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors

Poon Chiu Kwok
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond
Pang Chung Fai, Benny

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
forth in the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of service contracts for our executive Directors and non-
executive Directors of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Appointment and Re-election of Directors” of the
Corporate Governance Report. There was no service contract
entered by the Company and any Directors to be re-elected in
the coming annual general meeting stipulating that the Company
may not terminate the appointment within one year without
compensation payment (other than the statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in Note 30 to the Financial
Statements, there was no other transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance with any member of the Group as the
contracting party and in which the Directors of the Company
possessed direct or indirect substantial interests, and which was
still valid on the year end date or any time during the year and
related to the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

Our Chairman, Mr. Kang Baohua, owns and through Best
Qutlook Limited (“Best Outlook”) and Neo Pioneer Limited
(“Neo Pioneer”) owns in aggregate approximately 53.96% of
the issued share capital in the Company as at the date of this
report. Mr. Kang Baohua, Best Outlook and Neo Pioneer are the
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Kang Baohua also
owns 100% interest in Yuanda Aluminium Industry Engineering
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“Yuanda Singapore”) through Yuanda
Group, which is owned by Mr. Kang Baohua. Yuanda Singapore
is primarily engaged in curtain wall works and trading as well as
investment holding. Although the Company has established a
wholly owned subsidiary in Singapore to carry out curtain wall
contracting projects, the ability to contract for large-scale public
curtain wall projects in Singapore is dependent on local contracting
experience. Given the lack of direct local contracting experience,
the Group has been cooperating with Yuanda Singapore on the
contracting of large scale public curtain wall projects in Singapore
during the last five years and will continue to supply curtain wall
products to Yuanda Singapore until the Company’s wholly owned
subsidiary will be able to undertake such projects in Singapore on
its own. Please see the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 April 2011 (the
“Prospectus”) for details. For the aforesaid purpose, Yuanda
Singapore has been excluded from the deed of non-competition
(‘Deed of Non-competition”) provided by the controlling
shareholders to the Company on 21 April 2011.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETITIVE BUSINESS
(continued)

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the Company’s controlling shareholders in respect of the
compliance by them and their associates with the Deed of Non-
competition. Each of the controlling shareholders of the Company
have also confirmed that all of them have abided by the Deed of
Non-competition during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Deed of Non-competition, the confirmation given by each of the
Company’s controlling shareholder and whether the controlling
shareholders have abided by the non-competition undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition. The independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that they had determined that the
controlling shareholders have not been in breach of the Deed of
Non-competition during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed, no Directors nor their respective connected
persons possessed any interests in any business that competed or
might compete with the business that the Group conducted.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise
in relation thereto in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 12 April 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board of Directors can
grant options for the subscription of the Company’s shares to the
employees, managerial staff and senior employees of the Group
and those other persons that the Board of Directors considers
that they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme in order
to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their contribution to
the Group. The maximum number of shares that may be issued
under the Share Option Scheme was 600,000,000 shares which
is equivalent to 10% of the issued capital of the Company after
completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus).
The number of shares that may be granted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
shares of the Company immediately after the completion of the
Global Offering. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may
be granted to the Participants under the Share Option Scheme
shall not exceed 1% within any 12-month period (other than those
granted to the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted under
the options to the independent non-executive Directors or any
of their respective connected persons shall not exceed 0.1% of
the shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is no
minimum period that the options must be held before they become
exercisable, and the options granted shall be exercised within the
period decided by the Board of Directors, and however no options
shall be exercised 10 years after they have been granted. The
exercise price of the option shall be the highest of:

(@  the closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c)  nominal value of the Share.

Each grantee shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the
option is granted.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date it is
adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from
that date.

Since the Share Option Scheme was adopted, no options have
been granted.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
on 10 April 2013 to recognize and motivate the contributions made
to the Group by its employees and to give incentives in order to
retain them for the continuous operation and development of the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2019, no shares had
been awarded under the Share Award Scheme. Details of the rules
of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 April 2013.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of
10 years commencing on the date of adoption on 10 April 2013.
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the shares will be acquired
by the independent trustee at the cost of the Company and be held
in trust for the selected employees until the end of each vesting
period. The maximum number of shares which may be granted to
the selected employees under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed five percent (5%) of the total issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of shares which
may be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the total issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.

DEBENTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company, its holding
company or its subsidiaries were not the contracting parties of
any arrangements from which the Directors could make a profit by
purchasing the shares or debentures of the Company or any other
companies.
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EEERE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interest or short position of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which would be required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
Model Code, are as follows:

(i) Interest of the Company

Nature of Interest

REmEE

Name of Director

EEHA

Kang Baohua Beneficial owner

REE B A
Interest of controlled corporation
REnEE e R
Li Hongren Beneficial owner
FHA BERFEAA
Liu Futao Beneficial owner
Zltzs B A
Wang Hao Beneficial owner
=2 ERBEAA
Zhang Lei Beneficial owner
RE BERFEAA
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Report of the Board of Directors

INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

(i) Interest of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) The letter “L.” denotes long position in such securities.

(2)  Of the shares held by Mr. Kang Baohua, 2,582,971,923
Shares were held by Best Outlook Limited and 820,616,771

Shares were held by Neo Pioneer Limited, both companies of
which are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua.

(i) Interest in associated corporations

Name of Associated

Name of Director Corporation
EEpns HEEE &R
Kang Baohua Best Outlook Limited
REE EHRBRAA
Kang Baohua Neo Pioneer Limited
REE EIBR AR

(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations which were required
to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS

As at the date 31 December 2019, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had an
interest and/or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO:

Interest of the Company

Name Capacity
%8 54

Beneficial owner

EnBEAA

Best Outlook Limited™
ERBRAR

Beneficial owner

EnBEAA

Neo Pioneer Limited®

HMEBR AR
Notes:
(1) Best Outlook Limited and Neo Pioneer Limited are companies

incorporated in the BVI and are wholly-owned by Mr. Kang Baohua.

(2)  The letter “L.” denotes long position in such securities.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors
are not aware of any persons, other than a Director or chief
executives of the Company, had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31
December 2019 are set out in Note 15 to the Financial Statements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year under review.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT STATUS

The Company received the letters of confirmation of independence
issued by all the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has noted that as at 31 December 2019, Mr. Poon Chiu
Kwok was an executive director or an independent non-executive
director of a total of 12 Hong Kong listed companies (including the
Company). However, the Board is of the view that Mr. Poon would
still be able to devote sufficient time to the Board. Mr. Poon as a
FCPA (Aust.), Chartered Secretary, Executive Director of a listed
company and an experienced trainer to the securities participants
and listed company management keeping himself abreast of the
latest governance trends of the companies listed in HK by attend
seminar and self-studying of related articles with over 80 hours
in 2019 and has strong experience in corporate governance and
is familiar with management of Hong Kong listed companies.
During the year 2019, based on the attendance record in the
meetings of the Company, Mr. Poon has participated in all Board
meetings and has good communication with the Board and other
independent non-executive Directors and performs his obligations
and responsibility gives impartial advice and suggestion as an
independent non-executive director.

The Board of Directors was satisfied with the independent status of
all the independent non- executive Directors.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The details are disclosed in the paragraph “Global offering and use
of proceeds” under the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis”.
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KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS

The Group owns only 49% of the equity interests of its operating
companies, Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for Buildings
Underes (“Yuanda Kuwait”) and Yuanda Qatar Aluminium Industry
Engineering Co., W.L.L. (“Yuanda Qatar”), in Kuwait and Qatar
respectively, as both Kuwait and Qatar laws do not allow foreign
companies to own a majority interest in a local operating company.
The Group had no operation in Qatar prior to the establishment of
Yuanda Qatar and prior to the establishment of Yuanda Kuwait,
the Group supplied products to a local company for projects it
undertook in Kuwait.

Yuanda Kuwait

Under Kuwait law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority
interest in the local operating company. In order to enable it to
govern and control the financial and operation of Yuanda Kuwait
and capture its entire economic interest from its operations, the
Group entered into an agreement on 30 March 2009 (the “Kuwait
Incorporation Agreement”) with Mr. Mohamed Tareq Al Essa (the
“Kuwait Local Partner”), an independent third party, pursuant to
which the Kuwait Local Partner agreed to be the facilitator of the
Group in relation to the conduct of the Group’s business in Kuwait.
Pursuant to the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, the Kuwait Local
Partner has declared that:

° all the capital and assets belong to Shenyang Yuanda;

° he has no share (and hence no voting rights) or the right to
get any share in Yuanda Kuwait or any entitlement to the
profit of Yuanda Kuwait;

° he is not involved in the day-to-day operation of Yuanda
Kuwait, save for assisting Yuanda Kuwait with coordination
with the local government authorities;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and

collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Kuwait
under the management of Shenyang Yuanda;
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

° he would not be held liable for any losses; and

° the above terms in the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
irrevocable for three years effective from the date of signing
and will be automatically renewed for a similar period unless
and until terminated by both parties with a notice at least 90
days in advance.

Through the above arrangement, the Group is able to control the
operation of Yuanda Kuwait. As advised by the legal advisors of the
Company as to Kuwait law, the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid and binding to its parties and constitutes legally binding
and enforceable obligations against the Kuwait Local Partner under
Kuwait law and is in compliance with the laws and regulations
of Kuwait. Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant
accounting standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Kuwait into
its consolidated financial statements as a wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the annual report of the
Company in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011,
notwithstanding that the Company considers that it is able to
effectively operate and conduct the business of Yuanda Kuwait
under the present arrangement, the Company has undertaken that
in order to protect the interests of the Company, it will introduce
further measures, including using our best efforts to amend the
terms of the Kuwait Incorporation Agreement, by entering into
supplemental agreements that would include, among others,
revisions that the Kuwait Local Partner will not transfer any of
its shares in Yuanda Kuwait without the prior written consent of
the Company, it will vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Kuwait in
accordance with the instruction of the Company, and if there shall
be any change to the Kuwait laws or regulations and/or policies
such that a foreign entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority
interest in Yuanda Kuwait, it will promptly transfer its relevant
interest in Yuanda Kuwait to the extent permitted by the then
applicable laws or regulations to Shenyang Yuanda to enable the
Company to become the majority shareholder of Yuanda Kuwait.
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EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Kuwait (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there
will not be any legal consequences assumed by the Company
arising solely as a result of the Company'’s failure to enter into the
supplemental agreements to implement these additional measures.
However, in order to better protect the Company’s interests,
the Company will search for a replacement for its existing local
partner who is willing to enter into a cooperation agreement with
the Company that will contain the terms of the abovementioned
additional measures which are in compliance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still in
negotiation with the Kuwait Local Partner on the implementation of
the above additional measures and the Company will disclose any
measures implemented and/or replacement of existing local partner
in the Company’s future annual reports.

Yuanda Qatar

Under Qatar law, the Group is not allowed to own a majority
interest in the local operating company. In order to enable the
Company to govern and control the financial and operation of
Yuanda Qatar and capture its entire economic interest from its
operations, the Company has entered into the memorandum of
association of Yuanda Qatar dated 20 January 2008 (the “Qatar
Articles”) with Mr. Ahmed Omar Bbhaa Ahmed (the “Qatar Local
Partner”), an independent third party, and an agreement dated
September 16, 2007 (the “Qatar Incorporation Agreement”)
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and Actrade for Trading &
Contracting, a company of which the Qatar Local Partner was the
authorized signatory with respect to the governing of the operation
of Yuanda Qatar.
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

Pursuant to the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement, Yuanda Qatar was established and held as to 51%
by the Qatar Local Partner and as to 49% by Shenyang Yuanda.
Pursuant to the Qatar Articles:

° representatives of Shenyang Yuanda are responsible for
managing the company during the entire term of its existence;

° profits of the company will be distributed as to 95% to
Shenyang Yuanda and as to 5% to the Qatar Local Partner;

The Qatar Articles were supplemented by the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement pursuant to which it was agreed that:

° the Qatar Local Partner will facilitate Shenyang Yuanda to
conduct business in Qatar;

o instead of receiving dividends from Yuanda Qatar, the Qatar
Local Partner will be paid an annual service fee of US$40,000
plus a scalable commission calculated based on 1% to 5% of
the contract value of projects that Yuanda Qatar won with the
assistance of the Qatar Local Partner;

° the dividends declared by Yuanda Qatar may be used to
offset and settle any service fees due or payable to the Qatar
Local Partner;

° save for assisting Yuanda Qatar with coordination with the
local government authorities, the Qatar Local Partner is not
involved in the day-to-day operations of Yuanda Qatar;

° all works in relation to tendering, execution of contracts and
collection of proceeds are carried out by Yuanda Qatar under
the management of Shenyang Yuanda.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Qatar (continued)

As advised by the legal advisors of the Company as to Qatar law,
subject to the Qatar Articles, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
legal, valid, binding and enforceable under Qatar law, and as the
Qatar Incorporation Agreement and the Qatar Articles are related
to the same subject matter, the Qatar Incorporation Agreement is
considered to be an explanatory to the Qatar Articles under Qatar
law. The Company’s legal advisors as to Qatar law has further
advised that the Qatar Articles is a validly binding and legally
enforceable document and constitutes legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of the parties thereto with respect to the
governance of the affairs of Yuanda Qatar and is in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations of Qatar and the Qatar
Incorporation Agreement is enforceable against the Qatar Local
Partner.

The Company entered into this arrangement in Qatar in order to
enable it to control and operate Yuanda Qatar and capture the
economic interest from its operations, and these are supported by
the following terms in the Qatar Articles and the Qatar Incorporation
Agreement:

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are entitled to
similar responsibilities and authorities in Yuanda Qatar as
board members in other subsidiaries of Shenyang Yuanda;

° the representatives from Shenyang Yuanda are responsible
for managing Yuanda Qatar during the entire term of its
existence and they may not be removed without the approval
from Shenyang Yuanda;

° resolutions of the shareholders of Yuanda Qatar will only be

valid by approval from a majority of the shareholders holding
75% of the shares in Yuanda Qatar;
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Report of the Board of Directors

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)

Yuanda Qatar (continued)

° Yuanda Qatar is managed exclusively by Shenyang Yuanda
and its representatives for the period of its existence.
Shenyang Yuanda and its representatives shall have full and
absolute authority and exclusive right to manage and operate
the business of Yuanda Qatar. Such powers are irrevocable
and the Qatar Local Partner may not intervene in managing
the company or bind or commit Yuanda Qatar in any way
whatsoever except with prior written consent from Shenyang
Yuanda;

° Pursuant to the Qatar Articles, the profits of Yuanda Qatar
will be distributed as to 95% to Shenyang Yuanda and as
to 5% the Qatar Local Partner, while the dividends declared
by Shenyang Yuanda may be used to offset and settle
any service fees due or payable under the management of
Shenyang Yuanda under the Qatar Incorporation Agreement.

Based on the above, and in accordance with relevant accounting
standards, the Group consolidated Yuanda Qatar into its
consolidated financial statement as a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group.

As disclosed in the Prospectus and subsequent annual reports
of the Company, notwithstanding that the Company considers
that it is able to effectively operate and conduct the business of
Yuanda Qatar under the present arrangement, the Company has
undertaken that in order to protect the interests of the Company,
it will introduce further measures, including using its best efforts
to amend the terms of the Qatar Incorporation Agreement, by
entering into supplemental agreements that would include, among
others, provisions that the Qatar Local Partner will not transfer
any of its shares in Yuanda Qatar without the Company’s prior
written consent, it will vote for any resolutions of Yuanda Qatar in
accordance with our instruction, and if there shall be any change
to the Qatar laws or regulations and/or policies such that a foreign
entity becomes legally entitled to hold a majority interest in Yuanda
Qatar, it will promptly transfer its relevant interest in Yuanda Qatar
to the extent permitted by the then applicable laws or regulations to
Shenyang Yuanda to enable the Company to become the majority
shareholder in Yuanda Qatar.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

KUWAIT AND QATAR OPERATIONS (continued)
Yuanda Qatar (continued)

If the above additional measures cannot be implemented, there will
not be any legal consequences to the Company arising solely as
a result of our failure to enter into the supplemental agreements to
implement these additional measures. However, in order to better
protect the Company’s interests, the Company will search for a
replacement for its existing local partner who is willing to enter into
a cooperation agreement with the Company that will contain the
terms of the abovementioned additional measures which are in
compliance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is still negotiation
with the Qatar Local Partner on the implementation of the above
additional measures and the Company will disclose any measures
implemented and/or replacement of its existing local partner in its
future annual reports.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.20 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules
regarding the provision of advances by the Company to an entity.
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Report of the Board of Directors

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group in
the past five years is set out on page 276 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive rights in the Articles
of Association of the Company or the ordinance of Cayman
Islands, stipulating that any new shares shall be offered according
to the respective shareholding of the existing shareholders of the
Company when new shares are issued by the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief to which shareholders
the Company are entitled by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Group and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Group maintained adequate public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR
The Company has appointed KPMG as the auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Company will submit

a resolution in the coming annual general meeting to re-appoint
KPMG as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Kang Baohua
Chairman

24 April 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance

RiR - HERERERE

INTRODUCTION

This is the ESG report of Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The principal activities of the Group
are the design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

The Company believes that this ESG Report enables the Company
to communicate the Group’s sustainability related matters in a
transparent and accountable manner, which is key to gaining
the trust of its stakeholders. The Group is committed to making
continuous contribution to the sustainable development in China
and overseas, and fulfilling corporate social responsibilities at
various operational levels. This ESG Report provides an overview
of the Group’s performance related to sustainable development
in the areas of the environment, community, employment and
labor practices and operation convention for the year ended 31
December 2019, with a coverage of the Company’s PRC office and
its operation sites in overseas.

Reporting standard and scope

This ESG Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide as set forth under Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. A detailed ESG content index has been included at the back
of this report to aid the reader and facilitate greater transparency.
This ESG Report describes the initiatives of the Group and its
progress with regard to ESG issues for the period from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in four
production bases located in Shenyang, Chengdu, Foshan and
Shanghai in Mainland China from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019, unless otherwise stated.

The Company has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions

set out in the ESG Reporting Guide for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

Role of Board Meeting

The Board of the Group is the highest governance body for
the ESG work which is responsible for the ESG matters and is
responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the established ESG
risk management system and an internal control system, as well as
assessing and approving the annual ESG report.

In accordance with the requirements of the Group, all departments
and subsidiaries are responsible for communicating with their
relevant stakeholders and identifying stakeholders’ concerns
on sustainability initiatives. Besides, relevant departments are
responsible for collecting ESG information and data, adhering to
the plan of the Group. The Company regularly compiles the ESG
data of the entire Group, in order to review and supervise related
performance.

Operating in compliance with the laws

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure basically
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on its operations, including but not limited to laws and
regulations in relation to product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection and employment and occupational safety. The
management will monitor the impact for any changes in the relevant
laws and regulations from time to time and seek external advice if
considered necessary.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

RiR - HERERERE

Materiality identification and communication with stakeholders

The Group’s operations involve a wide range of environmental and
social issues. The Company refers to the ESG Reporting Guide
issued by the Stock Exchange to identify the Group’s material
topics through the process of identification, prioritisation, validation
and review.

Based on the guideline mentioned above, peer analysis and media
coverage, the Company has identified 18 potential material topics,
covering corporate governance, environment, employment and
labor, community and operation practice. The Company then
invited various stakeholders to assess the importance of potential
topics.

Stakeholders are groups which directly related to the Group’s ESG
and play an important role in the Group’s decision-making process.
The Group has always been committed to various communication
and dialogue with all stakeholders via different communication
channels for different stakeholders, so as to understand their
needs, collect their opinions, share and discuss various issues
closely related to the development of the Group, and to actively
respond to the opinions and appeals of the stakeholders in the
course of the operation, and achieve the Group’s overall and
sustainable development.

The Group communicates with its stakeholders to understand their
concerns, and regularly reviews the effectiveness of the relevant
actions and improves communication channels to gain a broader
and more intensive understanding of its stakeholder’s opinions.
The following table set out the issues that different stakeholder
categories are particularly concerned about and the materiality
analysis:
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Table 1

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

Topics that stakeholders are primarily concerned about

Stakeholder
Categories

Employees

Shareholders/
Investors

Government
authorities

Subcontractors

Proprietors

Suppliers

Communities

Topics that stakeholders are
primarily concerned about

Compliant operation

Quality guarantee
Remuneration and benefits
Health and safety

Care career development of
employees

Compliant operation
Quality assurance of on-going
profitable projects

Compliant operation
Promote local employment
and economic and social
development

Fulfill social responsibility.

Compliant operation
The environmental impact of
construction work

Qualty guarantee
Protection of commercial
information

Provide satisfied services

Industry participation
Requirements of suppliers
on environmental and social
influence

Supply chain management
Keep good cooperative
relations

Charity

Promote local employment
and economic and social
development

Communication or
response methods

o Trainings on regulations

o Solicit rational suggestions

o Survey on the development of
employees and their satisfaction

o Workers’ congress

o Day-to-day work communication

o Shareholder general meeting

o (Obtain permits for projects

o Communicate through meetings

o Formulate specifications and
exchange of ideas

o Special topic meeting (report) and
information reporting

o Business communication with
counterpart departments

o Dally communication throughout
the process, including changes of
design and construction

o Communication of sales and
inspection

¢ Documents and mails

o Customer assessment and
management

o Daily transactions

o Qualification review

¢ Communication throughout the
tendering and bidding process

o Charity activities
o Activities to promote community’s
development

FHE

Bm A B THE

RHAAR

g1

BR/
&%

HITHiE

Xz

HE

BRAEY BERT
BIgE HEELR
¢ ARER o HEE
o BERE o kAR EE
o EHEN o BTRRBENER
o BEZZ ThEE#RE
o BIRIRER o 1%
o BEIEER
o ARER o EEAE
o RERFEE
HERE
o AfREE o BEEHER
o EEMEHE o 2HER
HEENEE o REDITEHT
E B9
o AECEIRE o ZBeEEEA
£ EE#Z
o HOHMEK
BR

. ApEE
¢ EIHESH

v AEEE
o HEREIOR o
R-HEPE o
i
Z N

o HERER
o RIFAHEBE

o RREE .
o EEHIRE e
BRI e%

E

B BB R A ]

TSEAN2ER

AERIR
HERREZR

EHERE
FEHERER

NS

EEHRERED

ZE IR

77



78

Environmental, Social and Governance
s HERERBRE

Table 2

Identification of topics

Category

Corporate governance

Environment

Employment and labour

Community

Operation practice

No.

S~ W N —

o N O O

Topics

Compliant operation

Risk management

Prohibit bribery and corruption
Stakeholder communication

Establishment of environmental management systems
Energy-saving and emission reduction

Resource recycling

Green concept

Remuneration and welfare system
Occupational safety

Training and career development
Caring about employees

Public welfare and charity
Volunteer activities of employees

Product responsibility and project quality assurance
Supply chain management

Requirements of suppliers on environmental and social impact

Intellectual rights protection
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Chart 1
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE - HSRERRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A.

The Group proactively responses to the national
environmental protection policies with an objective (i) to
reduce the adverse effect that the operational production
may bring to the environment; and (ii) to ensure the
harmonious development of the Group and environmental
sustainability. The Group strives to reduce energy and other
energy consumption, reduce waste emissions, to fully utilise
recyclable resources, increase area of greening and introduce
the concept of green environmental protection in the Group’s
products.

A.1  Energy preservation and emission reduction

The Group always concerns itself with environmental
protection and works on energy saving and emission
reduction.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
strengthened energy saving, emission reduction and
waste reduction in various aspects of its production
process as follows:

Related policy and
Production process Management method

Product Design e The Company has instilled the
concept of green-building into the
products and gained the certification
of green building materials and
products.

Choice of Supplier e Suppliers are asked to provide
environmental assessment reports or
guarantee of environmental protection
to help suppliers to enhance energy
conservation and emissions reduction
in production.

e Purchasing materials according
to order demand, the Company
preferentially chooses the nearby
suppliers to reduce the energy
consumption of delivery.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

BR

KEERE ERZRIRRERBK
REE(NFEELLEELNREA
BRERNANTE - R()EREE
BRIRFEA BN MR SR - £6
ZHR DR KB EIREERE -
A BEEI BRI~ T MABIRF A
AIEREREIR - IR E AL
78 « HEmMmKRRT T HEEZABIRR
B e

A1 ERRE R BRI ETBI D

B EEE SRR
REREEEE -

B E2019F12A318 * £E
EAELEEMN R ERAINRENE
WPENE

RBBE
LEREG  REENE

EmRst o BHR2AIREE
FEAT - LEM
% - BEERD
REG(RerE
EREmEH) -

IR o EERMfERE 8
BE

iR BNHERHRRE
AEEIERRE
RE - EMRER
BT ERER

e

o REITEBLRE
M BRERER
TORER - B
YIRELRRERE
o



Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1 Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued)

Production process

Production

Related policy and

Management method

Dust Control: For dust generated
during our sealant processing, the
Company uses filters to control and
recover dust. For dust generated
during our spraying process, the
Company have adopted both filter
method and cyclone method to
control and recover dust.

Noise Control: The Company
adopted various measures to
control the noise generated from
our production process, including
implementation of shock absorption,
appropriate design of factory layout,
and cultivation of plants at our
production facilities.

Waste Water Control: Waste
water generated from our spraying
process is gathered and reused in
our spraying process in a closed
loop after flotation, flocculation,
sedimentation and other procedures.
The Company also generate waste
water during material pre-treatment
in our production. Such waste water
is discharged into municipal sewage
processing plant after flocculation,
sedimentation, sand filtration, carbon
filtration and other procedures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

RiR - HERERERE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1 Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued)

Related policy and

Production process

Policies °

Management method

Air Emission Control: The air must
be purified before emission and
shall meet the relevant requirements
stipulated by the laws. Air emissions
generated during the production
process of the Group include nitrogen
oxide, particulates, sulphur dioxide
and organic waste gas (benzene and
xylene).

Regularly conduct a comprehensive
energy audit to analyse the energy
management, discover weakness
in energy utilization and give
suggestions for improvements.

The Group is effectively operating the
Environmental Management System
ISO14001 : 2004.

The Group implemented “Safe,
saving energy and reducing
consumption” management in all
the operation sites to regulate the
behaviour of employees and lower
energy consumption. Production
planning department reasonably
arrange the production shift to avoid
racing production equipment and
electric usage at rush hour. All the
office room equipped with the curtain
wall to ensure efficient usage of
sunlight and save energy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A RIB(E
A.1  Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued) A1 Eige e A (B)
Related policy and HBBR
Production process  Management method EERE REESE
¢ The Group has a comprehensive o SERVTHRAE
non-hazardous treatment and re- ERBNENRZ
utilisation system to recycle and re- FARR R T
use the waste AASERMELE
ERBHELNE
% o
In 2019, the Company has not been challenged or 20194 + AR aRAXEME
questioned by any competent government authorities A FERAE B BT S ok 82
of relevant bodies in relation to issue on environmental BHER S| RIRIB) S LAERHR
pollution caused by emission. R FFARE
Plan for the year 2020 2020F 5T El
e Toincrease our transparency by developing o FIEIBBTIFIARIAAEE
company-wide guidelines for energy consumption, TRERES| - ARETS
as well as setting greenhouse gas emission target BLA2020%F F|2022 5 #Y
of 3% reduction from 2020 to 2022. BRERBHRAEDZ=
REE - EINERE -
e To further reduce paper use by enhancing the o EBEREPEAEALER
paperless system for internal communications. o E— PR -

BRTEERARAR | ZZ—JURER 83



84

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE - HSRERRE

A.

A

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Energy and resource Consumption and Pollutant

Emissions of the Group

The main greenhouse gas emissions of the Group
are carbon dioxide, nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide
and particulate matter which are monitored to ensure
compliance with standards before being discharged.
The Company was removed from the closely-monitoring
list for organic waste gas by environmental government

Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued)

authorities for optimization of production process.

Table 3

Resources consumption of the Group

Annual Consumption of 2019

20192 FHEE

Consumption Intensity/Thousand

yuan revenue during 2019

EREEE /ST 20195 AE K

Annual Consumption of 2018

2018 2 F B2

Consumption Intensity/Thousand

yuan revenue during 2018

EREEE, /BT T2018FAEK

Power

consumption

(KWH)
(FRH)
11,490,376

2.84

13,881,845

3.01
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A.

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A

Energy preservation and emission reduction (continued)

Table 4
Indlirect emissions of the Group

Co,
emissions
(kg)
bt |47
B E
(F=)
Annual emissions of 2019 12,162,349*
2019 2 FHEME
Emissions Intensity/Thousand yuan 3.01
revenue during 2019
BEREE /BT T2019F &K
Annual emissions of 2018 15,498,060 *
2018 F 2 FHHME
Emissions Intensity/Thousand yuan 3.36
revenue during 2018
P E,/ BT T2018F A&
* Scope 1 -Co2 from the combustion of petroleum,

diesel, kerosene and LPG is about 706,444 kg; Scope 2
—Co2 from the use of purchased electricity and thermal

power is about 11,455,905 Kkg.

A. BEE

Al ERRERBERRIR A ()

No

X

emissions
(k9)
AEY
BHE
(F=)

434,334

0.1

563,777

0.12

*~1%4

EEFEEHY
So, Particulate
emissions matter
(kg) (kg)

—&E

BEmE LEp Ry
(F%) (F3)
344,711 3,125,382
0.09 0.77
416,455 3,775,862
0.09 0.82

* HER#@E—RERERANA
o S - BB ARE A
SRR - #9706,444F
7 BB RERERAN
BE - INBRINER -
#911,455,905F 5% °
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.2 Green concept

In order to be more effective in utilisation of resources
and achieve waste reduction and environmental
protection, all the operation sites of the Group began to
implement ‘Green’ office, ‘Green’ material and ‘Green’
filing management. Employees are also encouraged
to save documents, files and product information
electronically and go paperless, thus resolving the
difficulty in file searching and management and realising
resources sharing. In term of production technology,
selects and uses lighter and more environmental-friendly
materials to ease the burden to the environment.

The Group focuses on the greening of production
bases. In 2019, total carbon dioxide annually absorbed
by green plants was about 595,378 kg (2018: about
634,570 kg) which was due to the resumption of land in
Foshan.

Table 5
Green planting area

2019

Green area

of the base

ZLER*

Production base in Shenyang 95,000 m*
BISEEEM

Production base in Chengdu 8,167 m
X B A 2 A

Production base in Foshan 480t
B8 1 L EEE A

Production base in Shanghai 2,5783m’
EeEEEM

*

Including rented area.
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A. BRE(E

A2

Absorbed
Co,(kg)
K=
{bHz 2 (kg)

595,378

RERD

RTEERNAEIR - Z2
WO BEMMRERE A&
B pr AR MR E R E ]
RE - [FEIMHRNERE] S
BEE BB TRFEFL
B IE - X MEMRE
B feMBBRAX R R ME IR
hHRE  BERERKLE -
REERMTHE - EEMER
FREBRRNMBARE R
BAYE-

REBEFEEEREMREL -
2019%F » EEEFRIK=
AL BREX) /595,378 F 7%
(2018 : 49/5634,570F %)
WA E B RZ L U AT
@5( o

&5
AREIERE R
2018
Green area Absorbed
of the base Co,(kg)
= ST g
ER{L TS {EHRE (Kg)
100,000m" 634,570
8,167’
4,000n"
25,783n?

* eEEERRKE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A.3 Waste management

Due to the industry attributes, main wastes of the
Group are non-hazardous wastes other than hazardous
wastes. The non-hazardous wastes are mainly the
waste metal, waste paint, waste paper, waste timber
even the waste packing materials which the Group has
a comprehensive non-hazardous treatment and re-
utilisation system to recycle and re-use.

The company have strictly complied with the
Environmental Protection Law, Cleaner Production
Promotion Law, Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law, Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard, etc.
A designated department was set up to monitor the
wastewater discharge in daily production, to ensure
clean production.

The amount of industrial and domestic wastewater
discharged and concentration of pollutants are greatly
reduced after onsite treatment, recycling and reuse.
The company have established a sewage treatment
plant in the factory for treating chemicals to meet the
environmental standard before discharging to municipal
sewage pipe network according to regulations.

A.

R tEREBRE

B (&

A3 EEYIEIR

HRITEBEMRE - REBEE
REEVMBR REEERNM
FEEEEY BEEREVE
ERETE  BEAR - BEREK
FEAM R BEME - SEZL
THEBRZREMNBAARS
VA 131 48 A0 75 R 7| R 4 5 R 2R
) o

NAZEERRERELR) - (8
BEEREZR) - CKFRD
AR BOTKER A RIS EE
MEPAERER - RUFMNT
YERRPT - Y B E A ERIBEKEE
PMUETTESS - BEIRBRAE -

T EEREK R A TR KSR A B
BRERBAE  KBERE
FEKBEEFS2MBE © I
WERS/KEEER - BERRAET
EITLERIE  EFIRREZ
% FARETEHRMETBUS
KEH -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A RE(E
A.3  Waste management (continued) A3 BEVMEIR(E)
Table 6 &I%6
Waste recycling management JER I FE
2019 2018
Other Qther

Metal Wood  Plasic Paper  waste Metal Wood Plasic Paper waste

1 I R 5 M E A ZH & Et

Recycling weight kg) -production

base in Shenyang 4078548 1,112455 497,286 127,500 588,380 6,297,104 1482240 388602 423627 1,249,392
EREER-IUEE ()
Recycling weight kg) -production

base in Foshan 186,700 28,797 7430 6260 1,767 1067850 185554 55510 31840 384,180
fhlEE - NEE (ko)
Recycling weight kg) -production

base in Chengdu 138,795 - - 150 186,151 - - 3,000 -
RELERS-RNEE ()
Recycling weight kg) -production

base in Shanghai 654,237 24,149 12615 13,200 801983 29827 7266 4152 7000
HEEERS-IREE (k)

A4 Impact of climate change A4 RIS LR Z

The Company puts strong emphasis on the impacts $ﬂﬂ§ﬁ* = =
that climate change may have on daily operations BREERHE  BRRE
identifying risks related to climate changes and “{MEF%H s R HETIES
conducting preliminary scenario analysis. DTS -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A4

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

Impact of climate change (continued)

No.
R BR 4R

Risk Type
Bk SR

Frequent extreme
weather

im AR IA%

Frequent extreme
weather

Bim R RSB

Technology
transformation

U

Technology
transformation

e

Impact aspects
FEEE

Business
operation

HE
S
ey
IS

Supply chain

et

Business
operation

Supply chain

e

A. BEE

Ad FI

Risk description
[ B 3t

e Extreme weather damages
projects under construction
or completed projects

o RARBEHEEXDE
XA B

e Affects the speed of project
construction by sub-
contractors

o Affects the normal supply of
materials with soaring price
of construction material

o FEIRNBHETER
BREE

o FEMHLERHE &M
B& L7t

e Peers increase investment
in green buildings, existing
inventories face the risk of
being replaced

o RFEMAHIRBEENK
A BEFEHERER
A

e The supply chain is
unable to support future
construction requirements
that need to deal with more
severe weather conditions

o HEBEIXERRTRE
HERHRRIENHEE
2%

REHLRE ()

Impact analysis
L2 ik

Decrease in revenue: affects
some business operations
Increase in expenditure:
repairs to damaged
construction
WARD - HDEBLER
T

XHEM - EERBRE

Increase in operation cost:
delays in completion of
projects, construction cost
increases

LEMRAIEN : TIRE TR
MiEt% - TR R A N

Depreciation of existing
inventroies

Increase in operation cost:
application of BIM technology
CERFERFRE
EIERAILIN : BIME &)
25!

(i@l I

Increase in operating
expenses: increase
procurement costs for new
suppliers

REBRIEN - R YDE
R R SRR A
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group’s sustainability and development cannot be
separated from the value of its employees. The Group strives
to continuously establish and improve its staff management
system, including the recruitment of quality employees,
establish and improve the welfare system to provide
employees with a safe working environment, improve the
professional development of employees with an objective that
employees can grow together with the Company.

Provide a good Clear job description, appointment criteria and
working environment  performance appraisal standards

to attract outstanding

employees

Cultivate staff Regular business training and education
development

Well-being of Conduct regular physical examination, games,
employees convenient staff commuting and sudden disaster

weather timely evacuation

Importance of work Regular equipment maintenance, safety training,

safety dangerous operating practices
Promote a fair and Anti-corruption, anti-discrimination awareness of
honest corporate publicity, reporting as well as internal audit and

culture other measures
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.1

Working Environment

To enable the growth and development of the Group’s
employees, the Group strives to build a collaborative
and harmonious working environment. The Company
rewards its employees with competitive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits which commensure with
their experience and job task. Staff members are also
informed of requirements on expected professional
conduct. The Company adheres to the “fairness,
equality, diversity” principle for its staff management
and does not tolerate discrimination or harassment in
any form, and allow its staff members to realise their full
potential at work.

The Company adopted a transparent system for
assessing staff performance. At the end of each
year, the Company will appraise the performance of
all employees, and together with the results of the
assessment results and employees’ personal desire
to adjust their job nature and pay arrangement as
appropriate.

In terms of talent recruitment, the Group attracts the
best talents through various channels such as social
recruitment, internal recommendation and campus
recruitment, and strengthen the talent deployment
between different regions. All employment with the
Group is voluntary. The Group complies with national
and local laws and all employees are voluntary and do
not employ any child labor. The Group is dedicated to
ensuring that operations remain free from child labor,
and is developing systems and procedures to handle
the management of such incidents. Should a child be
discovered working on our premises, he or she will
immediately be transported back to their hometown
or place of origin. The Group will then file necessary
documentation with the local authorities while
consulting with the child’s guardians on avenues for his
or her return to school.

B.

EBEREIRE(E

B.1

THERE

BREEEME TR RME
B’ SEBIREY—ERE
/)~ FIREE) THEIRIE - Al
BEEEZENFMFEARES
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.2 Cultivate Staff Development

The Company encourages its staff to undertake training
and further studies to enhance their job-related skills
and knowledge. This training shall contribute to a
more productive and effective workforce that is able
to address the challenges that the Company may
face as a company. In 2019, the Company further
improved the Company’s training management system.
The Company uses internal and external training
resources to actively organize 4-level education and
trainings covering “company level”, “headquarter level”,
“subsidiary level” and “department level”.

Changes in social and business environments may
require updated skill sets to deal with new market
opportunities. The Group has devoted plenty resources
in offering staff training and development programmes.
The Company encourages continuous learning via
training and further studies to enhance our staff’s job-
related skills and knowledge. It does not only increase
staff satisfaction and reduce staff turnover but also
enhances ability for staff to adapt to change.

The Company also has a strong desire to develop
its own pool of talents in view of the uniqueness
and diversity of its business. The Company provides
graduates with the opportunity to make their way up in
their career as qualified professionals. Other training,
such as seminars, workshops and technical visits are
aligned to the specific needs of individuals, covering
professional development as well as management and
technical skills.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total trainings
organized by the Group were more than 3,000 person
time. The Company also built E-platform for sharing
training materials for employees to study anytime and
anywhere.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.2

B.3

Cultivate Staff Development (continued)

Employees Type of trainings

Management level ~ Managerial and compliance

Design department  Software operation

Workshop and Safety operation, safety installation training
construction site and raw material production

Sales department Business etiquette and language
Well-being of Employees

A healthy work-life balance is encouraged among the
Group’s staff members. The Company have organised
a wide array of staff activities including badminton
contest, ping pong contest and Yuanda Marathon,
amongst others, to cater to the diverse interests of its
employees.

As the fast pace and pressure of life, the Group and
the specialized medical institutions reached a long-
term cooperation agreement, pursuant to which staff
can enjoy a medical check-up and examination on an
annual basis. Further, the Company also arranged and
invited relevant medical specialists to the factory and
production site to arrange physical examination for staff
free-of-charge.
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B. EEREIR&(E

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.4 Occupational Safety B4 BELE

The health and safety of the Group’s employees
are of utmost concern. The Group has adopted
the Management System GB/T28001-
20110OHSAS18001 : 2007 as a standard to guide our
approach in mitigating occupational health and safety
hazards.

Different safety-related initiatives and measures
have been rolled out in the Group’s operations. Risk
assessments are also conducted to identify risks in
special working environments, while detailed safety
instructions have been formulated and communicated
to workers as part of their safety training sessions.
Safety officers are appointed to coordinate and
communicate safety-related matters to workers on site.

Safety In order to clarify the operational steps and

instructions risk points of each process, the Group has
prepared a number of safety instructions.

Training In order to ensure the safety of employees
in practice, the Group conducts training on
theory and field safety on a regular basis to
promote safety awareness.

Inspection Perform regular maintenance and inspection

on the production sits with higher tendency of
safety issues.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.4 Occupational Safety (continueqd)

B.5

Certification The Group has passed the GBT28001-2011/
OHSAS18001:2007 safety management
certification, during the process of which, a
comprehensive review of the Group’s safety
risks had been conducted and thorough

rectification.

Accountability Strengthen the Group’s safety management by
way of annual assessment of the responsible
person responsible the safety issue of each

workshop and production site.

The Group also seeks to influence its subcontractors
and collaborate with them to heighten their
understanding of safety concerns at the workplace.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there
was no confirmed material non-compliance incident
or grievance in relation to human rights and labour
practices. Reported headcount due to work related
injuries amounted to 17.

Fair and honest corporate culture

The Group adheres to high standards of business
ethics and integrity, all staff members are required to
abide by the requirements of professional conduct
specified in the employee’s handbook. Strict rules have
also been laid out on accepting gifts from business
partners during festive seasons.
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HERERRE
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued)

B.5

B.6

Fair and honest corporate culture (continued)

In order to promote a corporate culture with high
integrity standard, the Company not only regularly
conducts lectures on anti-corruption, it also encourages
all employees to participate in anti-corruption activities.
Complementing this effort is the implementation of an
anti-fraud policy as well as a whistle-blowing policy,
which provides a reporting channel for employees and
stakeholders such as customers, suppliers, amongst
others to report any misconduct or malpractice. During
the reporting year, there had been no confirmed case
of corruption.

Compliance

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had no material incidences of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding employment
and labour practices.

Plan for 2020

° To offer the opportunity to employees for
furthering their skills.

° To increase employees’ knowledge on health
protection and introduce health and hygiene
knowledge.
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B. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS (continued) B. ERREIREE

B.6 Compliance (continued) B.6 AMRH#E)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 4,016 HZE2019%F128318 » A&
employees. The formation of our staff was as follows: HEREAEEE4,016

A REREBRERWT

Table 7 RIRT
Employees of the Group EEFBTIEY
2019 2018
Number of Number of
employees employees
BETAH BT A
Total 4,016 4,604
B
Gender Male 3,426 3,928
gkl St
Female 590 676
g
Age Under the age of 30 283 451
RF e 30BRIA T
Between the age of 30 and 50 3,192 3,686
30-505%
Above the age of 50 541 467
508%A £
Region Northeast of China 3,013 3,384
1R = BRI R
Other regions 1,003 1,220
Hibib =
Job category Senior management 170 191
AR EILIE
Ordinary employee 3,846 4,413
ERET
The turnover rate of the company is 12.8%. KNATIABFREE E12.8% o
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OPERATION PRACTICES

Since establishment, the Group has been committed to
building and improving the supply chain of products. On
the basis of traditional curtain wall products, the Group
adopts relatively complex designs, uses new materials or
advanced technology to develop a variety of products, which
has proven to be able to provide different functions, such
as environmental protection, energy saving and intelligent
control. A comprehensive product supply has laid a solid
foundation for the Group’s development in the China and
overseas markets. In order to ensure products are of high
quality, the Group screens its suppliers strictly in terms of
quality provided, and pay close attention to maintain a good
relations of cooperation with customers to ensure efficient
and smooth operation of the Group.

C.1 Product responsibility

The Group performs a number of product performance
tests before, during and after installation to ensure a
high level of safety as follows:

Before Safety test for  The test will usually be conducted during the
installation  curtain wall embedment and after the embedment of the
connectivity curtain wall parts. The Group wil firstly apply

for testing, and then conduct sample testing
on site as approved by the site supervisor.
Testing will be conducted by a professional
testing company, which will issue a test report
to guide us on the rectification step thereafter,
if any.

Re-testing of  This is a quality test of curtain wall

materials components. The site supervisor will select
the material samples from the site. Thereafter,
samples will be sent to the laboratory
for chemical and physical testing, with
conclusions being delivered by the laboratory
with reference to the national and industry-
related standards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.1

Product responsibility (continued)

During
installation

Material
compatibility
testing

Curtain wall
performance
testing

Conformance
testing of
lightning
protection grid

This is a safety and performance test to
determine if the sealant and curtain wall
components have any bonding problems

or harmful chemical effects. Samples of
curtain wall components will be provided to
the relevant sealant manufacturers who wil
conduct the tests and provide written reports
to the Group.

This test is used to ensure that the
performance of the curtain wall in use, with
four basis tests to be conducted, including
wind pressure, water-tightness, air tightness,
in-plane deformation. Inspections may also
include insulation, sound insulation, seismic
and optical performance as part of the

test, as appropriate. Performance testing

is conducted by national laboratory with
reference to the relevant project curtain wall
performance and performance indicators.

The purpose of the test is to ensure that

people and property in the building will not
be damaged by lightning. Detection will be
carried out in each lightning protection grid.
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C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

Product responsibility (continued)

Strength

testing of
structural
adhesives

After On-site water
installation  spray test

In case of

possible

To be handled
complaint(s) as soon as

The structural adhesive is used to connect
the curtain wall panel and aluminum. This is
what is required to be done after applying the
structural adhesive and applying the sealant
to the curtain wall component.

This is a field test of whether the curtain wall
has water leakage, i.€., a five-minute water
spray test for each cross-connector.

\We attach enormous significance to customer
satisfaction and regard customers’ feedback
as the motivation for advancement and
innovation. Any complaint to our operation
sites will be recorded and dealt with
immediately.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
customers’ complaints rate of the Group is under 5%.

The Company will continue to enhance its product

quality to strive to reduce the number of complaints in

the future.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE-HERERKRE
C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued) C. WBEZ#E)

C.2  Supply chain management C2 HEEER

The Group relies on an extensive network of
suppliers and subcontractors to ensure the quality
and consistency of its services. The proactive
management of the Group’s supply chain helps the
Group mitigate and manage related risks that may
affect its operations. The Group continuously engages
with its subcontractors and raise their awareness on
occupational health and safety issues. The Group
also assesses its suppliers and subcontractors by
reviewing their services, product quality, safety, financial
performance on an annual basis. Substandard suppliers
and subcontractors will be suspended or even removed
from our approved vendor list. To ensure consistent
implementation of sustainable development across the
Company’s supply chain, in selecting suppliers, the
Company also takes into consideration their historical
performance in the social responsibility aspect, as well
as their environment management system and safety
management system.

The Company has established a very perfect supplier
evaluation system, evaluation factors include not only
the strength and credibility of the supplier, the quality
control system, technology, production capacity,
supply ability, management and product price, also
consider whether the factors such as environmental
protection, harmless to the human body. According
to the evaluation results, compiled annually qualified
supplier list, and qualified suppliers can be divided into A,
B, C three categories, the Company usually only buys
from this year’s list of qualified suppliers in the purchase
of raw materials, including class A is preferred, class C as
a last resort. In order to reduce carbon emissions in the
process of transportation and save the transportation
cost at the same time, the Company gives priority to
local quality qualified suppliers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE - HSRERRE

C. OPERATION PRACTICES (continued)

C.2

C.3

Supply chain management (continued)

Preliminary review of documents and discussion on
bidding proposals will be conducted. When the final
decision is made after deliberation, the Group will enter
into a purchase agreement with the selected supplier.

Necessary due diligence is also performed where
required, with site visits and verification of products or
services arranged to ensure that suppliers conform to
the Group’s high standards.

Table 8
Qualified suppliers of the Group

Number of suppliers

HEBHE

Geographical region

=i [
Northeast of China
LS4

Other regions of China
HitvE ™

Intellectual Rights Protection

In order to provide consumers with genuine high quality
products and protect our product and installation
method of intellectual property rights, in 2019, the
Group obtained 31 patents for utility model.
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Environmental, Social and Governance

COMMUNITY

The Group as a corporation, should take up and be
accountable for social responsibility. The Group actively
cares about the society and fulfills its corporate social
responsibilities. Ever since the establishment, the Group has
been maintaining close communications and interactions with
local communities in order to contribute to local development.
As a result of which, the Group actively participates in
community and government livelihood activities, to create a
harmonious society.

D.

R tEREBRE

HE

ER—HEAA  BZAELEE
o REBBEGBEOLEETE
FHEEMF - BRZNUKR  £B—
BERFEEMHERRYBEBNES
REEEEHAHER - Bt - SEE
BB B BT EREE - AEl
E—REMBETEERMNE -

Table 9 RI%9
Social responsibility activities HEEEEE
Date Main community activities
=p: FEED
2019-12-20 Organized long-distant race
=3iid)
2019-9-30 Chorus competition to celebrate the 70th anniversary of the founding of the People’s
Republic of China
HE70EFaBLLE
2019-7-18 Organized tug-of-war competition
POA L
2019-6 Charity activities in 14 children’s welfare homes in Liaoning Province
FEERNIARZERNEE O RRIAE)
2019-5-25 Organized the stride race
A E
2019-3-7 Organized free medical consultation clinic for female employees
TRIEDEY
2019-1-23 Arranged for employees’ return to their hometown to celebrate the Chinese New Year

FETIRBENE

In 2019, total expense of community activities is about
RMB4.0 million paid by Yuanda Federation of trade union
which is responsible for all the employees’ interests in the
Company and the companies controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder.

2019F - HEHETEHB T HNA
ARBLOBETHERNET SN —
T o BALT@UARA T RIER

RIS EMARNEEETH
HEE o
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Environmental, Social and Governance

RiR - HERERERE

E AWARDS AND HONOR

The Company have long been striving for innovation and
providing qualified products to customers. In 2019, the
Company was awarded the following awards and honors:

Date Main honors

A TRRERR

2019-12-10  Awarded with Luban Prize for construction project
for 2018-2019

2018-2019F EH BIZR TIZ BT
2019-11 Qutstanding companies for industrial product with
green design

TEEmMGORTREEE
2019-7-29  Top 20 international contractor for construction
projects
IMEAB T REEEETIREF205E
2019-7-27  Top 225 international companies for construction
design
BIFR T2 5T A R12255%
2019-2-22  Top 100 Chinese companies ordered by amount
of newly-awarded overseas contract

2018 F B IR B TR EMRF A RREA
100K (b
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EERERKE

RE—HENKEIF - BRPRHE
DEMER o 20195 « HAFIHS
TATHER AR -

Awards Sponsor

EMEM

Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the People’s Republic
of China and China Construction
Industry Association

EE MM Z R - PEREX DS
Ministry of industry and information
technology of the people’s Republic of
China

FrEE A REFIE T 1= B E
China International Contractors
Association

REIEINEBEE

American Engineering News Record

R (TA2FTE R EE)

Department of foreign investment and
economic cooperation, Ministry of
Commerce

RIS BRI IMR B MBS VER]



Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations having a BIIHANTREEARSEMNMEBEERE

significant impact on the Company R

Corresponding
Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
[EmE BRANEERZER HEEH
Emissions Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control AA

B

Use of Resources

BEREA

Environmental and
natural resources

BRRERRAARER

of Atmospheric Pollution

(hE ARLFBIARTREE)

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China

(R ARHKFBIKG R AE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes
(PEARANBE B RBREEYSRRENEE)

Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(PEE A RHEME TS EHRE)

Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China
(hEARLNBIEZEEREZE)

Directory of National Hazardous Wastes

(BxREREY R

Integrated Emission Standards of Air Pollutants
(KRB RMER A HEUREE)

Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards

Ok a BERURAE)

Standards on Storage and Pollution Control of Hazardous Wastes
(FEREEMRTE) 5 R EIRE)

Administrative Regulations on Environmental Protection for
Development Projects

GERIE B RIRREE RGN

Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China A2,A3
(hE ARLMBELDETRE)

Circular Economy Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China

(P EE AR EAMBEIEIRCEREE)

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China A2

(PEARRNMBREREE)
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE - HSRERRE

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations having a
significant impact on the Company (continueqd)

Aspect
Em

Employment

(]

Labour standards

BITXR

Health and safety
BEEZE

Product
responsibilities
EmEE

Anti-corruption

k&R

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has
complied with the above laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company.

B

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRKERRER

Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(R AR AT S E%)
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

(hEARANBELEE RIE)

Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour
(EILEAETARE)
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors

(REARAMBARKE AMREE)

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARANBEL 2 HEE)
Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China

(R ARZRBENE)
Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARANMBEEREEE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests

(hEARKNBEEE RS REE)

Intellectual Property Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEEARAFBI AR ERE)

Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
(pEARLTBEZRE)

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China

(P EE A RAFIEITHE)

Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARANBIRTEEHFE)

e
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ESG content index

Aspect
=]

A. Environmental
ARE
A1 Emission

A1 BB

A2 Use of Resources

A2ERER

KPI
B

Al

AA

A1.2

A1.3

A14

A1.5

A1.6

A2

A21

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

ESG# 5|

Description

g

General Disclosure
—MRIKER
Types of emissions and respective emissions data
HEp e A AR R BUR -
Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate,
intensity
RERBAYHRER (WER)ZRE
Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate,
intensity
FELBEREEYEE R (WER)EE
Total non-hazardous waste produced and where
appropriate, intensity
FEABERZRMEENTE
Measure to mitigate emissions and results achieved
i BIRBE 2 R i SR P IS AR
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
R ERIR A ENEEEZMN L  RIEEEENTEHE
KPriSAR

General Disclosure

—MRBEE

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total
and intensity

RERESMEER SHEEREEERTE

Water consumption in total and intensity

RFEKERTE

Energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved
B IR PR e st & R PSR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
FEIUSKEGE R/KR LRI EAIRERE - AR RKER
BE ISGIEEIES

Total packaging material used for finished products

HRmAABEMHNEE R (NER) SEEEMLGS

Remarks

BE

Al.1

Table 4
*~1%4
Table 4

&HI%4
Not Applicable

TEA
A.3, Table 6

A.3,71%6
A.2, Table 5
=I%5
A.3,Table 6

A.3,5k156

A
A1, Table 3
A1,5R71E3
A1, Table 3
A1,5RIE3
A1

A1, Table 3

A1, RS

A3
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Environmental, Social and Governance
RE - HSRERRE

ESG content index (continued) ESGZ 3| (&
Aspect KPI Description Remarks
B BEE i Bx
A3 The Environment A3 General Disclosure A
and Natural
Resources
ABRIER RAREIR —MRIXEE
A3.1 Significant impacts of activities on the environment and A.1, Table 1
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them A.2, Table 5
HAEFEBHRBELRAERNEAZERDRXDNE  A1,KRB
BEMTENTTE A.2,51%5
A4 The climate Ad General Disclosure A4
change
A4SRIREL — MR EE A4
Ad A Description of the significant climate-related issues which A4

have impacted, and those which may impact the issuer, and

the actions taken to manage them.

HAE R ENFRHBETAELETENEAREEEE A4
B RESHTH -

B. Social

B.itE
Employment and
Labour Practices

ERERSE TEA
B1 Employment B1 General Disclosure B
B1{E{& — MR EE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group B.6 Table7
and geographical region
BRI EEEE - FiRER MtREIDEB B B.6& &7
B.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and B.6
geographical region.
RIS EEERE - FRERNEEEIDHEEREE B
B2 Health and Safety B2 General Disclosure B.1
B2 ZZ —MRIKEE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities B.4
BT EREMmE T A AB L B.4
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury B.4
EIEEAIERH B.4
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ESG content index (continued)

Aspect
=]

B3 Development and

Training

B3 /& K&

B4 Labour Standards

B4%5 T %8|

Operating Practices

B5 Supply Chain

Management
B5{itfESE T E

KPI
B

B2.3

B3

B3.1

B3.2

B4.1

B4.2

B5

B5.1

B5.2

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

ESG% 3| (&

Description

i pul

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored
RUMPTER AN A BB R R B 22 245 7 - DA N |RT T M B
BITE

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category

RUERREERRESNEIEER DT

Average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category

BRI MEEERIED - BRREE TKE NI

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour

i HEE HIV B pE AR e B T MR H| %5 T

Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered
HEEIRE RIS ERE T KR H55 TERPTRE

General Disclosure

— MR EE

Number of suppliers by geographical region
iR e SRR A

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored
AR AHEEENED - mERTEBEN N HE
BEE - ARBBEMNNINITRERE

Remarks
Eix

B.1

B.2

B.2

B.2
B.2

B.2

B.3,B.4

B.1

B.1

C.2,Table 8
C.2,5k1%8
C,C.2
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Environmental, Social and Governance

RiR - HERERERE

ESG content index (continued)

Aspect KPI

=] EE
B5.3
B5.4

B6 Product B6

Responsibility

B6EmMET
B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5

ESGZES| (&)

Description
it

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored

A B AR HEEGERNRE Mt 2R NIE
5l - ARARRNTT R EER T E

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored

R PRE BB A2 (8 % A IRIRE o M RTS8V 1E 1 -
A RAEREEIT R EERH T A

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons

B & R E R E A B R % 2 B BRIE e 1 Z8 Bl U )
Bkt

Number of products and services related complaints
received and how they are dealt with
BREANEmMERBEORFE B AREE T A
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intelleotual property rights

i uft BB 8 % RS AR EE RS A RO 1B 1D

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures

g s TBENERDBERF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored

HIUE BB ERHRE RALEBER - ARAAERITRER
A
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ESG content index (continued)

Aspect
=]

B7 Anti-corruption

B7TRES

B8 Community
Investment

BS#EHET

KPI
B

B7

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

B8

B8.1

B8.2

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE -HEGRERRE

ESG% 3| (&

Description

i pud

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices during the reporting period and the outcomes of
the cases\
TERPANEETASHEBIRE W BENETHA
EHOHE MFRER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored
il E A MR - U RABERITRER A
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff

ftmES KB TRENRETE

General Disclosure

—MRIKER

Focus areas of contribution
HIEREE

Resources contributed to the focus area

EEIHBEABAER

Remarks
Eix

B.5'B.6

B.5'B.6

B.5'B.6

B.5

B.5

Table 9
=I%9
Table 9
RIB9
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

KPMG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 120 to 275, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

B 2B AT RS (®)

RRESEE

HREBEAETEIRETSNEEHE R
RETNEHMBRROBTRAEEN
EIE - RESFEHRESTSENBEBEMH
ﬁ“i&?i&ﬁﬂ%iﬁﬂ_ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ o BE
SHZEEHREEEBNER -

these matters.

Recognition of construction contract revenue

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

in Note 2(u)f).

The Key Audit Matter

The Group is primarily engaged in the
design, production and installation of
curtain wall systems for commercial
buildings and high-end residential
buildings. The Group normally enters
into construction contracts with main
contractors or real estate developers.

The Group recognises construction
contract revenue progressively
overtime using input method based
on the proportion of total contract
costs incurred at the end of reporting
period compared to the estimated total
budgeted contract costs to complete
the contract when control of the goods
or service is transferred to the customer.

The measurement of the revenue
therefore relies on estimations of total
budgeted contract costs. Changes to
estimated total budgeted contract costs
could give rise to material variances in
the amount of revenue recognised.

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our procedures to assess the
recognition of construction contract
revenue included the following:

o assessing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls over the budgeting
process for construction
contracts;

o scrutinising the key clauses of
construction contracts on a
sample basis, and assessing
whether these key clauses had
been appropriately reflected in
the estimation of total budgeted
contract costs applied in revenue
recognition;

o challenging the Group’s
estimates of budgeted costs
to complete the contract on a
sample basis by considering the
Group’s historical records of
gross profit margins for similar
contracts;

BEARKARR
ELEA G BEHZNZARWZER2()()H BB
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEEMEBE @

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Recognition of construction contract revenue (continued)
Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting
policies in Note 2(u)f).

How the matter was addressed in
The Key Audit Matter our audit
We identified the recognition of e assessing whether costs

construction contract revenue as a incurred were accounted for
key audit matter because there is a in the appropriate period and
high degree of risk and associated comparing costs incurred during
management judgement in estimating the current period to purchase
total budgeted contract costs and the invoices and other relevant
amount of revenue to be recognised by underlying documentation on a
the Group. sample basis;

o performing a re-calculation of
revenue recognised for individual
contracts based on the estimated
total budgeted contract costs,
the costs incurred to date and
the agreed contract price;

o performing site visits for the
selected major contracts in
progress, physically observing
the stage of completion of the
contract and discussing the
status of the contract with the
site supervisor; and

o assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B R ENHRE @)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Loss allowance for contract assets and trade receivables

Refer to Notes 17, 18 and 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies in Note 2(k)().

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s contract assets and trade
receivables are mainly arising from the
Group's construction contract business.
As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate
amount of contract assets and trade
receivables totalled RMB5,399.6 million.

The Group measures loss allowances
on contract assets and trade
receivables at amounts equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (the “ECL’)
using a provision matrix which involved
significant management judgement
in estimating loss rate and adjusting
factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

We identified the loss allowance for
contract assets and trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of
the significant balances at the end
of the reporting period and because
the recognition of ECL is inherently
subjective and requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our procedures to assess the loss
allowance of contract assets and trade
receivables included the following:

o assessing the design and
implementation of key internal
controls over the credit control
and estimation of the ECL;

o assessing the reasonableness
of the ECL by examining the
information used by management
to form such estimates, including
testing the accuracy of the
historical loss rates and historical
transition rates, and evaluating
whether the historical loss rates
and historical transition rates are
appropriately applied in the ECL
model;

o assessing whether items in the
ageing report were categorised
appropriately for contract
assets and trade receivables by
comparing a sample of individual
items with the underlying
documentation; and

o assessing the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

B EEHRE @)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEEMEBE @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE REBMHREBXESHUERRARIENET
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) (%)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
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other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
RE - BEESFEFTHB LA EBEH
Wﬁﬁikﬂﬁo

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 April 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOfEER

(Expressed in Renmlnbl( RMB”))  For the year ended 31 December 2019
(RARE (TARY ) REf) #HZE2019F12H31 BILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Expected credit losses of financial and
contract assets

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Earnings per share (RMB cents)
— Basic and diluted

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative

A
SHERAR
£
HUA
HEEM
TR
THEENAREELZR
HEMRX

EENE
BB

Bt A0 A8
PSR

FRFE

PPN
ZAYNS]) S
Sl g 3o

FRFE

BREFN (AR%S)
—EARNEE

information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in

Note 29(b).
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2019 2018

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥T T ARBFTT
(Note)

(H15t)

4 4,041,253 4,615,704
(3,049,917) (3,714,701)

991,336 901,003

& 121,362 172,741
(86,541) (91,112)
(531,707) (5665,949)
(155,909) (193,754)

338,541 222,929
6(a) (142,523) (68,767)
6 196,018 154,162
7 (106,198) (65,991)
89,820 88,171

89,820 79,119

- 9,052

89,820 88,171

11 1.45 1.27

Brat - ANEERR201941 818 FIBLERTEY
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments):

[tems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

— Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of the
Company and certain subsidiaries
into presentation currency

— Cash flow hedge:

net movement in the hedging

reserve

Other comprehensive income

for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income

for the year

FRFE

FREM RS R R
ENDEARR) :

HgA B HEEBEN
BEE :
—BREANRA RETH
BARMBHRRRE
P RE K E 5

—REREL

e T

HihREE2EFE

FRAZEREAE

LU A R4
ZAYNE])
FEER

FRAZEKEAE

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial

statements.

B RERAEMEE SR

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2019

(AAREEBN) #HZE2019F12A31BIEFE

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaF ARET T AREBTT
(Note)
(H15t)
89,820 88,171
10
(66,252) (17,017)
- (1,221)
(66,252) (18,238)
23,568 69,933
23,568 58,345
- 11,588
23,568 69,933

Hiet - ARKER201951 A1 B A BRETES
R B R IER BRI S R F 1655 -
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B2 TE2(C) °
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
S OB IR R R

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2019
(MARBREN) MR2019F12H31H

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR®ET T ARETIT
(Note)
(W)
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E N YN L] 12 387,236 427,829
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13 249,404 =
Lease prepayments e - 368,358
Investment property HEYZE 14 31,135 =
Deferred tax assets RIETIREE 27(c) 466,236 558,844
1,134,011 1,355,031
Current assets RENEE
Inventories and other contract costs GFEREME RKA 16 322,001 407,125
Contract assets aREE 17 2,568,142 2,831,703
Trade and bills receivables B 5 e & e W 18 2,918,319 2,838,648
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENRREAE
receivables Wk 19 712,604 789,864
Cash on hand and in bank FEIRE MIRTTIFEN 20(a) 1,878,068 1,702,751
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHEEE 21 = 136,241
8,399,134 8,706,332
Current liabilities o p=Ki
Trade and bills payables ) N ES 22 2,582,442 2,998,632
Contract liabilities aRA%E 17 823,187 881,998
Accrued expenses and other payables  FE&TRI S K2 L FE{S 7k 23 1,265,355 592,280
Bank loans RITEN 24(a) 1,645,000 2,287,877
Income tax payable FERTETTSHE 27(a) 226,930 224,084
Provision for warranties RS 28 82,023 63,365
6,624,937 7,048,236
Net current assets mENEEFE 1,774,197 1,658,096
Total assets less current liabilities AEERABERE 2,908,208 3,013,127
The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial F1208FF2758 2 T A ET Bz
statements. 287 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provision for warranties

NET ASSETS
CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
RITER
HERE
ERETHIARE
RIERE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
April 2020.

Kang Baohua

Director (Chairman)

EFE(ZEE)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the

modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

statements.

The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial

SO IR TR ()

(Expressed in RMB) At 31 December 2019
(MARBRER) MR2019F12H31H

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥TT ARBFT
(Note)
(Hrat)
24(b) - 61,769
2,554 -
27(c) 173 2,858
28 173,786 240,373
176,513 305,000
2,731,695 2,708,127

29
519,723 519,723
2,211,972 2,188,404
2,731,695 2,708,127

EE2N2020F4 A24 At R IEHETES o

Wang Hao
IR
Director

EF

KiaE : AEER2019F1 A1HFALETEMN
A B R FE P BARR B A R 5 BRI SR 1655 o
RIBUE - EBRERTTEY - GEF
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Z—E5D o

BATEEBRARAR | ZZ—JURER

123



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
O EREER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2019
(AARMRER) HZE2019F12 A31 BIEFE

Attrioutable to equty shareholders of the Company

RARRER
Shares held
under share PRC Non-
Share Share award Oher  satutoy  Exchange  Hedging  Retained controling
cofl premium - scheme fBSEE IBSRIVeS T6SEIVe 16SEIVe profits Totd  inferests  Total euity
Rk
EERE G

RE  RGEE ARG AeER  AEER  ENBR  WMER  RENE & phER g8
RMBOOO  RVBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBUOO0  RMBOOO  RVBIOO0  RMBOOD
ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT  ARETR

Nok29  Noe29  Mo29  MokZ  Mok29  Noeld
Note 296) [/ /A /N /A /A )
Wi W Wiy W Ry
i) /A /A /A /R

Balanceat 1 January 2018  H201BE1A1AZER 519708 o74047 Q10 1896% 393,206 2018 1220 1103991 2783694 (146500 2,636,194

Changes in equity for 2018: 20185 2 X%

Proft for the year ERHR = = = = - - - 79119 79119 9,062 8171

Other comprehensiveincome £t 2 k& - - - - - 1955 (1) - 25% (18289

Tota comprehensiieincome  2ENGER - - - - - 1955 (121 T9M9 B35 11588 69933

Acquistion of non-controling 3R ER

nterests - - - (188912 - - - - (18917 183912 -

Approprationtoresenes  SEZE(R - - - - X% - - B9y = = =
- - - (188912 2692 - - (26925 (133912 133912 -

Balance at 31 December 20185128318

2018 P17 TS SMMT PO ST 0 (75 - RIS 28 N RO
The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial F1208 B F2758 Z W AL E T HHx
statements. Z—H85D e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
O RERBER W@

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2019

Changes in equity for 2019:
Proft for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Appropriafion to reserves

Balance at 31 December 2019

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using

R9E1A1B 268
195 2RERD
ERfE

L
PENRLE
ANERHE
RO19E2A31 2R

(Expressed in RMB)

(AARMRER) HZE2019F12 A31 BIEFE
Shares held PRC
Share Share  under share Other statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium  award scheme reserve reserves reserve profits Total
RERG%R
& RivkE  itEkERG ihRE  tEEERE ElGfE REHE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTn  ARMTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR
Wote 296) ~ Note 29a)f)) ~ (Note 29(a)fif) ~ (Note 29/dflii) ~ Note 29a)fy)  Note 29allty) (Note)
Wioe) ) R R K290 229 i)
519723 574,047 210 55,786 420,131 (17,53) 1,166,185 2708127
- - - - - - 89620 89820
- - - - - (66.252) - 66,252
- - - - - (66,25 89820 23,568
- - - - 15,770 - (15,770) -
519728 574,047 (210) 56,786 43,901 (83,787) 123028 273169
HiF - ANEBER2019561 A1 BFALETEN

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2019
(AARBRER) BE2019512A31 HILFE

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat AR%T R ARETTT
(Note)
(Hi:E)
Operating activities KEEE
Profit before taxation ORIV 196,018 154,162
Adjustments for: FHEIEE
Depreciation and amortisation e RS 6(c) 49,826 52,471
Interest income FEUA 6(a) (21,986) (4,797)
Borrowing costs BEEKA 6(a) 204,626 173,027
Net gain on disposal of property, HEYE  BE MK
plant and equipment, land use & - THF AR
rights and assets classified as DERFIELERE
held for sale e S 5E 5 (91,957) (147,893)
Changes in working capital: EEEEH
Decrease in inventories and other FEREME RBA
contract costs GRS 85,124 25,221
Decrease in contract assets EREERD 263,561 758,051
Increase in trade and bills receivables ~ EWEFE R T2
REIE N (79,671) (172,795)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and &% ~ TEA R E A fE
other receivables &2yl (48,774) (113,450)
Decrease in trade and bills payables B SN HR R ENRE
b (365,634) (341,890)
Decrease in contract liabilities aRAaERD (58,811) (89,538)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued FEETF S SR B RS 3k
expenses and other payables #n, G 66,734 (199,418)
Decrease in provision for warranties RIEBER D (52,924) (4,248)
Cash generated from operations KEFTERE 146,132 88,903
Income tax paid B ATSHE 27(a) (41,413) (12,675)
Income tax refunded PR1S TR 27(a) 25,181 21,971
Net cash generated from operating & ZBFTEREFE
activities 129,900 98,199
The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial F1208FF2758 2 T A ET Bz

statements. 287 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continueq)
EHEEHRER@®

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2019
(AARBRER) HZE2019512A31 HILFE

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR%T R ARET T
(Note)
(Hiat)
Investing activities REEE
Payments for purchase of property, BEME - BB K&
plant and equipment and land use Ko - Hbfsh FARET R
rights (12,909) (10,547)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - KB REE -
plant and equipment, land use THE R R D R
rights and assets classifieds as EREBEZFIER
held for sale 478,218 218,302
Payments for time deposits TEHRF A 3R (650,000) =
Interest received B UH B 16,920 4,797
Net cash (used in)/generated from  R&E;EE (FiH) IR
investing activities FH (167,771) 212,552
Financing activities mEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans and g ERIT R B A EKFTE
other borrowings FIE 20(b) 3,827,271 2,180,718
Repayment of bank loans and other ERBITERREAMER
borrowings 20(b) (4,131,441) (2,565,697)
Net payments for time deposits to BIRITER R EMER
secure bank loans and other ETERF AR
borrowings JE BifF 5K (183,200) (173,000)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEfHERE 2 EAREH 20(b) (12,816) =
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfHERS 25235 20(b) (1,055) =
Borrowing costs paid EREERA 20(b) (206,115) (168,344)
Net cash used in financing activities BE ZEIFTARESFE (707,356) (726,323)
The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial F120B £ F 2758 2 sk At EH &
statements. Z—H#5 o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continueq)

EHEESHRER@®

(Expressed in RMB)  For the year ended 31 December 2019
(AARBRER) BE2019512A31 HILFE

Net decrease in cash and cash HEeERBSEEWRD
equivalents FHE

Cash and cash equivalents at MBIENRERES
1 January ZEY

Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEEPE RBEY A
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at M12A1AMEERES
31 December ZEY

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

The notes on pages 129 to 275 form part of these financial
statements.
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2019 2018

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥T T ARBFTT
(Note)

(H15t)
(745,227) (415,572)

20(a) 1,299,410 1,708,772
5,082 6,210

20(a) 559,265 1,299,410

HiaE - AEER2019%F1 A1HFALETEMN
B R FE P BARR B A R A BRI S5 16557 o
RIBUE - EBRERATTEY - BEF
BFE2EMEE2(C) ©

FE1208 £ FE2758 2 Wit Al EFEHREK
Z— 25 e



Notes to the Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Yuanda China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 26 February 2010
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 17 May 2011. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”). The principal activities of the Group are the
design, procurement, production, sale and installation of
curtain wall systems.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and related Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”). These financial statements also comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

PR AR BT RE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEEHIN  WARBRER)
RAEHR

BAPEZEBRER AR ((AREDR
201052 H26 AR EF S FHE R AE
F22E (1961F F =50AR - KiRE
RER]) EHRE B S M BER
BERRAT o KRFIRMHIKR2011F
SA1TBERBHERZFAER AR
(M2 FT)) £ET0  RRRIRA G
HREBEARRREWE AR (5TE
[(AEBEDHER - AEBHEEE
AR KB £E - HERTHE
BRBRG -

E-D N
@@ ARERH

Ith S5 B I K TR B AT A B A
F B R B 765 3 o5 22 A (T BB B
BHREER]) ERAGRE
EEE e ERIEES ([BR
SrEAEEE ) BHOME
328 PR 8 ) B B 7% S e R R
B e £/ ([EER g
Al REEREMRE - 1E
BRI EEE R BIRD
BERENRBIMES LR
A (TETARRIL) &8 B 3 5 15
X oo REEFRMERNG I
TR -

B et ERBEG D EMA
T AT R AR IERT B B RR B 75 3R
EEA - HFREAARRAKHE
B Est R E R ERRAR
BRM - BEREAZRFEAE
76 B8 A9 B R B 7% e o5 X AU P
SIBE R M B ESE MR OE
MEFBREHE RBN UL E
MBHmE  BEABEHEIIRK
FE2(c) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
for derivative financial instruments which are stated at
their fair values (see Note 2(e)). Non-current assets held
for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell (see Note 2(x)).

The Company has its functional currency in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”). As majority of the Group’s operation are
conducted by the subsidiaries of the Group in mainland
China, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

()

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a new IFRS, IFRS 16, Leases,
and a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for IFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, SIC 15, Operating leases
— incentives, and SIC 27, Evaluating the substance
of transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It
introduces a single accounting model for lessees, which
requires a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability for all leases, except for leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term
leases”) and leases of low value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from IAS
17 substantially unchanged.

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

2 EXREHBEFE

()
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A 45 & PR A AT 180 2R A RO # AT
RN RFE o

BRI IR EERIE 1655 - HE

B R B 75 o o £ B 5B 1 65 ALK
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12 - BRM RS RE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

IFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess the
effect that leases have on the financial position, financial

performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 as from 1
January 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
The reclassifications arising from the new initial
application are therefore recognised in the opening

balance on 1 January 2019.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies of the Group and the

transition options applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 defines
a lease on the basis of whether a customer
controls the use of an identified asset for a period
of time, which may be determined by a defined
amount of use. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all

of the economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continuead)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

New definition of a lease (continued)

The Group applies the new definition of a lease
in IFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered
into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.
For contracts entered into before 1 January
2019, the Group has used the transitional
practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are
or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that
were previously assessed as leases under |IAS
17 continue to be accounted for as leases under
IFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as
non-lease service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

IFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee
to classify leases as either operating leases or
finance leases, as was previously required by IAS
17. Instead, the Group is required to capitalise
all leases when it is the lessee, including leases
previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17, other than those short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets which are exempt. As far as
the Group is concerned, these newly capitalised
leases are primarily in relation to properties as
disclosed in Note 13. For an explanation of how
the Group applies lessee accounting, see Note

2()(0)-

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

2

AARE R ERL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)

At the date of transition to IFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease
liabilities for the leases previously classified as
operating leases at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1 January
2019. The weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination of the
present value of the remaining lease payments
was 5.37%.

To ease the transition to IFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16:

(i) the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of IFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets to leases for which the remaining
lease term ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application of IFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or before 31
December 2019;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHIEAI - AARBABAD)
BREHBE @

Changes in accounting policies (continuead)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact

(continued)

(i)  when measuring the lease liabilities at the
date of initial application of IFRS 16, the
Group applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar class
of underlying asset in a similar economic

environment); and

(i)  when measuring the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application of IFRS 16, the
Group relied on the previous assessment
for onerous contract provisions as at
31 December 2018 as an alternative to

performing an impairment review.

2

()
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B (4
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
s T EL N )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead) 2

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
IFRS 16, Leases (continued)
b.  Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(continued)
The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as disclosed in Note 32(b) as at 31

December 2018 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019:

Operating lease commitments at

EXEBEGE

(€ EFIBENESHE
B EHEERE1655 -
HE (&)

b.  HEEANSFEET
RiBEZE(E)

T 2% 8 51 2t 532 (b) BT
WER2018F12 431 H
HROCEREFREERR
2019F1 A1 BERNAE
BEZBUEHRER

RMB’000
ARETT

MR2018F12 831 B Z & & TH & &iE

31 December 2018 13,641
Less: commitments relating to leases W B E AR ERIE -
exempt from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other —FISRE A ABIE20195F
leases with remaining lease 12 431 Bk 2 BIHVAZ HA
term ending on or before HEREMEE
31 December 2019 (1,627)
12,014
Less: total future interest expenses BT ARRA BRI 2% (666)
Present value of remaining lease payments, & &~ s IR E M 720194
discounted using the incremental 1 H 1 BRERZ FIE AR R A
borrowing rate and total lease liabilities HEBEEE
recognised at 1 January 2019 11,348

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the statement of financial position at
31 December 2018. Lease prepayments for land
use rights have been recognised at amortised
costs at 31 December 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EXREHBERE)
()  Changes in accounting policies (continued) ) EETBERMED) (&)
IFRS 16, Leases (continueq) BRET ISR EERE165K
HE(E)

b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b.  #HEAAL ST A
(continued) RBEFE (E)
The following table summarises the impacts of the TN 2R A B A B R B S
adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated HAHFE 16 E AR B4R
statement of financial position: EMBRRTAFLE

Capitalisation of
operating lease

Carrying  contracts and Carrying
amountat  reclassification amount

31 December of lease at 1 January
2018 prepayments 2019

R2018F  BEHEAR 20195
1283188  EXLREE 1A1EH)
FEE BRFESNE kEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTT ARETTL

Line items in the consolidated GRUBMRRPZFHER

statement of financial position BB RE RN E165 T E

impacted by the adoption of IFRS 16: fiEg .
Right-of-Use assets FREAE = 381,525 381525
Lease prepayments MERNT 368,358 (368,358) =
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,355,031 13,167 1,368,198
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & + B FUR EMELER 789,864 (1,819) 788,045
Current assets RBEE 8,706,332 (1,819) 8,704,513
Accrued expenses and other payables et RS REMER R 592,280 6,446 508,726
Current liabilities RBaE 7,048,236 6,446 7,054,682
Net current assets RRBEE 1,658,096 (8,265) 1,649,831
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 3,013,127 4,902 3,018,029
Lease liabilities (non-current) REREGERD) - 4,902 4,902
Non-current liabilities FrBaE 305,000 4,902 309,902
Net assets REE 2,708,127 - 2,708,127
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

2

AARE R ERL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Impact on the financial result, segment results
and cash flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. This results in a positive
impact on the reported profit from operations in
the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss, as compared to the results if IAS 17 had
been applied during the year.

In the cash flow statement, the Group as a lessee
is required to split rentals paid under capitalised
leases into their capital element and interest
element (see Note 20(b)). These elements are
classified as financing cash outflows, similar
to how leases previously classified as finance
leases under IAS 17 were treated, rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under IAS 17. Although total
cash flows are unaffected, the adoption of IFRS
16 therefore results in a change in presentation
of cash flows within the cash flow statement (see
Note 20(c)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continuead)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Impact on the financial result, segment results
and cash flows of the Group (continued)

The following tables give an indication of the
estimated impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on
the Group’s financial result and cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2019, by adjusting
the amounts reported under IFRS 16 in these
consolidated financial statements to compute
estimates of the hypothetical amounts that
would have been recognised under IAS 17 if this
superseded standard had continued to apply
in 2019 instead of IFRS 16, and by comparing
these hypothetical amounts for 2019 with the
actual 2018 corresponding amounts which were
prepared under IAS 17.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 BAEHBESE
()  Changes in accounting policies (continued) ) EETEERMEREE
IFRS 16, Leases (continued) BB KB EERE165 -
HE(E)
c.  Impact on the financial result, segment results c. HAEEFEE S5
and cash flows of the Group (continued) RERHEnENZE
(&
2019 2018
Deduct:
Estimated
amounts
related
Add back: tooperating  Hypothetical
IFRS 16 leasesasif ~ amounts for Compared to
depreciation ~ under|AS17 2019 asif under amounts
and interest (Note 1) (C) IAS 17 reported
Amounts  expense(B) i EERER (D=A+B+C)  for 2018 under
reported under HE:RE  EiEAER EERER S 17

IFRS 16 (A) EERE  MELNEE  EHENENE H0185F
REEMEE  HeRhEN  EEEBMH MmALN0E  REEEE
REENE6E FERAERR  SERY BReE ENFERES
STINEEN B) (€ (D=AtB4C) HEBR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Financial result for yearended ~ RRAERE A 2E
31 December 2019 impacted ~ E16¥FENEZ
by the adoption of IFRS 16: 019512831 ALLER

pals}

eI
Profit from operations HEFi 338541 10,683 (11,189) 338,035 222929
Finance costs AR (142,529) 1,065 - (141,468) (68.767)
Profit before taxation RARE 196,018 11,738 (11,189) 196,567 14,162
Profitfor the year FRilE 89,820 11,738 (11,189) 90,369 88171
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EXREHBERE)
()  Changes in accounting policies (continued) ) EETEERMEE &)
IFRS 16, Leases (continueq) BRET ISR EERE165K
HE(E)

c.  Impact on the financial result, segment results c. HEAEEFYFEE 75

and cash flows of the Group (continued) RERFEZTENZE
(%)

The Group’s administrative expenses and finance REEITHHA Rt &K
costs are not allocated to individual segments, REBBENEEDEL - BN
therefore there is no significant impact of adoption BREA SRS XE RSB 1655
of IFRS 16 on the Group’s segment results. HAREE 2 DA E

BEAYE -

2019 2018

Estimated

amounts related

to operating

leases as if Hypothetical

under IAS 17 amounts for Compared to
Amounts  (Notes 7&2)(B) 2019 as if under  amounts reported
reported under  EEFEMEH  IAS17(C=A+B)  for 2018 under
IFRS16(A)  EAZTHA ZERERST hS 17
REEREE SUNCEHE RUEUEMSL H018FRELR
RERAE6E  ABETEE W00FEREE  eRElETH
SHNSERN  WHIE2B) (C-AB)  ERMEELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT

Line items in the consolidated S BB REE

cash flow statement for yearended ~ E16%ZEHEZ20195E

31 December 2019 impacted by 12A31BLEEN

the adoption of IFRS 16: GRELRERER:
Cash generated from operations ZEMERS 146,132 (13871) 132,261 88,903
Net cash generated from ReEBREReRR

operating activities 129,900 (13,871) 116,029 98,199
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENRERSERES (12,816) 12,816 - =
Interest element of lease rentals paid EffEERSHIESS (1,055) 1,055 - =
Net cash used in financing activities ~ REEEFARLFE (707,356) 13,871 (693,485) (726,329)
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

@ Impact on the financial result, segment results
and cash flows of the Group (continueq)

Note 1:  The “estimated amounts related to operating
leases” is an estimate of the amounts of the
cash flows in 2019 that relate to leases which
would have been classified as operating
leases, if IAS 17 had still applied in 2019.
This estimate assumes that there were no
differences between rentals and cash flows
and that all of the new leases entered into in
2019 would have been classified as operating
leases under IAS 17, if IAS 17 had still applied
in 2019. Any potential net tax effect is ignored.

Note 2: In this impact table these cash outflows are
reclassified from financing to operating in
order to compute hypothetical amounts of net
cash generated from operating activities and
net cash used in financing activities as if IAS

17 still applied.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

2

BAREHBERE

€ CEEBURMES) (&)

B EHEERE1655 -

HE (&)

o MALEHBEE 5
REREshEmNTZE

(&

MEET -

Mat2 -

[ R4 F8 B 75 FRY
et B EE
el %ﬁgmﬁfﬁfﬁ
ER2019F HIR &
MELR G -
B R & st AE Al
FATHR2019F 1]
NER o ZEE R
FRHECERESRE
ZEwEER - B
FTA R 20194F 5] 32
KT BIRIE R
BEstERIZE1 758
AHEARLIAE
bplea ey =l
F1THR2019F 1]
RIERA - FEE
FFHIETEHE
W o

Rk ERP - %
EREMEABARE
EMORERE
AFTE & & REFT
SR FENRE
BEEBFEZEE
FRNRREHE

AN B R & S E A
FATRINANER



2

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Changes in accounting policies (continuead)

IFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Leasehold investment property

Under IFRS 16, the Group is required to account
for all leasehold properties as investment
properties when these properties are held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation
(“leasehold investment properties”). The
adoption of IFRS 16 does not have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements as
the Group previously elected to apply IAS 40,
Investment properties, to account for all of its
leasehold properties that were held for investment
purposes.

Lessor accounting

In addition to leasing out the investment property
referred to in paragraph d above, the Group
leases out certain machinery and motor vehicles
as the lessor of operating leases. The accounting
policies applicable to the Group as a lessor
remain substantially unchanged from those under
IAS 17. The adoption of IFRS 16 does not have
a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements in this regard.
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative equity interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(€)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss is in accordance with Note 2(f).

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows
associated with highly probable forecast transactions
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates (cash
flow hedges).

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective
portion of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset such
as inventory, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to be included in the initial cost of the non-
financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss
(such as when a forecast sale occurs).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

®

Hedging (continued)

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting (including when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge
accounting is discontinued, but the hedged forecast
transaction is still expected to occur, the amount
that has been accumulated in the hedging reserve
remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it is
recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the amount that has been accumulated in the hedging
reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(k)(ii)). The depreciation policy is the same as that
of property, plant and equipment (see Note 2(h)). Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 2(u)(iv).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(k)(ii)).
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see Note 2(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Plant and buildings 30 years
Machinery and equipment 15 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
estimated useful life of an asset and its residual value
are reviewed annually. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed
and ready for its intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

U)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

2

0)

AARE R ERL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(continueq)

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for
the Group are primarily equipment. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHEERI - WARBABA)
2 EREHBRE®E)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

1)} Leased assets (continued)

(i) As alessee (continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 2(h) and 2(k)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, or
there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAI
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

0

AARE R ERL)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, as a lessee the
Group classified leases as finance leases
if the leases transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group. Leases which did not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group were classified as
operating leases.

Where the Group had the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases were charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
was more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received were recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals were charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
were incurred.

Payments made on the acquisition of land
held under an operating lease are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

2

BEREHBEE
) HEBEE@R
() MEREEAGE)
(B 201914 1HFi@E
Vil:ol2 6

ELEREE - K&
BERAMEA - W0
RHEEEE LA
B R FTA LR A
BHEBRLEAS
= - RSB EERE
RAREMEMRE-EBEE
ERERRAEDN
PiTA 70 3 A 45
BheASENEE
BOBAREER
WMRASEERE
EHETHAENE
E-AIRBEEX
MR BEERES
IR A
AE B Bt AR
m BRIER—BE
EBHEREEEER
ENKEREA -2
WEInwHERER
B R R EF
& 15 50 e A A BB
DeRBHEEHR
HAEMSET MG
Az e

RELEHERS
£ AT AN B9 BRIR
AR A R At B
5 MO B B K 5
o BEEHEES
NiZEH A AR

S o
g



2

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)} Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not
the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. The
rental income from operating leases is recognised
in accordance with Note 2(u)(iv).

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash on hand and in bank, trade
and bills receivables and deposits and other
receivables); and

- contract assets as defined in IFRS 15 (see
Note 2(m)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAI
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(i)

AARE R ERL)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continueq)

Derivative financial instruments measured at fair
value are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables
and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(k)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continueq)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions
at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAI
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(i)

AARE R ERL)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continueq)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(k)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continueq)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

= failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAI
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(i)

AARE R ERL)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continueq)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest incorme

Interest income recognised in accordance with
Note 2(u)(v) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(k)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (continueq)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

= significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(k)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;
- investment property; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(k)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see Notes 2(k)(i) and 2(K)(ii)).

() Inventories and other contract costs

(i) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Inventories record the cost of raw materials
waiting to be assigned to specific construction
contracts. The cost of inventories includes design
costs, costs of purchase, direct labour, other
direct costs and production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

() Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(i)

(i)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are assigned to specific
construction contracts, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the year in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the year the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the year
in which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
or the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer
which are not capitalised as inventory (see Note

2()(i)-

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained e.g.
an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered. Other
costs of obtaining a contract are expensed when
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

2

AARE R ERL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Inventories and other contract costs (continued)

(i)

Other contract costs (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only because
the Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the contract cost
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of
consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for the goods or services to which the
asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly
to providing those goods or services that have
not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set
out in Note 2(u).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(m)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(u)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set out in Note 2(k)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see Note 2(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 2(u)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see Note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (see Note 2(m)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 2(K)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(k)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
Note 2(w)).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Group.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Employee benefits (continueq)

(i)

(i1)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (continued)

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans are charged to profit or loss
when incurred, except to the extent that they
are included in the cost of inventories not yet
recognised as an expense.

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share award
scheme are acquired from open market. The
net consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share award
scheme, the fair value of shares granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares on grant
date plus any directly attributable incremental
costs. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the shares, the total fair value of the
shares is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the shares will
vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

2

AARE R ERL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Employee benefits (continueq)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of shares
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of shares that vest with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted
average acquisition cost of the awarded shares
vested are credited to “Shares held under share
award scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited to
the capital reserve. The difference between the
related weighted average acquisition cost and the
grant date fair value of the awarded shares vested
is transferred to retained profits directly.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(s)  Income tax (continueq)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

®)

Provisions and contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts (continued)

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continueaq)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(i) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has
a contract under which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract. Provisions for onerous
contracts are measured at the present value of
the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the net cost of continuing with the
contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

()

Revenue and other income (continuead)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

() Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the
contract relates to work on curtain wall under the
control of the customer and therefore the Group’s
construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised progressively over time
using the cost-to-cost method, i.e. based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to
the estimated total contract costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(u)  Revenue and other income (continueq)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Construction contracts (continued)

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount
of the consideration under the contract, then a
provision is recognised in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2(t)(ii).

Service income

Service income from the rendering of services
is recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Sale of materials

Sale of materials is recognised when the materials
are delivered to the location designated by
the customer and the control of the materials
transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue from
sale of materials excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
sales discounts.
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

2

AARE R ERL)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Revenue and other income (continuead)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

V)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if
it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset is available for
sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as
held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(y)  Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

U)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

U)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

PR AR MR o)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHIEAI - AARBABAD)
2 EREHBRE®E)

(y)  FEH

@ MBI TAL  BlZAL
HEAL ZMHEAREH
ol

) S ERESA
LS

i) HAZRELE

iy AAEEHAEE
NRAMEZERE
BRE -

b) fHfFE NIIEA GRS - B
ERENEEGRER

mf}

o R

g X m T
B I K B

o 5T m
MMDM
SO

|z 3 ¢
~ |
sm
e |

T B B X 7] K2 [R]
AMBARIEERA

I

e

o> 3> o) 0 3l ¥g
mE o N
B N o o>

S

I

el

gg_
]

(i)

BERPEBERARAT | S22 UEER

179



180

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

(y)  Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

@

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Note 31 contains information about the assumptions and the

risk factors relating to fair value of financial instruments. Other

significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@)

Revenue recognition

As explained in accounting policy Note 2(u), revenue
from construction contracts is recognised over time.
Such revenue and profit recognition on uncompleted
projects is dependent on estimating the total budgeted
contract costs of the contract, as well as the contract
costs incurred to date. The actual outcomes in the
terms of total cost may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of the reporting period, which would affect
the revenue and profit recognised in the future years as
an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BB - UARKEBER)
3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment of receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets are reviewed
by management at the end of each reporting period to
determine the expected credit losses. The management
bases the estimates on the historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and assessments of both current and forecast
general economic conditions. Credit risk assessments
focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability and willingness
to pay, taking into account the financial position of the
customers and the macroeconomic environment in
which the customers operate. The credit assessments
also consider the status of the construction project,
i.e. whether there is any delay, any unresolved lawsuits
or contentious matters with customers. If the financial
conditions of the customers and/or the macroeconomic
environment of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to repay, additional
impairment provision would be required.

Warranty provisions

As explained in Note 28, the Group makes provisions
under the warranties it gives on construction of curtain
wall systems contracts, taking into account the Group’s
recent claim experience. As the curtain wall systems
required by customers become more complex, it
is probable that the recent claim experience is not
indicative of future claims that the Group will receive in
respect of past construction of curtain wall systems.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

©)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. In determining the amount of deferred
tax assets to be recognised, significant judgement
is required relating to the timing and level of future
taxable profits, after taking into account future tax
planning strategies. The amount of deferred tax assets
recognised at future dates are adjusted if there are
significant changes from these estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the design,
procurement, production, sale and installation of curtain
wall systems. Further details regarding the Group’s
principal activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

All of the Group’s revenue is arising from
construction contracts. The majority of the
Group’s revenue is recognised over time.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing of revenue recognition is as
follows:
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2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Revenue from contracts with B B B 3 s 5 22 Al
customers within the scope FE1REERN
of IFRS 15 REEFERZBA
Over time P — B s ] 1A 3,842,877 4,421,881
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4,041,253 4,615,704
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

4

AARE R ERL)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue by geographic markets
is disclosed in Note 4(b)(iii).

Revenue represents contract revenue derived
from the design, procurement, production, sale
and installation of curtain wall systems.

The Group’s customer base is diversified. There
was no customer with transactions that exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contracts is RMB8,033.1 million (2018:
RMB9,867.2 million). This amount represents
revenue expected to be recognised in the future
from construction contracts entered into by
the customers with the Group. The Group will
recognise the expected revenue in future when or
as the work is completed, which is expected to
occur over the next 48 months.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount
of the expected transaction price of the potential
contracts (including tax) of which the Group has
won the bidding is RMB4,894.5 million (2018:
RMB4,090.7 million).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@)

Revenue (continued)

(i)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with customers
in existence at the reporting date. (continued)

The above amounts do not include any amounts
of completion bonuses that the Group may
earn in the future by meeting the conditions set
out in the Group’s construction contracts with
customers, unless at the reporting date it is highly
probable that the Group will satisfy the conditions
for earning those bonuses.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical

locations of the construction contracts in a manner

consistent with the way in which information is reported

internally to the Group’s most senior executive

management for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment. The Group has

presented the following two reportable segments. No

operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

(i)

Domestic: comprises construction contracts
carried out in the mainland China.

Overseas: comprises construction contracts
carried out outside of the mainland China.

Segment results

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Bt 7 R = B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 WARD

(@)

(B BHHEPIN - UARE BB
ERR & (A

LONG-2

(i) FEHRFHHRHEE BB
FENEFaRBERNY
A (&)

e BETREASEH
‘BATEAEEERS
EESREPMEGET
A REBREN Y 58 T 48 B AT
&% - BRIENRE B H
AN B R AT BE M B BREX
ZEREIGM o

BiREESRAMIBUE
AEBHEY - HAAER
BRAORREREZAAEH
ESTTHRERBABANIEZHRE
B — o AEB 25

TRET2HD - W6
18 5 8 B A T 7] 2 348
B -

o HR: HEFEAMETT
MREES FIAMA -

o BN BREFBRRM AN
H@ETHEES RA
JEXO

(i) DHEE

R BERRRE D
BESRARME - A%
E RS TREREA R BN
TEEEZEAHESE
REfl 24

BATEEBRARAR | ZZ—JURER

185



186

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAI
REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

4

(b)

AARE R ERL)

Segment reporting (continueq)

(i)

Segment results (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment result
s “adjusted gross profit” (i.e. gross profit after
impairment losses for trade receivables and
contract assets).

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. No significant inter-
segment sales have occurred for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling and
administrative expenses, impairment losses for
other financial assets and finance costs, are not
measured under individual segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group’s most senior executive management
monitor the Group’s assets and liabilities as
a whole, accordingly, no segment assets and
liabilities information is presented.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results (continued)

Revenue from external customers
and reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment adjusted gross profit

Revenue from external customers
and reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment adjusted gross profit

RENEEPHRA
PO G

A R BB R E A

REINEBEFHRA
FOEE GO

e BHEARER

D ON &gt G
(o) DEIREE

() oEWEEE

2019
Domestic Overseas
Bl o

RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR  ARWTR

1,703,621 2,337,632

Total

et
RMB’000
AR%T T

4,041,253

381,985 453,526

835,511

2018
Domestic Overseas
i )

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT  ARERTR

2,247,575 2,368,129

Total

@5t
RMB’000
ARETT

4,615,704

360,904 350,084

710,988
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Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 4

(b)  Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit

WA R 2 EBER & (2,

) DEIREHE)

(i) TEHHPEZZEHE

or loss
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
(Note)
(Hfat)
Reportable segment adjusted A 2o L FHEEF
gross profit 835,511 710,988
Other income E U A 121,362 172,741
Selling expenses HEER (86,541) 91,112)
Administrative expenses THAX (531,707) (565,949)
Expected credit losses of other Hib & & ERTEH
financial assets EREX (84) (3,739)
Finance costs BERK A (142,523) (68,767)
Profit before taxation DR DE 196,018 154,162

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not
restated. See Note 2(c).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

Bt 7 R = B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continueq) 4 WARDEIHE (E
Segment reporting (continued) DEIRE (B)
(i) Geographic information (i) HEER
The following tables set out information about the TR BEEAEERE
geographical location of the Group’s revenue from INEPRFRIRAR - B
external customers. The geographical location IR B TR TE
of customers is based on the location at which EERMMEEID - FBE
the construction contracts are carried out. The EMBEEMMIENET)
geographical location of the specified non-current BIRE E 0 E KR 203
assets is determined based on the physical oo BBINTEE R M
location of the assets. For overseas construction o ASBEE— SRR
contracts, the Group further divided the ZHEF  HEAKBER
customers based on regions, where each country EAE B ML RITHEED
within the region shares similar characteristics B),2E RS H BRI
as to the depth of the Group’s penetration in the L o
market and industry practices.
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Revenue from contracts with B PR B S 3R 5 2E
customers within the scope F15REE AN
of IFRS 15 REEFERZEBA
Disaggregated by geographical BREFHEBEMES D
location of customers
Mainland China H A3, 1,703,621 2,247,575
United Kingdom T 540,872 674,327
Australia P 439,847 597,794
United States of America EFRERE 426,254 582,202
Others Hib 930,659 513,806
2,337,632 2,368,129
4,041,253 4,615,704
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)
5 OTHER INCOME

Government grants

Rental income from investment property

Rental income from operating leases,
other than those relating to
investment property

Net income from provision of repairs
and maintenance services

Net loss from sale of scrap materials

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and assets
classified as held for sale (Note (f))

Note:

5 HflA
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTFIT
IEgaR =) 27,646 24,776
BEMEZHSBA 1,972 =
BREMERINEEHE 2
AL ON
170 521
REEE RRERBEFUHA
4,589 827
HEREZEM A FEE (4,972) (1,276)
LEDE - BRE k&
T R R DB ARHE
& B ER T e (B 91,957 147,893
121,362 172,741

Hat

(i) The amounts included a net gain of RMB89.4 million (2018: (i)
RMB100.5 million) arising from disposal of land use rights
and properties classified as assets classified as held for sale.
Further details of the transaction are set out in Note 21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(@  Finance costs:

Interest on borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 20(b))
Bank charges and other finance costs

Total borrowing costs
Interest income
Net foreign exchange gain
Net loss/(gain) on forward foreign exchange
contracts:
- net gain on cash flow
hedging instruments
reclassified from equity
- net loss/(gain) on other forward
foreign exchange contracts

i ,\E%ﬂ S (Wiatzom)
RITFEENEMRERA

7T A
SN s R
LHMI\[/—\i’JEﬂE/
(Wess) a8
- E*’éﬁﬁi%ﬁ’“ iy
ReRnshTa
W F e
—HMEHINER L
iR/ (k) %8

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
the comparative information is not restated. See Note

2(c).

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the year

ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMBNIil).

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AARKRER)

Bt Al A

#isi -

(BR=BHERI

PR AR MR o)

MU TR G A TR IR

@ BEKA :

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETT
(Note)

(Hr:E)

175,055 145,853
1,055 -
28,516 27174
204,626 173,027
(21,986) (4,797)
(54,948) (78,923)
- (4,476)

14,831 (16,064)
142,523 68,767

Hist

REEEFAKIETENE
B X E R BB B s s 22 R
F165% o IBREFME - L8
BERTTEY - BEFES
2B8MiEE2(c) °

REZE2019F12A31 B ILEE
I 4 15 B R AN 3 B AL (2018
F: AREZT) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continuead)

6

(b)

Staff costs*:

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby these
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the schemes
at rates ranging from 12% to 20% of the employees’
basic salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are
entitled to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at their
normal retirement age.

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established outside of the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed by
the respective local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
respective schemes at rates stipulated by the relevant
rules and regulations of the respective jurisdictions.

The Group does not have any further material
obligations for payments of other retirement benefits
beyond the above annual contributions.
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& TEREAMER
A 5 E BERR INET &1 R

BLATRE (2)

BIRAY:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE  ARETET
624,060 650,856
64,449 74,805
688,509 725,661

7R B 70 B R S H P B A )
HEB 28t T #EE R
B R E HFCRKERE S - &
- PEBARARREEE
KEHEE12%ZE20% M % Z51El
R - HEBAREENE
HERRAKRFREAER A
BRAFAEZEETRATIAFE
KB DA BRRRER o

ARER B R AP B3R MK L ) PR TR
REAMNEESLEEZBM K
FiF 14 B B 22 B0 SRLE (R FUR IR AR
MEHE - T BINHE AT
A& RDAE R M ARRE AR A &
EBPTET Y R A % A 8

zh
N

AEEBEAEN ERFE
AN R E A EARR IR
BAEMEL -



6

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

Other items:

Depreciation and amortisation*

— owned property, plant and

equipment (Note 12)

— lease prepayments

— right-of-use assets (Note 13)

— investment property (Note 14)
Impairment losses on trade and other

receivables and contract assets
LLeases previously classified as

operating leases under IAS 17

Auditors’ remuneration

Research and development costs*

Increase in provision for warranties”
(Note 28)

Cost of inventories* (Note 16(a))

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B BHEERI - WARBABA)
6 BAAEGEE

() EAMIEE :
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
e R
—BEYE  BERZE
(Kiz£12) 31,617 40,574
—HETENRK - 11,897
—(FREEEWHZ13) 17,720 =
— R EWEHiE14) 489 -
B REAMEKRFKRE R
BEREBE 155,909 193,754
SRR IR BB & 5T 48
FITHRADEREENRE
MAEE - 21,629
Gl 9,254 13,102
T EE R A 156,092 175,616
RIEREEIL I (F77728)
75,416 83,093
FEKA (HiE16() 3,049,917 3,714,701
fsF . AEBRDEREEIEIE

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective approach and recognised the
reclassifications arising from the new initial application
in the opening balance on 1 January 2019 to recognise
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at
1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

)27 8 FR B R B 5 e o 22
F165% + WHERMN20195F1
R1B BRI eR T X 20
EREEMNEDBUER
B3 5% AT AR 3R B B & 5T 2E B
FITHRIBAKEHNERN
THEHENEREEE - 1
201951 A1 B IR
R#EEER  ARBEERK
TAABRRAERAEEEN
€ MIHRLRERERE
AN B AERCEHE
HINEENHESHAS ° IRIE
A% ERERTTFE
B o BFTEE2(c) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

6  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 BiaiFl@EEE)
()  Other items: (continued) ) HMI\EE : (&

Note: (continued) Hiat - (&)

7 Cost of inventories includes RMB424.2 million for the # HZE2019F12A31 8 IEF
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB468.9 EFERARIEE THRA -
million), relating to staff costs, depreciation and WEREHERAS  HER
amortisation expenses, lease expenses, research and % - FBERARRERES
development costs and provision for warranties, which AR AARK424288
amount is also included in the respective total amounts 7t (20184 : AR™468.9
disclosed separately above or in Note 6(b) and Note 13 A& Mg
for each of these types of expenses. 6(b) FIKE 13 & B IR ET A

BERENSERXT -

7 INCOME TAX 7 B

(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or @ AFERRANMSHE
loss represents:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREBTT
(Note)
(W)
Current taxation (Note 27(3)): BRERTR IR (Hf7t27(a) -
— provision for corporate income —IRE R AR AT
tax in respective jurisdictions EFSHEE 16,349 17,922
Deferred taxation (Note 27(b)): BIERIE (B1at27(b)
— origination and reversal of — Ry A KRR EE A R A
temporary differences 89,849 48,069
106,198 65,991
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

Bt 7 R = B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB HEBEIN  AAREABER)
INCOME TAX (continueq) 7 FBHE)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting ) HERTHEZERHERTERN
profit at applicable tax rates: GETHEREER
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBFIT
(Note)
(H7%)
Profit before taxation DEIRANE 196,018 154,162
Expected tax on profit before taxation, % ERE R AR EEA

calculated at the rates applicable =T E BRI B TE A

to profits in the jurisdictions concerned I8 (i) ~ (i) ~ (i) R (i)

(Notes (i), (i), (iii) and (iv)) 48,515 45,166
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT HIFE B S B 7 s 2 4,077 2,850
Tax effect of non-taxable income WA G E (3,545) (7,698)
Tax effect of utilisation of prior AL AERBEFER

years’ unused tax losses previously FRRIBEENT ST 2

not recognised (8,600) (126)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERARBATIBEEN

recognised M E 54,783 44,231
Tax concessions and effect of MIBRERT XSS &

changes of tax rate (Note (v)) (HizE0) 10,968 (18,432)
Income tax P&t 106,198 65,991
Notes: Kt -

(i) The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: 16.5%). No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Company and
the subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in Hong
Kong did not have assessable profits subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 December 2019

(2018: RVBNil)

i) AARRAEBRB BT
MR EHBRRRER
2019F12A31HIEFEA
$%16.5% (20184 : 16.5%)
MR RBMEEFEH - B
RARRRAEBRESZE
M EHBRRRER
2019%F 12 A31H L FE &
A BE BTGB ERT
FME - A E|EHREEFF
i (2018F : ARBT

o) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRHIERI - UARE BEBR)
7 INCOME TAX (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes: (continuead)

(ii) The Company and a subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands, respectively, are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of their
respective countries of incorporation.

(i)  The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25%
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 25%).

(ivy  The subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
jurisdictions other than the PRC (including Hong Kong),
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 8.5% to 35%
for the year ended 31 December 2019 pursuant to the
rules and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation (2018: 8.5% to 35%).

(v) One of the subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC has obtained approval from the tax bureau
to be taxed as an enterprise with advanced and new
technologies for the period from the calendar years
from 2017 to 2019 and therefore enjoys a preferential
PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 156% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 15%). In addition to
the preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate, this
subsidiary entitles an additional tax deductible allowance
amounted to 75% (2018: 75%) of the qualified research
and development costs incurred in the PRC by this
subsidiary.

(vj  determining tax provision involves judgement on tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group evaluates
tax implication of transactions and tax provision are set
up accordingly. Where the final tax outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the tax
provision in the year in which such determination is
made.
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FriE®t ()

(b)

IR A S B iR B A R AT E
SEMENER : ()

Hiet - (%)

(i) WESFEFAMEZBERLR
BIRER - DRIRHASHS
K B 2 B B AL /Y
AABRAEER —RIEA
A BB FTSHL

(i) AEERFBEKZHHER
BAIREZE2019F12A31H
I FEBIE25% (20184
25%) HFH R g Bl 1 ZE A
15850 °

vy REZEFMKZERER
B RIER - AEBRHE (B
FEB) HEHEREB
B B S DASNE R SR N2
HKI B A R AR E E2019F
12831 HIEFENILE.5%
E35% N E K AT 15 B X 4
WS (20184 : 8.5% %
35%) °

v ANEEHFR-FKRFBEKZ
W B AR CESHE B
EB2017EE20194 (B
FHB 1 A= T BT 1 2 BN
FiIE - A E20195F12 531
HIEFEZH15% (20184 :
15%) B B SRS BB R
ME BREAEPECEMSG
MEBEHEZI - ZHBA
AIAEREXNTBELRD
A BRI KR T75% (2018
F 1 75%) INEHHIBRE 58 ©

V) BEBRBRBBEIRHETR
Z W BT B IR 1O H o AREE
BEFETEARZINRE
2 - AT FE RO B IR B
o BRFERDHRERA
AR B AE SR B A H
AR EHEZRETEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIBBFA LD REHIZE383(NE KR AT
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the (BREENEEED AHE MR
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EMNEEMeFBOT
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2019
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ inkind contributions
fees  Ed - 2H RIRGHE Total
Eze  RENEAN it st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT AR%®Tn AR%TR
Executive directors HTES
Mr Kang Baohua REZELE - - - -
Mr Zhang Lei RELE - = = =
Mr Li Hongren FHRALAE - 4,883 34 4,917
Mr Liu Futao SRRt - 4,353 34 4,387
Mr Ma Minghui SHEELE - 1,773 34 1,807
Mr Wang Hao FRELE - 446 35 481
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Mr Poon Chiu Kwok RBERLE 220 - - 220
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond BRESE 220 - - 220
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny YHEEE 220 - - 220
660 11,455 137 12,252
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHERI - UAREAER)
8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8 EEMEE

2018
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

and benefits scheme

Directors’ inkind  contributions
fees  EH& 2 G Total
%08 REVEN 3579 @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETL  AREBTLE ARRTR  ARETR

Executive directors HITES

Mr Kang Baohua REELE - 188 37 225
Mr Zhang Lei RELE - 321 35 356
Mr Li Hongren YNt - 2,683 40 2,723
Mr Liu Futao 2ERELE - 2,412 40 2,452
Mr Ma Minghui BHRBLE - 1,616 40 1,656
Mr Wang Hao FREE - 432 42 474

Independent non-executive directors  BUFHTES

Mr Poon Chiu Kwok ERELE 211 - - 211
Mr Woo Kar Tung, Raymond FiE s 211 - - 211
Mr Pang Chung Fai, Benny THEEE 211 - - 211
633 7,662 234 8,519
The emoluments of Mr Kang Baohua (the “Controlling HZE2019F12A31BMEE + FE
Shareholder”) and Mr Zhang Lei were borne by companies 50 A4 ([PEARAR R ) FNoR 5 58 £ %7
under the control of the Controlling Shareholder during the Tl by 128 A P SRR 1| 1 1 R AR HE o

year ended 31 December 2019.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2018:
two) of them are directors of the Company. The aggregate
of the emoluments in respect of the three individuals (2018:
three) who are not directors are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYRET
Discretionary bonuses IEFEAL
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRFTEIE TR

The emoluments of the employees who are not directors
and who are amongst the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are within the following bands:

(In HK$) (&T)
2,000,001-2,500,000 2,000,001 Z2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000 2,500,001 Z3,000,000

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIERIN - AARBRERD)
REHMAL

hEssHMALS Mm% (2018
FMB)RBARAESE - WIHER
BZ =% AL (20185 : =) KIZT A
R

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ETT

5,343 5,239
453 380
759 797

6,555 6,416

AEEQEESFMMELIFEZTZA

TR T AT EE
2019 2018
1 2
2 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10
Tax effect relating to each component of other comprehensive
income
Exchange differences on translation of BMEREERETHBAR
financial statements of the Company PSR R A2 EER

and certain subsidiaries into presentation P& X, Z= %8 (Fi 1 L7 12)

currency (before and after tax)

Cash flow hedge: REMELEF -
net movement in the hedging reserve P EEE) TR
— before tax amount — BRI &%
— tax expense —MIERX
- net of tax amount — F e
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 ER s
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11

(@) Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 is calculated based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB89.8 million (2018: RMB79.1 million) and the
weighted average of 6,208,147,000 ordinary shares
(2018: 6,208,147,000 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

(b)  Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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RS
e BN D L
v
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

(66,252) (17,017)
- (1,625)
- 404
- (1,221)
(66,252) (18,238)
BRER
@ EREARZEF

HE2019F12A31BILEE
BREARBFRERR AR
REMFEARKS.8SEE T
(2018%F : AR¥T79 158 L)
RRAFEEDBEITMET S
6,208,147,000% & &A% (2018
4 : 6,208,147,0000% & @A) =+

st
H o
A

FiE SR T
REZE 20194 2018412 A31

B R E A S MR
RIBAD BTSN



Cost:

At 1 January 2018

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale (Note 21)

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2018

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Reclassified to assets classified
as held for sale (Note 21)

At 31 December 2018

Net book value:
At 31 December 2018

Cost:

At 1 January 2019

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Reclassified to investment
property (Note 14)

Transfer in/(out)

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2019

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Reclassified to investment
property (Note 14)

At 31 December 2019

Net book value:
At 31 December 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BA:

7201851 A1H

[ A%

NE

irf

BEREABELEEE
(Hiz21)

R2018E12A31H

ZHHE .

120181 A1H

XA

ERHE

HERE

BEREABELEEER
(Hiz21)

12018124318

REFE:
2018124311
A

120191 A1H
7R

NE

HE

ENERRENE Wit14)

8) /(&)
120195124318

RitiE:
20195141
EH A
FNIE
& RE

ENERRENR Wit14)

12019124318

BHFE:
12019124318

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(S BEIEHEN - UAREBER)
12 Y% BERRE

Motor

vehicles

Machinery and other

Plant and and equipment  Construction

buildings equipment AER  inprogress Total
HERET  BERSRHE Hthkt ERIR H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%TR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
584,394 388,274 182,681 12,093 1,167,442
(205) (261) 735 - 269
10,749 395 756 - 11,900
(17,008) 2,783 (7,7110) - (27,500)
(150,298) - - (11,508) (161,806)
427,632 385,620 176,462 585 990,299
(149,280) (251,784) (149,076) - (650,140)
©) 165 (689) - (440)
(16,287) (17,680) (6,607) - (40,574)
4,103 1,622 7,221 - 12,846
15,838 - - - 15,838
(145,632) (267,787) (149,051) - (662,470)
282,000 117,833 27,411 585 427,829
427,632 385,620 176,462 585 990,299
100 303 1,039 - 1,442
5,633 636 2,361 = 8,630
(3,273) (1,877) (9,594) - (14,744
(17,608) - - - (17,608)
585 - - (685) -
413,069 384,682 170,268 - 968,019
(145,632) (267,787) (149,051) - (662,470)
(20) (1m) (1,018 - (1,209)
(13,089) (12,687) (5,891) - (81,617)
521 1,370 8,239 - 10,130
4,383 - - - 4,383
(153,787) (279,275) (147,721) - (680,783)
259,282 105,407 22,547 - 387,236
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 Y¥ - BERSZHE#E)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified Bt - REBEGBETBMETL
retrospective method and recognised the reclassifications FE FA B PR B 75 R 5 HE R B 1658 -
arising from the new initial application in the opening balance WHERR2019% 1 A1 B K B4
on 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating P EYSEREEXNED FIA
to leases which were previously classified as operating leases REERIIRIZER S LR E
under IAS 17. See Note 2(c). 17D RS EHERNHE SRR

HERREE - #FRMEE2(C) -

At 31 December 2019, property certificates of certain R2019F12A31H @ ETEAKREF
properties with an aggregate net book value of RMB81.1 EAARES1 1B EL(2018F 121
million (31 December 2018: RMB84.4 million) are yet to be 318 : AR®B4.4BE L) KIME
obtained. REVSYHRBE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 13 FHEEE

AEEZENEERREREEEDN
SREDFE GrERAIITR) AT

The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-use
assets, carried at depreciated cost, by class of underlying

asset is as follows:

Prepayment
for land use
right for Properties Motor
own use leased for vehicles
BRtit ownuse forown use Total
FRERAR BRBAENE BREH ECH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NS ARETT ARETT AEETT
Note () Note (i)
i) Vi)
Cost: B
At 31 December 2018 F2018%12A31H - - - -
Impact on initial application of 201951 18 &R ER BIE
IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019: HBREERF16ROTE -
- reclassified from lease -ENBEHERAR
prepayments 435,005 - - 435,005
- capitalisation of operating —REHEARBA
lease contracts - 13,167 - 13,167
At 1 January 2019 1R2019F1 A1H 435,005 13,167 - 448,172
Exchange adjustments R AR - 511 - 511
Additions ANE - 13,571 624 14,195
Reclassified to assets held for ENRERELEEEWH21)

sale (Note 21) (119,684) - - (119,684)
Reclassified to investment ENEERENEWH14)

property (Note 14) (22,822) - - (22,822)
At 31 December 2019 2019512 A31H 292,499 27,249 624 320,372
Accumulated amortisation: EHE &

At 31 December 2018 F2018F12A31H - - - -
Impact on initial application of B BB B A R o

IFRS 16 F16RNTE -

Reclassified from lease prepayments £ SR ERNH (66,647) = = (66,647)
At 1 January 2019 #2019%1 818 (66,647) - - (66,647)
Exchange adjustments i 5 AR - (197) - (197)
Charge for the year FRE (7,037) (10,449) (234) (17,720)
Reclassified to assets held for ENRERELEBEWH21)

sale (Note 21) 9,173 - - 9,173
Reclassified to investment property  BAMZREYE (#:214)

(Note 14) 4423 - - 4,423
At 31 December 2019 H2019% 12318 (60,088) (10,646) (034) (70,968)
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2019 2019512 A31H 232,411 16,603 390 249,404
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Prepayment for land use right for own use represented land use
right premiums paid by the Group for land situated in the PRC.
The remaining lease terms falls within the ranges of 38 years
to 47 years. At 31 December 2019, land use right certificates
of certain land use rights with an aggregate carrying value
of RMB5.1 million (31 December 2018: RMB5.2 million) are
yet to be obtained. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these land use rights, and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land lease.

(ii) The Group has obtained the right to use the properties as its
production plant or offices through tenancy agreements. The
leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise
the extension options, the future lease payments during the
extension periods are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities. For existing leases as at 1 January 2019 and
31 December 2019, the Group is not reasonably certain
to exercise any extension options therefore did not include
future lease payments during the extension periods in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

The Group do not have leases which contains variable lease
payment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

13 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Bt 7 R = B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

13 FHEEE(Z

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised HET AR SR ERIER
in profit or loss is as follows: T :
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Note)
(#1at)
Depreciation charge of right-of-use EREEENE TEBMNK
assets/lease prepayment 17,720 11,897
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) HE R BB (#:16() 1,055 -
Expense relating to short-term leases FIrTHE 2B ZE20195 124
and other leases with remaining lease 1Ak Z AT EIEE &
term ending on or before HiAESZNER
31 December 2019 14,815 =
Total minimum lease payments for BRI BR s R 175
leases previously classified as NEAKEHENREEE
operating leases under IAS 17 NG - 21,629

Note:

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and recognised the reclassifications
arising from the new initial application in the opening balance
on 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating
to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See Note 2(c).

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 20(c) and 25,
respectively. There is no lease that is not yet commenced as
at 31 December 2019.

HiaE

AEBEFERASETEBREDNS
FE PR B TS SR 5 A2 R 51657 -
W HERMN201941 A1 B R HA A&
BRAEZERAEENES BN

RESLAREEBR G ERE
17D EAKERENTHERAE
R FREEE - £2019F1A1H
BAEREREEER  ~&E
ERERBAEERRERAREEAE
WITE @ MARZATHEE A
Eiﬁ EHRNAERERREER

EEANMAEER - BEWE -
AT FEY - EEEHE
T BEETGEL - FFRM
#£2(c) °

HERS RN BELREEAGENEIH
DITEEE D BT I FE20(c) %25 °

HZE2019%F12A31H

’&ﬁﬁ*ﬁ

RS -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019

Reclassified from property, plant and
equipment (Note 12)
Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 13)

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019
Reclassified from property, plant and
equipment (Note 12)
Reclassified from right-of-use assets (Note 13)
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019

Net book value:
At 31 December 2019

14 BEYHE

RS
201841 A1H - 2018512 A31H
N&2019%F1H1H

ENEEYME  BENMRE#Z12)

EnEaFEREEEWit13)
M2019F12A31H

Rty .

20181 A1H » 2018512 A31H

%201951 818
ENRBBME  BE &G HZ12)

ENRBEREEE W13
F B

M2019F12A31H

BRI FE -
M2019F12A31H
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INVE

Notes:

@

(i)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

STMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 8 years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
increased every 3 years to reflect market rentals. None of the
leases includes variable lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the
Group in future periods as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFA
After 5 years AF%

The investment property owned by the Group are situated in
the PRC. According to the property valuation report issued by
an independent qualified valuer, the fair value under income
approach of the investment property at 31 December 2019 is
RMB93.3 million.

14

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

REMHE(E

Hizt

U]

(i)

AEBEAESHETAHHERE
FiE - HEMBERSF - WA
ERRESHENE G ER
HE - HENZETSIFIEM—
R ARBTISES o PIAHEEN
NEIEREBEENR

7N £2 [ 72 7 3 2 i 5 AU R TS AT A8
REHENHENFERSES AT
HARBEIR(E - TR

2019
RMB’000
AR¥T T

8,600
34,981
24,891

68,472

AEEBRENREWEELMNF
o IRIEWE L AR ER A AT
h¥ReE - ZIRAMHETE201956128
31EMARBERSETAARE
93.3EH&ETL °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEERI - AR AERD)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RHEBLARZRE
TREFNLHEAEENEE  BEK
BEREARTEZHMBARER -

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.
Proportion of ownership interest
Place of HaRRLA
establishment/ Particulars of The Group’s
incorporation registered/issued effective  Held by the Held by
and business and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary R/ SRR HM/CRAR  A%EL BALNE HHE  Principal activities
WEATAN REXHH HERAHE  ERER b2} ARE TZER
Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium The PRC United States Dollar (‘USD’) 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
Indlustry Engineering Co., Ltd. il 323,298,200 production, sale and
(‘Shenyang Yuanda)' 323,298, 200% 7t ([% 7)) installation of curtain wall
BRENEFTRARAR (TBEEA])" systems

Rt B AEBER
TRREAR

Shanghai Yuanda Aluminium The PRC RMB15,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
Industry Engineering Co., Ltd* e AE15,0000007C production, sale and
FERAEFTRARAR" installation of curtain wall
systems
Rt R A HER
RERERL
Yuanda (UK) Co., Ltd. United Kindom British Pound Sterling 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
EAREARAR 7B (‘GBP") 500,000 assembly, sale and
50000058 ([ %8 installation of curtain wall
systems
Fir FE A% HER
RRBHEZR
Shenyang Yuanda Metal Coating The PRC RMB7,000,000 100% = 100%  Plating and coating of metals
Co., Ltd* il ARET7,000,0007 SEEERER

BREALEELARAA"
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueq) 15 RAHBLARZRE(#E)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of BRI
establishment/ Particulars of The Group’s
incorporation registered/issued  effective  Held by the Held by
and business and paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries
Name of subsidiary L/ SR HB/BRAR AEEZ BAAE MHE  Principal activities
WEARAH REXY HRRAFE  ERER <25} AAEE TERE
Foshan Yuanda Aluminium Industry The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Purchase of materials for and
Engineering Co., Ltd. e AR#20,000,00070 provision of services to
(‘Foshan Yuanda')™* group companies
BlEAEFTRARART AREATRERIHRR
(THhLEAL) ™ iR
Yuanda Australia Pty Ltd. Australia Australian Dollar (‘AUD’) 100% = 100%  Design, procurement,
EARATIERRAA RARE 15,089,289 assembly, sale and
15,089,289 %7 ([E7t)) installation of curtain wall
systems
Rt BB % BER
REREAE
Yuanda USA Corporation United States of USD1,000,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
EAXEBRAA America 1,000,000%TC assembly, sale and
SHEERRE installation of curtain wall
systems
Fair B AR HER
RRBEZR
Yuanda Canada Enterprises Lid. Canada USD500,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
(*Yuanda Canade’) nex 500,000% assembly, sale and
EANEARRAA ([EANEA]) installation of curtain wal
systems
Rt B AR BER
REREAR
Yuanda Aluminium Industry Germany Euro100,000 100% - 100%  Design, procurement,
Engineering (Germany) GmbH 28l 100,000 assembly, sale and

EARRTR(EE)ARAA

installation of curtain wal
systems

*at B A% BER
RERERG
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

15

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Yuanda Aluminium Engineering
(Indlia) Private Limited
(Yuanda India’)

EABETRER)LABRAA

(TEAHE])

Yuanda Europe Ltd.
EABMNERAR

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Hong Kong)

Company Limited

EARE(BR)ARAT

Yuanda Kuwait General Contracting for

Buidings Underes
EANARGRREABARR

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Vietnam) Co., Ltd.

EABE(8R) ARALAA

AARE R ERL)
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and business
R/ 2MHL
REXLY

Republic of India
(‘Inclia”)
DE AR (TEE))

Swiss Confederation
A

Hong Kong
B

State of Kuwatt
(Kuwait")
Btk ([Rgse)

Socialist Republic
of Vigtnam

HEHETRLNE

Proportion of ownership interest

L
Particulars of The Group’s

registered/issued  effective  Held by the
and paid-up capital interest Company
ift/erR  AKEZ HARF
MERARE  ERER 5
Indian Rupee (‘INR’) 100% =

1,476,200

1476, 2000 1L

(EEELL)

Swiss Franc (‘CHF') 100% -
1,000,000
1,000,000 LA
(PRtize))

2,000,000 shares 100% -
2,000,008

Kuwatt Dinar 1,000,000 100%* =

1,000,000 BT £ 0

(TFaksE )

USD100,000 100% =
100000%7C
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Held by
subsidiaries
HE
ARER

100%

100%

100%

100%*

100%

15 RHBLARZRE =)

Principal activities

IERE

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Rt FE AR BER
RERERS

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Fi RE A% HER
TEERZA

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall
systems

Rt FE AR BER
REREAR

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Rt FE AR BER
RERERS

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Fir RE A% HER
REERZA



Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering Co., BR
BREARERTRARATLEAA

Well Galaxy Limited
SEERAR

Yuanda (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
BA(ER)BRERAT

PT. Shenyang Yuanda Aluminium
Industry Engineering

EARXTRARRAEARAR

CNYD Aluminium Industry Engineering
Malaysia SDN. BHD.
EARRTRERREAABRAR

Yuanda Curtain Wall (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
EABE IR BRAT

Place of
establishment/

incorporation registered/issued
and business and paid-up capital
R/ R ith/ERAR
REXY HRRAHE
Kingdom of Saud Saudl Arabian Riyal 500,000
Arabia 5000000 A {HEE
DR
The British Virgin USD1
Islands %7
ABRIEE
Hong Kong 1 share
&b 1R (A
Republic of Indonesia USD750,000
HEERELANE 750000% 7
Malaysia Malaysia Ringgit (‘MYR")
BRED 750,000
7500005 REDL
(EREZLE])
Republic of Singapore ~ Singapore Dollar (SGD’)
HR e 7,374,000
7,374, 00037 M%7
(ki)

PR AR MR o)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

15 RMBLARZRE =)

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The Group’s

effective
interest
A5
BREL

100%

100%

100%

99%

100%

100%

BERELA

Held by the
Company
HALE
<25}

100%

Held by
subsidiaries
e
ARER

Principal activities

IERE

100%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

%%\ﬁ%‘ % HER
REREZR

- Investment holding

RELR

100%  Investment holding

REBR

99%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall
systems

Rt B % - BER
REREAR

100%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and

installation of curtain wal
systems
uﬁ e A% HER
%@$w

100%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Fair B AR HER
REBEZR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

15

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Yuanda Mexico S.A. de C.V.
EAERATZARERAT

Yuanda ftaly SRL.
EREANBRRARA

Yuanda Queensland Pty Ltd.
EARTHARAT

Yuanda WA Pty Lid.
EARRARRARAR

Yuanda SA Pty Ltd.
BARRARIEARAA

AARE R ERL)
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and business
R/ 2MHL
REXLY

The United
Mexican States
i)

Italy
EAH

Australia
AT

Australia

N

Australia
AAHE

Proportion of ownership interest

Particulars of The Group’s

registered/issued effective
and paid-up capital interest
ift/erR  AKEZ
MERARE  ERER

Mexican Peso 1,000,000 100%
1000,0002EF L

Euro 20,000 100%
20,0008

AUD800,000 100%
80000087

AUD1 100%

127

AUD1 100%
1271
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BRRLRLA

Held by the
Company
HARF
<22}

Held by
subsidiaries
HE
ARER

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

15 RHBLARZRE =)

Principal activities

IERE

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Rt B % BER
TEBEZA

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Fit HE A% HER
RRBEZR

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall
systems

#at B % BER
RERERS

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

#i HE A% HER
RREHAN

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wall
systems

Rt AR HER
REREAR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
establishment/

PR AR MR o)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

15 RMBLARZRE =)

Proportion of ownership interest

BERELA

Particulars of The Group’s

effective

Held by the
interest Company
A5 BALE
ERER <25}

Held by
subsidiaries
e
ARER

Principal activities

IERE

incorporation registered/issued

and business and paid-up capital

Name of subsidiary R/ MR 2R/ CRAR

WEARAH REXY HRRAHE

Yuanda VIC Pty Ltd. Australia AUD1

BARSNEERAA LN 1271

Yuanda Pakistan (PVT.) Limited The Islamic Republic USD60,000

BACEHRERAA of Pakistan 60000%TC
B (AR A

(Canada Yuanda Aluminum Corporation  Canada CGanadian Dollar

MERERBER AT mex (CAD’) 100

1000eAT (7))

ok

This company is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established
in the mainland China.

These companies are limited liability companies established in
the mainland China.

The Group, through Shenyang Yuanda, owns 49% equity
interests in this company, where the remaining 51% equity
interests are held on trust for Shenyang Yuanda by an
individual resided in Kuwait. In accordance with the entrust
agreement, this individual does not have the right to vote or
receive dividends declared or participate in the liquidation
of this company. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider the Group effectively owns 100% equity interests in
the company.

100% = 100%

100%

100% = 100%

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

B 0 0 BER
TEREZS

100%  Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Bif 00K BER
TEBEZG

Design, procurement,
assembly, sale and
installation of curtain wal
systems

Rt B ERHER
TRREAR

- %N B AT R B A3 B SZ B S O
Bk -

* ZRERRARTEAMZEER

BERA] -

Z AEEBBEGRERAEBZARN
49% % - MEERS1 %RIETIHE
REBIEH A LA EES
BRAHKHE - RELENZE  %aE
BIA 3 R h 52 A AR R S

BME IR EHRDEFE - Eitt -

RARESZRA  ANEEER L#E

BZAAEI100%AKHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
16 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 16

Raw materials B
Work in progress EEM

W WO

Less: write down of inventories

Contract costs are recognised in “Selling expenses” in the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the amounts
were incurred as the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
which is not significant.

(@  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense and included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year is as follows:

St

Carrying amount of inventories
used in construction contracts
Write-down/(reversal) of write-down FEMOR, (R E)

of inventories
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FEREMER/MAA

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
228,952 242,535

96,632 167,576

(3,583) (2,986)

322,001 407,125

ERKAESRELPRNEBRRTD
MHEER | PR RESE RS
BA - ZIBERATEER -

RAREEARNFEERmE

@ RFERNBRARAZILFASG
BREANTFEES A
I
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
3,049,320 3,717,963
597 (3,262)
3,049,917 3,714,701




Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

17 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(continued)

(@)

Contract assets

Contract assets EREE
Arising from performance under
construction contracts

Less: loss allowance

All of the amounts are expected to be billed within one
year from the end of the reporting period, except for
the amounts of RMB285.7 million at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: RMB619.3 million) related to
retentions receivable (net of loss allowance) which are
expected to be recovered over one year.

Included in the contract assets are amounts of RMBO.7
million at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMBO0.7 million) due from the companies under the
control of the Controlling Shareholder.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period once milestones are reached, these
payment schedules prevent the build-up of significant
contract assets. The Group typically agrees to a one
to five years retention period after the completion of
construction contracts may be granted to customers
for retentions receivable, depending on the market
practice of construction industries in countries where
construction contracts are carried out and credit
assessment carried out by management on an
individual customer basis.

BEARTRIEL

L ER R

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

17 EEEEREREE(E

AREE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
2,959,015 3,182,830
(390,873) (351,127)
2,568,142 2,831,703

FIBRIERARRERE—F
AR LERE - 7B2019%12 31
HEEWERSEENSETE
FrRARM285.7TEE T (2018
F12A31H : ARKG19.368
J0) TBHAR — F LATB YR [E] -

R2019F12 4318 - FEUIEL
AR ERIE ST A R B FIEA R
0.7B& 7T (2018%12A31H :
ARBO7TEBT)GFAGRE
Eo

AEERZEARBREENH
R RN BE R (—
BERER)  HENAFARER
LEBREAGREE - RFH
REESRMEBRMNBESR
mISEHREREREBTF
HEEETHEENE  A&H
BREREAERREERTE
FREKEZEEREKRE—=
REOREN -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

17 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES 17 EEEEREREE(E

(continued)

(@) Contract assets (continueq) (a)

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in
previous periods is RMB328.1 million (2018:RMB666. 1
million), mainly due to the changes in estimate of the
stage of completion of certain construction contracts
and approved contract modifications.

(b)  Contract liabilities (b)
Contract liabilities EEAE
Construction contracts BEAR
— Billings in advance of performance — EAIATF AR &

Included in contract liabilities are amounts of RMB3.2
million at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB10.5 million) due to the companies under the
control of the Controlling Shareholder.

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be
recognised as revenue within one year.
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BREEGE)

FAFER BT AR ERK (S H o
ER)BRAREBRRNBA S
HAEAREK328.1H5E 7L (2018
F: AR¥666.1HET) ' =
ZHNGE TEESR LR E
EEMEETHEET T TR BB A
BB -

BRARE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

823,187 881,998

R2019F12 A31 8 » ERHER
AR ERAE S T R R B FIEA R
3.2A &7t (2018512 A31H :
ARB105BET)TAERAE
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AARAERRR —FAE
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17 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

(continued)

(b)

Contract liabilities (continued)

When the Group receives a deposit before the
production activity commences this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the project exceeds the amount

of the deposit.

Movements in contract liabilities

Balance at 1 January

Decrease in contract liabilities as
a result of recognising revenue during
the year that was included in the
contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as
a result of billing and receipt in
advance of construction activities

Balance at 31 December

1 B1RER#ERR

M2 A31 B4

PR AR MR o)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

17 EEEEREREE(E

b EREEE)

=

W AN % B 10 A U B P 4R AT UK
Aize - ALK A RFERE
EXARAE BEEHABE
ROBNEBLEEE °

ERAENEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

FRARERWAELENSR
BEEVHARRAR)

SR EF B R RIRWGR
REANA FAEEN

881,998 971,536
(521,915) (646,711)
463,104 557,173
823,187 881,998
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

18 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables for contract
work due from:
— third parties
— companies under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder

Bills receivable for contract work

Trade receivables for sale of raw
materials due from:
— third parties
— companies under the control
of the Controlling Shareholder

Less: loss allowance

Financial assets measured at
amortised cost

18 EBEEERURKREWVRRE

ERTIEEZEUGK

—m=5

— REBRBRIERN AT

BRIEEERE
HEMHE S RUGK :

=]

—%
—RERBRIEHIN AT

B R

REHRAGTEN S RMEE

At 31 December 2019, the amount of retentions receivable

from customers included in trade and bills receivables (net
of loss allowance) is RMB726.8 million (31 December 2018:

RMB641.6 million).

Except for retentions receivable (net of loss allowance) of
RMB208.5 million at 31 December 2019 (31 December
2018: RMB223.2 million), all of the remaining trade and bills
receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AREBETET
3,959,752 4,308,837
180,270 183,187
4,140,022 4,492,024
86,878 33,815
3,472 4,245
1,777 2,509
5,249 6,754
4,232,149 4,532,593
(1,313,830)  (1,693,945)
2,918,319 2,838,648

MR2019F12A318 » EIREF R
Be (MkEERE) A ARET726.8
BHET(20185FE12A31H : AR

s —

641.6EBIT) °

Bp2019F 12 B31H AR%208.5
BEIL(2018F12A31H : AR
22328 BT) WEWIRE £ (R E
BEEB) I EBRFEEIERIK
FEMCERIETE BRI —F AU [E] o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills receivables, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
More than 1 year HBiE—F

The Group generally requires customers to settle progress
billings and retentions receivable in accordance with
contracted terms. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable
are set out in Note 31(a).

18

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIERIN - AARBRERD)
B RURREWRRE(E

BRI

BEREHR  EFRUARERE
R CEBRE R R ) 1IR3 R A ke
DI

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBTT

1,114,630 1,340,511
1,803,689 1,498,137

2,918,319 2,838,648

REERE ZREPIRIES LGRS
HEEFERERRES - BALXE
E{E EBUR LA R EUER R R e R &
EENEERREE— P BRI
F£31(a) °

BERPEBERARAT | S22 UEER

219



220

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments for purchase of
inventories (Note (1))

Prepayments and deposits for
leases

Prepayment for miscellaneous
taxes

Deposits for construction
contracts’ bidding and
performance (Note (ii))

Deposits for purchase of forward
aluminium contracts

Other deposits

Receivable for disposal of
property, plant and equipment,
land use rights and assets
classified as held for sale

Derivative financial instruments:

— other derivatives

Amounts due from the Controlling
Shareholder and the companies
under his control (Note (i)

Government grants receivable

Others

Less: loss allowance

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

BEEFERMNZK
(Hfa0)
HERMNRRIZS

FEBTRNI R

BEARRIENELD
B (B2 )

BEERREANES

Hipig e

HEME - BB &R
B LiERERS
BRARFELEEERN
&R

TEEMTA :

—HMOTETA

FE W AR IR e 2 EoA%
GillEPNCIE /2
(Bt (i)

& WK A+ B

Hfth

B R
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

19 &RE - ANRREMERK

31 December

1 January 31 December

2019 2019 2018
20195 20194 20184
12A31H 1818 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT ARETIT
(Note (iv)) (Note (iv))

Kzt (v)) (i aiv)

326,169 214,681 214,681
11,799 16,056 17,875
38,057 36,498 36,498
108,662 106,165 106,165
2,513 9,013 9,013
51,742 55,971 55,971
100,000 234,895 234,895
17,781 55,451 55,451
6,630 6,719 6,719
12,691 = =
42,789 58,741 58,741
718,833 794,190 796,009
(6,229) (6,145) (6,145)
712,604 788,045 789,864




Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

19 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

@

(i

(iv)

Included in the balance are prepayments of RMB3.9 million
at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB3.8 million)
made to the companies under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder.

The balance represented deposits placed with customers
for contracts’ bidding and performance of contracts in
progress. The deposits will be released to the Group upon
the completion of the related bidding or contract work, where
applicable.

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Except for the deposits for construction contracts’

performance and the amounts of RMB3.6 million at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB26.3 million), all of
the remaining deposits, prepayments and other receivables

are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses

within one year.

PR AR MR o)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

19 RE - ANRREMERRKGE

HaE

(i)

(i)

(iv)

FAEBRBIENR2019F12A31A AR
¥3.9HBEL(20185F12A31H « A
R¥3.85 87T) MRS %
A BEL A TEMEK ©

ZERERERERNE BRER
BRAREFXMHRS - ZEERS
ERAERRERE R IR (WER)
TELEEEAEKHE -

ZEFERERR 2L AEEE
R

AREBEPN20195F1 A1 BRI ALERT
IBWRE B R PE PR B R B s s s R R
F16%  RFULE  LBERTT
25 - BRAFER2HEME2(C) -

MI2019F12 A31 HHZEARE
#ize ARE3 6B & T (20185128

318 : AR¥26.3BET) 5
s -

HER
TR 3R R E A e s R TR AR

P —F AU B SRR AR B ST
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
20 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH 20
FLOW INFORMATION

FRASRBOERREMRSR

(@)

Cash on hand and in bank comprise:

(@)

FERE MRTHFREHE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cash on hand and in bank FEER G MIRITIER 559,265 1,299,410
Time deposits with banks RITERFER 1,279,013 403,341
Frozen bank deposits RAERITIF R 39,790 =
Cash on hand and in bank in the AP ISR R FSEIR
consolidated statement of financial & MIRTTER
position 1,878,068 1,702,751
Less: N
— restricted deposits to secure —EREEEREL
the performance and retentions MR SRR
of construction contracts GilEEZ (271,813) (230,341)
— restricted deposits to secure — RIRITEFRARIT
the bank loans and bank bills EREHIERT
PR 1) 14 17 3K (356,200) (173,000)
— restricted time deposits to secure —ERRITERRRME
the bank bills PR AORR H 14 2 BATF X (650,000) -
— other time deposits with banks — H A RTTE BT K (1,000) -
— frozen bank deposits —REIRITHER (39,790) =
Cash and cash equivalents in the S RERERFHRE R
consolidated cash flow statement HEeEEY 559,265 1,299,410

The Group’s business operations in mainland China
are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of mainland
China is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed
by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
AARKRER)
20 FHRESRBOTEFEAREMEESR

20 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(BR=BHERI

a8 E)

b) BERBELNABZIHR

activities
Amounts
due to the
Controlling
Shareholder
and the
companies  Amounts
under his due to Lease  Discounted Interest
Bank loans control  third parties  liabilities hills payable Total
EfER
Rk
HEHN  ENEZH
ROER  DAZRE B HEBE  MRRE  EMAR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARMTR ARETn ARMTn ARETR  ARETR
Note 24) Note23) — (Note29) Note28)  (Note 29) Note 23)
Wz Widos)  Wid2e)  Wazs) W) ()
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12831A 2,349,646 170,326 41,703 - - 7619 2,569,204
Impact on inial application g e
of IFRS 16 (Note) £16%mz2 () - - - 11,348 - - 11,348
At1 January 2019 R201951518 2,349,646 170,326 41,703 1,348 - 7619 2,580,642
Changes from financing Bemenegs: 0
cash flows:
Proceeds from newbank loans ~~ FERTREAMETFTERE
and other borrowings 2,141,801 540,992 - - 1,144,388 - 38212
Repayment of bark loansand ~~ BEFTERRAME
other borrowings (3,045,646) (580,892 (#1,703) - (463,200) - [4131441)
Capital dlement of lease rentals paid B SRS A2 TH - - - (12,816) - - (12816)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 (R ER 7547 - - - (1,055) - - (1,055)
Borrowing costs pald BffERA - - - - - (06115 (206,115)
Total changes fom fnancing cash ~ &R EZEEE
fows (003755 (309000 (41709  (13871) 681188 (6115  (524,156)
Other changes: -
Increase in lease libiiies fom ~ AERHATHENAEAE
entering nto new leases BN
during the year - - - 14,195 - - 14,195
Entrusted payments tosuppliers. ~ ZSERAEHTER 199,109 - - - - - 199,109
Exchange adjusiment [RW - 3114 - 292 - - 3,406
Total borrowing costs [FENAEE - - - 1,055 - MM 204,626
Tota other changes EfhEaEE 199,109 3,114 - 15,542 - M5 4213%
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A31R 1,645,000 133,540 - 13,019 681,188 5015 2477822
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective method and recognised the

reclassifications arising from the new initial application

in the opening balance on 1 January 2019 to recognise

lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. See Note

2(c).

At1 January 2018

Changes from financing
cash flows:

Proceeds from new bank and other

borrowings
Repayment of bank loans

Payments for time deposits to

secure the bank loan
Borrowing costs paid

Total changes from financing
cash flows

Other changes:

Bxchange adjustment

Total horrowing costs (Note 6(a)

At 31 December 2018

R2018E1A1R
RERLRERD:

MEBTREBERAETE
EEFER
IR AR

SHER
EREERE

RERORERDER
ARE:

EjiaR
ERAALE (M6

R2018512A31A

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
20 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

20 FHERERBITFRREMRER
&R (E)
b BMEETDHEEMNBEIHE
(&)
et - AEBFBLETRNEE
IR FE FR BB P 7 e A2 RI 28
16%% ° WHK2019F1 A1 8
HVIAEERME L R LA B R
ERRBEEE LS
1 751‘"* RIEEEHE M
E 08 /E_'ITH E 1,5 ﬁ Eﬁ u$
1BEBELEMF2() ©
Amounts
duetothe
Controling
Shareholder
and the Restricted
Companies Amounts time deposits
under his dieto  tosecurethe Inferest
Bank loans control third parties bankloan payable Total
B \
RERX BRTETRE
HENGAT  ENESH  BROBME
BT LB W &R S @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note 24) Note 23) MNote 23) Note 208) Note 23)
(i) (hizt29) Witzs) (o) (Hizt29)
2,943,551 3071 - - 2,9% 2,949,558
1971792 167,228 4,703 - - 2,180,718
(2,565,697) - - - - (2,565,697)
- - - (173,000 - (173,000)
- - - - (168,344) (168,344)
(693,905) 167,223 41,703 (173,000) (168,344) (726,323)
- 2 - - - R
- - - - 173,027 173027
2,349,646 170,326 4,703 (173,000) 7619 2,396,294
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20 CASH ON HAND AND IN BANK AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

PR AR MR o)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following, these amounts relate to lease

(B BHHEHE) -
20 FHERSREBETER

a8 E)

) HMEBRSRLHE

AARE BER)
&Eﬂﬂiﬁél}lb

ZRERRERERPHES
BT - ZREARERES

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January

2019 using the modified retrospective approach and
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating
to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17. Previously, cash payments under
operating leases made by the Group as a lessee of
RMB22.9 million were classified as operating activities
in the consolidated cash flow statement. Under IFRS
16, except for short-term lease payments, all other
rentals paid on leases are now split into capital element
and interest element (see Note 20(b)) and classified
as financing cash outflows. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

rentals paid. X AIAEE o

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R AREBFTT

(Note)

(Htt)
Within operating cash flows NS e (14,126) (22,878)
Within financing cash flows REVEIR 2 RH (13,871) -
(27,997) (22,878)

et - ALER2019F1 A18F
IS RT B A B X R R
BREF R R 5 E RSB 165K ©
I R201941 A1 8 HI9 4
SBIEH AR - A BERER
*E?FVEA§+°&EIJ%17%FL
DEREEREZHE
AfERREENHEE Efao
BERT - AEEVEREMAR
TR EEENARE22.9
BETHSEAHEESRE
RHEDBEREETE - B
B H RS 2ERIE16
5% BREHAE R
Eﬁﬂﬁ ﬂa%sﬁﬁ D RE
RE S FIF) BB D (R M E
20(b)) - Iﬁﬁiiﬁz%mﬂéiﬁﬁ
M o ARBULE - EEERER
TFEY - BEAFEFLH
FizE2(c) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

21

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 21 DEABELEEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
At 1 January ®1A1R8 136,241 =
Reclassified from property, ENHEBWE - WEMEE
plant and equipment - 145,968
Reclassified from lease prepayments ENFEBHEEBNRAZ0)
(Note (i) - 220,235
Reclassified from right-of-use assets BH BB FEREEE i)
(Note (i) 110,511 -
Disposals HE (246,752) (229,962)
At 31 December M12H31H - 136,241

Notes:

(i)

During 2018, Shenyang Yuanda has entered into a land
resumption agreement (the “Shenyang Yuanda Land
Resumption Agreement”) with a third party in respect of the
disposal of certain land use rights and properties of Shenyang
Yuanda at a consideration of RMB550.0 million. The carrying
amounts of these lease prepayments and properties are
RMB220.2 million and RMB144.6 million (gross amount of
RMB245.7 million and net of associated government grant of
RMB101.1 million), respectively.

Up to 31 December 2019, the disposal has been completed
and the Group has received RMB450.0 million out of the
total consideration in relation to these assets according to
the payment schedule set in the Shenyang Yuanda Land
Resumption Agreement.

During 2019, Foshan Yuanda has entered into a land
resumption agreement with a third party in respect of
the disposal of its land use rights of Foshan Yuanda at a
consideration of RMB116.1 million. The carrying amount of the
land use rights is RMB110.5 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the disposal has been completed
and the Group has received the total consideration of
RMB116.1 million in relation to the land use rights.
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Hat

@

(i)

R201845F  JEGRNEE =5
EEBRANE T L ERELD
¥R (DESEKR LR
#|)  REARARKES50.08ETT °
ZEBAAE RMENETED B
BARM2202HETTK144.6E 8
(BB ARE245. 78T - 1
BAHBRTRAREI0118E
JT) °

R2019512 8318 » WEE 5o A
EERBES T Ui N T
ZEBMBHZEEELRETH
AREE450.0B 8T °

2019%F ' AEBFILEREE =T
B H R 1L A 3 {5 PR R AT Sz UR A
W REAAREI161EETT
T FEAERREEAARE110.5
BET -

R2019F128318 » WikE =
AEBEWNABEZSEELNE
FRARE116.1EHETT °



Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

22 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Trade payables for purchase of
inventories due to:
— Third parties
— Companies under the control of the
Controlling Shareholder

Trade payables due to sub-contractors
Bills payable

Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills payables, based on the maturity date, is as

follows:

Within 1 month or on demand
More than 1 month but less than 3 months
More than 3 months

Bt 7 R = B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEEHIN  WARBRER)
22 BSEARRESRE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
ENATHEERE
B EMNR
—F=h 1,074,014 1,250,594
— SRV PR B A I Y A
1,817 2,986
1,075,831 1,253,580
NS BEEE SR 686,194 662,687
AN 820,417 1,082,365
IHEER AT ENESREE
2,582,442 2,998,632
B E S RN RENEIRTERR—
FRBEHRBIREREE -
REREER - B EARRENERE
ZE| B MERE DITAAT ¢
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T AREFIT
& A Askiz Z sk 2,059,570 2,272,377
HBiE11E A B R3{E A 122,718 270,049
BiE3(E A 400,154 456,206
2,582,442 2,998,632
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 BRI RHEMENRK

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
2019 20194 20184F
12A31H 1H1H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARKETTT ARET T
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(Hia(i) (B 73i)
Payables for staff related costs FEfT B THERAR AR 145,190 119,157 119,157
Payables for transportation and FE i 8 SR AR =2
insurance expenses 32,897 45,215 45,215
Payables for interest expenses FERFIB X 5,075 7,619 7,619
Payables for construction and BERBEEYXE  WE
purchase of property, plant and BN
equipment 12,343 40,426 40,426
Deposits from sub-contractors DEEY THEE 47,961 27,005 27,005
Amounts due to third parties JENE=HFE - 41,703 41,703
Deposits from suppliers for HERTTHE RKRE
contracts’ bidding and LE#H RS
performance 65,929 20,890 20,890
Amounts due to the Controlling FEERR AR AR K
Shareholder and the companies ~ E-R#E# 7
under his control
— non-interest bearing (Note (i) — T B (H7a() 2,914 3,103 3,103
— interest bearing (Note (ii)) —5HE (a2 i) 130,626 167,223 167,223
Discounted bills BHIR TR 681,188 = =
Lease liabilities (Note 25) LA E (Hat2s) 10,465 6,446 =
Others Hith 37,878 40,183 40,183
Financial liabilities measured at LB SHR AT 2R 2R
amortised cost BB 1,172,466 518,970 512,524
Payables for miscellaneous taxes — JEFER: 42,750 22,465 22,465
Derivative financial instruments: TEEBTA :
— other derivatives —HMOTETA 23,021 31,343 31,343
Provision for outstanding legal REMERRERE
claims 27,118 25,948 25,948
1,265,355 598,726 592,280
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

23 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES
(continued)

Notes:

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

(ii) The amounts are unsecured, with fixed interest rate of 4.28%
and repayable within one year.

(i)~ The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

Except for amounts of RMB6.9 million at 31 December 2019
(81 December 2018: RMB9.0 million), all of the accrued
expenses and other payables are expected to be settled or
recognised in profit or loss within one year or are repayable
on demand.

23

PR AR MR o)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

FEETRA X R BN (&

HaE

(i)

(i)

FRm2

HEEEA - TR REEE
g@

i
.

ZEREBEEF - RE TR
4.28% B RN —FAREE -

AEBRN20195F1 1B F ALER
IBWRE B I PE PR B R B S s s R B
F16% o REFULE  LBERTT
25 - BRAFER2HEME2(C)

019512 A31HHARE6.97

70 (2018F12H31H : AR¥Q.0H
EIT) B - AR RE
ftb FEAT R TR BRI I — F AVE B RNE
R MERIIL ZKIEE o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

24 BANK LOANS 24 RITEX
(@ The Group’s short-term bank loans are analysed as @ AEBEMEHRITERS TN
follows: K
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Bank loans: RITEN ¢
— secured by property, plant and —AREBHWE -
equipment and land use rights B K 5R 5 DA B {5
of the Group and pledged by FAREVER I MR TTF
bank deposits (Note 24(c)) SKAESAR (H7£24(c)) 270,000 300,000
— guaranteed by the Controlling — AP AR R ISk
Shareholder and/or a company HEH A R ER
under his control 380,000 750,000
— guaranteed by a third party —AB=FER - 200,000
- secured by property, plant and — AR RS BRI A
equipment and land use rights of NRINME - HE &
and guaranteed by a company AR M At PR E
under the control of the Controlling AR R AR AR R
Shareholder ZHI R FIER 340,000 411,792
— secured by property, plant and —DAREERNTE - B
equipment and land use rights of B R&E R A
the Group, secured by property, YRR I 2
plant and equipment and land i Sudall: NGl k)
use rights of and guaranteed by ¥ BERERERT
companies under the control of the o AR
Controlling Shareholder (Note 24(c)) (Hat24(c) 322,000 —
— pledged by securities of a company — DAFR R4 AR AR R A
under the control of the Controlling BN R RE SR
Shareholder 100,000 -
— unguaranteed and unsecured — AR R R - 50,000
1,412,000 1,711,792
Add: current portion of long-term bank il : T EISRTTE FEYENEA
loans (Note 24(b)) o (Btat24(0)) 233,000 576,085

1,645,000 2,287,877
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24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

AARKRER)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as (b)
follows:

Secured by property, plant and DAREENE - BB M&
equipment, land use rights and assets ~ #5 + T FEAENRSLEE
classified as held for sale of the Group ~ HH{EHE & E/EHE I
(Note 24(c)) (Hiat24(c)

Guaranteed by a company under the PASZ PR AR AR SR I B A R4
control of the Controlling Shareholder R M LAZANSE B iE HiTF 50 &

and pledged by time deposits and B 5 EUGRVEER
trade receivables of the Group (Btat24(c)
(Note 24(c))

Secured by property, plant and DAREERE -« BE &R
equipment and land use rights of the 18 I = {5 FR#E VR AR 2

Group, secured by property, plant I IR RIS ) A A
and equipment and land use rights B - BRE MR R T
of and guaranteed by companies Hh5E FRRETEAR (H77#24(c))

under the control of the Controlling
Shareholder (Note 24(c))

Less: current portion of long-term B RABSRTTE A BDARER
bank loans (Note 24(a)) 2 (Hit24(a)

BERPEBERARAT | S22 UEER

(% RE RS -
24 SRITERE)

AEBENRBRITERD A

T
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYET T ARBFIT
- 480,000
- 157,854
233,000 =
233,000 637,854
(233,000) (576,085)
- 61,769
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRHIERI - UARE BEBR)
24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are analysed as
follows: (continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans are repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year or on demand —FRNIZER
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRBERFA

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate carrying value of
the property, plant and equipment and land use rights
pledged for the Group’s bank loans is RMB480.8 million
(the aggregate carrying value of the property, plant and
equipment, land use rights and assets classified as held
for sale pledged at 31 December 2018: RMB843.2
million).

At 31 December 2019, no time deposits or trade
receivables were pledged for the Group’s long-term
bank loans (31 December 2018: RMB173.0 million and
USD161.9 million, respectively).

At 31 December 2019, the carrying value of the
deposits pledged for the Group’s short-term bank loans
is RMB30.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB Nil).

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

24 SRITERE)

(b)

AEBEHRHRITE RS 40
NG

REBFHRPBTERNER
R

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
233,000 576,085

- 61,769

233,000 637,854

MR20194F12A831H * iAEE
WIRITTERDEROYE - &
BREE - LinFERERS A
REFELEEENEREER
AR®480.8B &L (BHEFH
M - BB REE - TiEA
RSB RBELEEENE
BREEMR2018F12H31H : A
R¥8432HETT) °

MR2019F 128318 * iAEE
RERITEFE TN ETE AT
KRB 5 W (2018512 A
31BPRA : ARM173.088
TTXR161.9BEZETT) °

MR2019F 12 A31H » AEE R
RHERITEREERNTERN
REEEAARKEI.0OBEET
(201812 A311 : ) -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(@

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s banking facilities
amounted to RMB850.0 million (31 December 2018:
RMB1,140.0 million) were utilised to the extent of
RMB555.0 million (31 December 2018: RMB1,140.0
million).

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
31(b). At 31 December 2019, none of the covenants
relating to the bank loans had been breached (31
December 2018: None).

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

24 SRITERE)

(@

R2019F12A31H » AEEH
RITHEREE B ARKES50.08
27T (2018F12A31H : AR
#1,140.08&7T) - EBAAR
#555.08 &7t (2018412 A 31
B : AR¥1,1400887T) °

AREBENSE TRITER KA
ERHESREBIIVNERET
PP RFBZEFEE - IO
SEER®HE - BIARENRE
BER AEBETEHEERS
BTHEBAESE  AEBEER
BE e RRAE—FFBEHL
MfEE31(b) - 20194 12 B 31
A MEZ2xEIMNEEFTE
B BH R (2018F 12 A 31
H: & -
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
LEASE LIABILITIES 25

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of
transition to IFRS 16:

At 31 December 2019

HEAE

TRERTARERN E—REHR
AR EEE BRI B EERF16
B E B EERERENRIGHRAREIH
H :

At 1 January 2019

R2019%12A31H R2019F1 A1H
Present Present

value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum  the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHE REHAE REAE RERE
NRBAE FRAHE NHEE g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AR¥TR AREFRT ARETR
Within 1 year 1FR 10,465 10,774 6,446 6,675
After 1 year but within 2 years 1EEER2ER 1,826 1,961 4,902 5,339
After 2 years but within 5 years 2ERARSER 728 828 = =
2,554 2,789 4,902 5,339
13,019 13,563 11,348 12,014
Less: total future interest expenses i : AR ICKI B FX 258 (544) (666)
Present value of lease liabilities MEAERE 13,019 11,348

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and recognised the reclassifications
arising from the new initial application in the opening balance
on 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17. Comparative information as at 31 December
2018 has not been restated. Further details on the impact of
the transition to IFRS 16 are set out in Note 2(c).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 10 April 2013 (the “Adoption Date”), the directors of the
Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining certain
employees of the Group and to attract suitable personnel for
further development with the Group. A trust has been set up
for the purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock Exchange
with cash contributed by the Group, and to hold such shares
until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to time, at
its sole and absolute discretion, select any employee of the
Group (other than those classes of employees specifically
excluded as stated in the Share Award Scheme) for
participation in the Share Award Scheme and grant such
number of awarded shares to any selected employee of the
Group at nil consideration. The directors of the Company
are entitled to impose any conditions (including a period of
continued service within the Group after the award) with
respect to the vesting of the awarded shares.

The Share Award Scheme came into effect on the Adoption
Date, and shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (i) such date
of early termination as determined by the directors of the
Company.

26

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEEHIN  WARBRER)
URAEERS

M2013F4 108 ([FHHMB L) + &
NEIESHRMN—IBMR D RN E (A
DERENET S - (ERREIREBEARE
BETEES  URAREEE T
BRS|IAEAE - BEAEERMDEE
FTEIRZERE

RIER D EEEIET 8 - IS FERT AE
AEBRENES  RBRXAEEAR
DA - ARBEZERNERZ
ERMBEB AL

RABEZATRIRENIBTIERE
B EfE 8 (Biy REFH 8DER AR
ERZZRREERIN 2 M 82
BhEtEl - AR EEREAKTENS
ERERLABHANEBRND - &
DR EF BB RR D T
fEt (B RN EBREERE A%
E g HAR) o

Betn SR EhA SN ERA B IR - AR
R TERPELLL - (VRA B HR
FTEBFER : RARBEEM
IRERPKIEREE]
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BB - UARKEBER)
26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 26
(continued)

Details of the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are
set out below:

LIRAGEERZ 5 (&,

Befn BRI A R MDFFBT ¢

2019 2018
No. of No. of
shares Value shares Value
R EE EfE RInE R B8
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
THR AR¥TR Tk ARETRT
At 1 January and 31 December M1A1HKR12A31H 587 210 587 210

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
ordinary shares held under the Share Award Scheme were
awarded to or vested by any employee of the Group.

27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@ Movements of current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

HZE2019F K2018E12 A31 B IL4F
[ BERER O EEFEFEANE
BER T AEETEENFE -

B OB R R TSR

(@) BEHFHAREKAR IR

ZEHmT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Income tax payable at 1 January M A1 B K ERETEE 224,084 197,379
Exchange adjustments b SR 2,729 (513)
Provision for income tax on the estimated ~ E A& EHERF FB A PT1SH:

taxable profits for the year (Note 7(a)) Bt (Wit 7 @) 16,349 17,922
Income tax paid during the year FABENAER (41,413) (12,675)
Income tax refunded PSTURE 25,181 21,971
Income tax payable at 31 December M2 531 BRI EMFTERE 226,930 224,084
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RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27 EHMBARRRANAER (E
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELCHEBEEEREE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities & OF 81 T iR 2k T SR 9 IR A
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial MIBEENBBENEKBD K
position and the movements during the year are as FAFBIT ¢
follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the related Loss Remeasure-
depreciation allowance ment
and on trade of the
government andother ~ Provisionfor fair value of
Unused  grantsand receivables  warranties,  derivative
tax related ~ Writedown  and contract and financial
losses  depreciation  of inventories assets legal claims  instruments Total
#a
RBfiE
WiTES 2ARAM
HENR BUFUR -0
AER HARE AREEN  REREE  4ERIR
HAEE REBNE  FEEW 0 BERE  ZREE  NOAEE ot
Deferred tax arising from: RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000
RSB EEENEERSE ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETz  ARETR
At January 2018 H01BF1A1A 429 21599 1,563 4745 68,519 (7,584) 602,933
Exchange adiusiments Ejiig 1 - - 8 819 - 718
(Chrged) creited o he nelERRT
consolicated statementofproft~ (418) /3tA
orloss Mote 74) Wi 2630) @150 617 (19,224) (1969 257 (48,069)
Cedtedtoresenes o 1) INEBTAMGN) - - - - - 404 104
At 31 December 2018 and H01BE12A31RR
1 January 2019 2019F1A1A 18,381 19,449 146 455,328 06,875 (4793 555,086
Exchange adjustments Ejig o4 - - 2 18 - 14
Crectted/{charged) to the
consolidated statementofproft~ RASERR A/ (1B)
orloss fMote 7). i) 6,086 (4030) 149 (81,704) (16,829) 5519 (89,849)
At 31 Decermber 2019 H019612/51 A 25213 15,419 895 313,626 50,064 786 466,063
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

27

(c)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

27 EHPBRRRANAES (&

()

position:

Deferred tax assets recognised in the RE G ISR R R AR
consolidated statement of financial BRI EE
position

Deferred tax liabilities recognised inthe A& ISR KR A RER A
consolidated statement of financial RIERIEEE

position

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences arising from certain subsidiaries
of the Group of RMB1,153.8 million at 31 December
2019 (31 December 2018: RMB1,046.5 million), as
it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Except for the
amount of RMB544.4 million which will not expire under
the relevant tax legislation, the remaining unused tax
losses at 31 December 2019 will expire on or before 31
December 2027.
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B O BAR R AR AR

MIBEERAENEER
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
466,236 558,844
(173) (2,858)
466,063 555,986

RERELETRIEE E

BRI FE2(s) T E M S 5 THEUR
RE@IAF2019F12 A31
HEASEETHEBAREAL
/) 2K B A A 18 B 18 & Al H00R
TRE=mARY1,153.888
JL(2018F12A31H : AR
1,046.58 & 7T) AR IE A
E RARBBRBAEER
KB BN AR KRR 6L FERBL
FEAUKE B HAEIE -
BARKS44. 4B E T EE
EEABMBEETER TR
2019F12 A31 B A B BHS
BB R20274F12 A31 Bk A
AT JE R ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2019, temporary differences relating
to the retained profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC amounted to RMB2,561.5
million (831 December 2018: RMB2,392.5 million), of
which no deferred tax liabilities in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these profits
was provided as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that such profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES

At 1 January R1A18
Exchange adjustments bE 54 S B
Additional provisions made B EHERRIMNE R
Provisions utilised EBAEE

At 31 December M®12H31H

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

27 EHBBRRRANAES (&

(€ ARERELEHBERE

MR2019F12A31H » AA
EER R R HHE R A/
REBABENEREZEAARE
2,561.56 8 87T (2018512 431
A: AR¥2302 5658 @ &
PR A R o k% S F)E FE
3 IE BV R SE A TE B B 1 B
(IR N PSP N Bk =
BARMKERR  MEEE
E S EAI AR R AR
RIEDIK °

Less: amounts included as current liabilites &, © H&GERBIFELE RIS A E

at the end of the reporting period RSk

Under the terms of the Group’s construction contracts
with its customers, the Group will rectify any defects arising
within one to five years from the date of completion of the
construction contracts, as required by industry regulations
in respective jurisdictions and depending on the terms
negotiated with each customer. Provision is therefore made
for the best estimate of the expected settlement under these
construction contracts in respect of construction contracts
completed within one to five years prior to the end of the
reporting period. The amount of provision takes into account
the Group’s recent claim experience and is only made where
a warranty claim is probable.

RIEEE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
303,738 309,395
4,995 (1,409)
75,416 83,093
(128,340) (87,341)
255,809 303,738
(82,023) (63,365)
173,786 240,373

REASEEEARFITVHNEEAR
R AEBERERENE FAER
MITERBIFTHRE MR T RER PR
B B EEMREESRTT
AR - ERFRNELENRE - F
bt BEIRRERRA—Z2RFR
TRMZEARMBRBEZFEEER
MBI E BRI REGFT MR o &
BB MAREI RN R RER
WAERNA AT BEHRRIE A RAFEHE ©
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(=B HEAI
29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

AARE R ERL)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing

balances of each component of the Group’s

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes

in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:

At 1 January 2018

Changes in equity for 2018:

Loss for the year
QOther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2018 and
January 2019 (Note)

Changes in equity for 2019:

Profit for the year
QOther comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2019

R201851A1R

018 2 RS |

FREE

b 2ENE

PENGEE

R2018%12B31A R
R2019E1 B1R (H2)

0195 R8T :

FRFE
AthaERE
FENELE

R2019512A318

29 EBX - HERERE

(@) AR HYE
REEMNEHERSEKDBS
B A9 % B AR A e ) T BR B
BHERETRT  c FYEF
Z“HsﬁF'EJZIS’A &) 89 18 51| # 2 48 BX
DEEEFIEHIIAT
Shares held
under share
Share Share award Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium scheme reserve loss Total
RERGER
e RiEE  ERSRG EX Rl ZiTER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETr  ARETRT  ARETR
(Note 296)  (Note 290))) ~ (Note 29())  (Note 294)|)
it2g0)  (tegen)  (Waegenm)  (azqon)
519,723 574,047 (210) rn4) (75,790) 990,056
- - - - (3283 (3283
- - - (40,882) - (40,882)
- - - (40,882) (3283 (44,165)
519,723 574,047 (210) (68,596) (79,073) 945,891
- - - - 1,678 1,678
- - - 117,576 - 117,576
- - - 117,576 1,678 119,254
519,723 574,047 (10) 48,980 (77,395) 1,065,145
MiaF - ANEER201951 A1 B FIALE

Note: The Group, including the Company, has initially
applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. There has been no impact on

the Company’s individual components of equity.
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuead)

(b)

)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

Dividends

(i)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of a dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$NIl).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the
year

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$NIl).

Share capital

(i)

(i)

Issued share capital:

No. of
shares
RB#E
’000
TR
Ordinary shares, issued Laik o B8
and fully paid: KA :
At 1 January and 31 December 1 A1H &
12A31H 6,208,734

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

20 EBX - RFERRE(Z

() BERFANEMARDIF
R

RATESEZDIKTE
Z2019%F12A31HIEF
FERIA% B (20184 : T
JT) °

(i) FEREL-PRFENE
REQXFARREKE - ER
A EEHE I ROTRAY

REZE2019F12A31H
WEHLEF B E—FBE

[EH AR HEARR B (20184 :

=TT °

(© REK
(i) BRITERAE:
2019 2018

No. of

shares

L E
RMB’000 '000 RMB’000
ARETR T  ARETRT
519,723 6,208,734 519,723

At 31 December 2019, 587,000 ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme (31 December 2018: 587,000 ordinary
shares) (see Note 26).

(i) M2019F12H31H ' K
N AR R (0 2Bt Bl FF
B587,0008% & ifAx (2018
#12H31H : 587,000
TLimAR) (RFI5E26) °
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(RABHEHSN

AARE R ERL)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuead)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid for
shares held under the Share Award Scheme.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents () the difference
between the carrying values of the non-
controlling interests acquired by the Group and
the considerations paid; (i) the surplus/deficit
of the carrying values of the controlling equity
interests in subsidiaries under common control
disposed of over the considerations received; (iii)
the difference between the carrying values of the
controlling equity interests in subsidiaries acquired
and the considerations paid under the Group’s
reorganisation completed in 2010; and (iv) the
difference between the carrying value of the net
assets acquired and the consideration paid for
the acquisition of a business under common
control in 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuead)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC, these subsidiaries are required to set
up certain statutory reserves, which are non-
distributable. The appropriation to these reserves
is at discretion of the directors of the respective
subsidiaries. The PRC statutory reserves can
only be utilised for predetermined means upon
approval by the relevant authority.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant PRC
regulations, with effect on 1 January 2012, a
reserve for production safety is required to be
set up and to be appropriated at a fixed rate
on the revenue of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC. The reserve can be
utilised for expenses or capital expenditures
incurred in connection with production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the presentation currency. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2(v).

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the fair
value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in Note 2(f).

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

20 EBX - FERRE(E)

() RENEERENGE)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

REAE RS

RIBAREER P BEKIZE
ff /B8 X A Y 4B A = A2 AT
A ZEMBRRIERL
AT AR DK #)OE E
o MZFREEN D S
EMBARINESZBIER
E o FEDEEREER A
TR AR B SR TR

EERE -

AN - iRIE B20124F1 A
1 B #E A 0 H) 48 A R BE
#] o REERP B
L I)EEMNEIVEE AN R - a—E -t
B EE LBl e
e - B REZN
ERREEEMEENE
FAZEARAR o

BE R R

BN EEREREEINE
BHEHRERAB2INEER
EERINEZEE - xiE R
TREK 2V FFE e
SRR ©

e

AR RERERFR
B2 ARR S REY
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(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continuead)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines adjusted net debt as total debt
(which includes bank loans, discounted bills, amounts
due to the Controlling Shareholder and the companies
under his control (interest bearing), trade and bills
payables and lease liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less
unaccrued proposed dividends.

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, the Group recognises right-of-use assets
and corresponding lease liabilities for certain leases
previously accounted for as operating leases as from 1
January 2019. There has been no significant impact on
the Group’s total debt and adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio.

During 2019, the Group’s strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at an acceptable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to equity
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEREAEIN - UARBABER)
29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 29 EBXR-RFERRE(E
(e) Capital management e BARER

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 20194 201812 31 B HY

December 2019 and 2018 was as follows: AREEKALFEHHEERL
KT -
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
20194 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Current liabilities: MENEME :
Trade and bills payables SN ENEE 2,582,442 2,998,632
Amounts due to the Controlling J+1‘H EAS A% R R 52 AR I Y
Shareholder and the companies NAEHEIR
under his control
— interest bearing —&r 2 130,626 167,223
Accrued expense and other it M EMEANEEEE
payables-lease liabilities 10,465 -
Discounted bills AL IR % 681,188 =
Bank loans RITER 1,645,000 2,287,877
5,049,721 5,453,732
Non-current liabilities: ERBEE :
Bank loans RITER - 61,769
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,554 =
Total debt BIETS 5,052,275 5,515,501
Less: cash on hand and in bank B FEEIRE RIRITE K (1,878,068) (1,702,751)
Adjusted net debt RAEFEK 3,174,207 3,812,750
Total equity and adjusted capital &R EAREREE 2,731,695 2,708,127
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio &R FEHEE AL R 116% 141%

Hiet - ARENBRETEWEE
IR 8 PR B R B 7 s 5 R R SR

16581 201941 A1 HHA

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and recognised the
reclassifications arising from the new initial application

in the opening balance on 1 January 2019 to recognise VERELARMED S -
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously LA B BRI AR IR IR &5
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Under ZRE17HH iﬁﬁﬁ%’éﬁ

EvHERRATEAR
BRI - LEENATE
5| - BRAFBBELHME
2(c)

this approcach, comparative information is not been
restated. See Note 2(c).

AR A S EAE AT B B A R4 B
MBI IR B ANFRTE R B ©

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEERI - AR AERD)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 EXEHIRS
BRI FH MR LMo WENHR
5 MAESRIN  AEBERFARRIZHE
R Z SN T -

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material related
party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
are set out below.

(@ Transactions with the Controlling Shareholder and the (@

companies under his control

B PR AR R R Ko SR EL AR B A A

M5

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Purchase of materials and services B E M F & IRFE 1,286 500
Net (decrease)/increase in interest
bearing advances received from HEBEESE 7 IR Y T B 35K
related parties () /G anFEE (39,900) 167,223
Net decrease in non-interest bearing % F B8t 75 T aH B2 TR
advances granted to related parties ~ JF%8 - 11,392

Further details on guarantees provided by related

parties for the Group’s bank loans are disclosed in

Notes 24(a) and 24(b).

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b)

Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the directors of the

R AR BRI TE SRR
M ERNE—TFBRWF
24(a) M 24b)HE °

TEEEASHM

AEEFZEEABNEH -
BRERKFSHENARAES

Company as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows: SAHFRIBAT ¢
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETIT
Short-term employee benefits HIE B A 12,318 8,479
Retirement schemes contributions RORGET B R 137 234
12,455 8,713

FMEER SN B ITRAIR (R
sT6(0)) ©

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note
6(b)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables and contract
assets. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents, bills receivables
and derivative financial assets is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit standing, for which the Group considers to
have low credit risk.

Except for the guarantee letters given by the Group
as set out in Note 33(a), the Group does not provide
any other guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in Note 33(a).

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At 31 December
2019 and 2018, there are no significant concentrations
of credit risk through exposure to individual customers.

31

Bt 7 R = B & )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)
HEEABEEREMIANAIAE

&

AEBAXNBEEBBEPEEN
.:.E ‘//\L@Jéfi ﬂ &il’f%ﬂ

T X H AN B A A% S R AR
E B AUEEZERR I IR
EEPR B -

(@ EER

EERBEXZTRERES
MEEMERANEBERZHM
BERZRAR - KEIE’JEEH
T ERENE R K
ﬁﬁ§°$EIXEﬁi&ﬁ
TFHEHB  BREBRITE
TREENEERRER - A
REZGEFHRAEERRE
EREEFRNRITR S
B e

BRI 5E33(a) P AN S B Y

REKSN - R B3 Bl AN = E
2 HERHEE R R RS E R E

HIER - RIREPRAZED
ﬁ%ft{%ﬁﬁnnmﬁfﬁ :j)f b_/\\
FI5E33(a) P HE °

EZRUNRREREE

AEEHNEERREIFEXEHR
FrERERMZE  MIEX
EPREMETEREARTE
MAEBENEREERKRER
EAEEEHEANENEBEA
RBREELE - R20199F %2018
F12A318  IEAREBR
FHEXREESTRER -
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Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(@)

Credit risk (continueq)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. The
Group generally requires customers to settle progress
billings and retentions receivable in accordance with
contracted terms and other debts in accordance with
agreements. Except for retentions receivable, trade
receivables and contract assets for contract work are
considered past due once billings have been made and
revenue has been recognised, respectively. Retention
terms of one to five years may be granted to customers
for retentions receivable. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(@

Credit risk (continueq)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continueq)

The following table provides information about the

Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables and contract assets:

Current (not past due)
Within1 year past due
More than 1 year past due

Current (not past due)
Within1 year past due
More than 1 year past due

mE (CRE )
BN —F
AAEE—F

e CRIEH)
BN —F
HAERS —F

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

31 MERAREERERIANDAE
B (&)

(@

EERR &)
BESRUNRREREE(E)
TREHEBAKERN2019F

12A31EE S REANEF
BEMMEEREERR MBS

ERBRZER :
2019
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHIEIEE HBAREE EiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%TR
1.7% 659,368 11,283
7.6% 2,068,501 158,190
35.1% 4,376,417 1,535,230
24.0% 7,104,286 1,704,703
2018
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIBEX MREREE E R
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTIT ARETT
6.8% 362,041 24,699
7.6% 2,202,382 168,147
36.2% 5,117,185 1,852,226
26.6% 7,681,608 2,045,072
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 UHEBREERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(#E)

(@  Credit risk (continued) @ EERRE
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) EZRWURREREE (&)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEHEEXRRRBAIFHNER
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are EIEEREL - ZZFLXET
adjusted to reflect differences between economic R AR B B YR B T SR ER
conditions during the period over which the historic MRz EBARR « & RJTAROR &
data has been collected, current conditions and the N ES [ HY pE W R 2 TR ERSF BRI
Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected BRI BER 2 HHNER

lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FRNEBESRUZLERE
trade receivables and contract assets during the year is EREEREREEHNT
as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥ETT

Balance at 1 January M1 A1 2,045,072 2,079,326
Exchange adjustment bE AR 16,518 8,401
Amounts written-off during the year SRR A & 58 (512,712) (232,670)
Impairment losses recognised during &N 2 fERREE 1B

the year 285,751 211,432
Impairment losses written-back FREE R EEE

during the year (129,926) (21,417)
Balance at 31 December M12 831 B &R 1,704,703 2,045,072
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed by the
Group, which includes the short-term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on current rates at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest dates the Group can be required to pay:

RS TEL IR )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEIEAIN - AARERERL)

31 FEXEREEREMIBENAAE
=NG=D)

(b)

MENE TR

AEBETRERGBKIBM - B
EREERNEMRERER
EFmEAHREFR - A%
BHBRRRETRERERDE
EHRENREETEERENE
o AEREER MRS
BRtEZSRBBIETHR
MAERERE  UneEHERE
HREMRSHESHR -

TERFLRAEEIFTESR
BERTESRARREEH
BMEEENBRTERZIMA -
DERARFMARERE (B
EERA RMERFHEAFER
B (HBEBNE) RERE
HREAERNRTHER) RAS
ERENRNREBHEL
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252

B 5 3 2% B & )
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(BRRHIERI - UARE BEBR)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 FEEREEREMIANAAE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE#E)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) RBESRRE)
2019
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BERERRSRL
Morethan ~ More than
Within 1yearbut  2years but Carrying
1 year or on less than less than amount at
demand 2 years 3 years Total 31 December
—FR BB-fF BEMF M2A31H
FEER EIRWE  EIRZE st HEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARMTr ARETR AR¥T:
Trade and bills payables BOEANTRERNTE 2,582,442 - - 2582442 2,582,442
Accrued expenses and other  TRESHRR AT B ) fES
payables measured at R REAER R
amortised cost 1,178,350 - - 1,178,350 1,172,466
Lease liabilities (Notg) REBEH:Z) - 1,961 828 2,789 2,554
Bank loans RITEH 1,692,436 - - 1,692,436 1,645,000

2019
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ARXERRL (RE) /R
Morethan ~ More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5years Total
—FR BR-F BBME
HEER EIRWmE  EAOREE Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT ARBTR ARETR
Derivatives settled gross: BEETETARS:
Other forward foreign exchange contracts:  E-ftiEEISNEAH) -
- outflow — (1,009,226) (493,109) (273,329)  (1,775,664)
- inflow —mA 1,007,409 491,714 271,148 1,770,271

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BBHER » AR AER)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 BEEREEREMIAENAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(#E)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) b) RBESRRE)

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the BieE - AREBR20195F1 A1 8 F|
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the RET e EE R ERE
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise BRE RS AR 165%
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously HEARAEAREL TR - A
classified as operating leases under IAS 17. Lease BRALAIMRIREIRR 25148
liabilities include amounts recognised at the date of FITHRDERIEEHEEZ
transition to IFRS 16 in respect of leases previously HeEmRAREARE - B8
classified as operating leases under IAS 17 and BEBESNEERERITS
amounts relating to new leases entered into during the HwELERZE 165 E B LA
year. Under this approach, the comparative information is RIRBIPR &5 4RI 1758
not restated. See Note 2(c). DEAKEREZHESESD

B BARKEEFRL]
WIEE - BEBIE - LB
BATEY - BHAFEES
BRI E2(C) °
2018
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARBERSTH
More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but Carrying
1 year oron less than less than amount at
demand 2 years 3 years Total 31 December
—FR A BRRE M2A31H
FEER  EIRRE  EIR=E @it MEREE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARETL ARBTR ARETLE ARETR

Trade and bills payables EIRAFNEANRE 2998632 - - 2998632 2,998,632
Accrued expenses and other TR SHA NG 2 ROfERT

payables measured at R REMER T

amortised cost 512,524 - - 512,524 512,524
Bank loans RITER 2,351,454 62,661 — 2,414,115 2,349,646
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(o)  Liquidity risk (continued)

Derivatives settled gross:

=

- outflow \

g

- inflow

(c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk

respectively.
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Other forward foreign exchange contracts:  EftiEEISNEAH) -

31 FXEREEREMIEBENAAE
BE(E)

b) RBEZEREE)

2018
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ARRERBRS (RH) /A
More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but

1 year or on less than less than
demand 2 years 5 years Total

—£/ BR—F BBRE
FEER  EIRWE  BEIRLE @t

RMB'000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTR AREBTR ARETR

(1,015758) (651,056 (221,755  (1,888,569)
1,022,583 664,330 226210 1,913,623

©  FIERRE

NM=xEBETRITANRRE
B3R RIA 2 Mg E M5 F &
SHMRBHER - REBEH
MERBREIEREARMEE -
RIF BN R K B M R 3 e
EEDRSTAEBAXRBE SR
ENRER LA R BENEXR

oo o
PR

A



31

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(©)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:

Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEEE
Bank loans RITER
Interest bearing advances

received from related parties  YREREEHE it B2k
Lease liabilities (Note) MEREWZ)

Variable rate borrowings: ~ FEAREE

Bank loans RITER

Total borrowings EEAH

Fixed rate borrowings as ~ EENZREEGEE
a percentage of total BEEIH
borrowings

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See Note 2(c).

31 HBEEREEREMIAENAARE
BE(#E)
€ FIERpEE)
(i) F=EE
TRFMAEBEENR
HHRA A A
2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERF=x BHH =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
5.90% 1,125,000 5.76% 1,190,000
4.28% 130,626 4.28% 167,223
5.40% 13,019 n/a n/a
1,268,645 1,357,223
4.65% 520,000 4.73% 1,159,646
1,788,645 2,516,869
1% 54%
Hiit - AEBER2019%F1A4
1B R ALET BN
% B R E B RR B

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIERIN - UARKERER)

% AE - AEEE
e RIR AR BIPR & 5t 22
BISE17R DR RS &
HEZHERRH/HE
EafE - RERWE
LEEE RS T ES -
BRFER2HME
2(c) °
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Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i1)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and the Group’s retained
profits of approximately RMB4.4 million (2018:
approximately RMB9.9 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk at the end of
the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expenses of
such a change in interest rates. The sensitivity
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(@

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
revenue from and costs incurred for contract work,
purchases of imported materials which give rise to
receivables, payables, inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group, and cash balances that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
USD, Euro, SGD, AUD, GBP, CHF, CAD, RMB, HKS$,
Qatar Riyal (“QAR”), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) and
Russia Rubles (“RUB”).

A significant portion of the Group’s business is
overseas construction contracts, and these contracts
are generally settled in currencies other than RMB. The
Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to
minimise its exposure to currency risk arising therefrom.

(i) Hedges of foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions

The Group hedges portion of its estimated foreign
currency exposure in respect of highly probable
forecast revenue from overseas construction
contracts.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(RABHEHSN

AARE R ERL)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Hedges of foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions (continued)

The Group uses forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage its currency risk until the
settlement date of foreign currency receivables or
payables. The Group designates those forward
exchange contracts as hedging instruments in
cash flow hedges and does not separate the
forward and spot element of a forward exchange
contract but instead designates the forward
exchange contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship. Correspondingly, the hedged item is
measured based on the forward exchange rate.

The Group determines the existence of an
economic relationship between the forward
exchange contracts and the highly probable
forecast transactions based on their currency
amounts and the timing of their respective cash
flows. The main sources of ineffectiveness in
these hedging relationships are:

(@ the effect of the counterparty’s and the
Group’s own credit risk on the fair value of
the forward exchange contracts which is
not reflected in the change in the value of
the hedged cash flows attributable to the
forward rate; and

(b) changes in the timing of the hedged
transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(1)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

Change in the fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts that economically hedge
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies is recognised in profit or loss
(see Note 6(a)). At 31 December 2019, the net
fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
used by the Group as economic hedges of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies was a loss of RMB5.2 million
(31 December 2018: a gain of RMB24.1 million)
recognised as derivative financial instruments.

In respect of the remaining receivables and
payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

Exposure to currency risk

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using
the spot rates at the end of the reporting period.
Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
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Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 UHEBREERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE#E)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) o) BEERkREE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) EIHEBRRE)
2019
UsD Euro SGD AUD GBP CHF CAD RMB HKS AR VND RUB

L
in En oFmin A B OREE o mn ARE B MR MBE b
RMBO0 RMBOX) RMBOX) RMBOX RMBODD RMBOOD RMBODD RMBODD RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBON RMBON
ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTZ

Contract assets AHAE 87574 - 429 = = = - = = = = -
Teendbilsrecebebes  BAEUGRENZE 0184 %640 100813 14524 262 NI 29078 - 10305 1329 2494 23355
Deposts, prepayments andother 5%+ BREREMEL!

recelvables 188478 44213 5019 - 1365 202480 - 970 355997 1,308 - -
Cash on hand and n bank FERL AR 334 5004 - Pl 5% - - I - - - -
Trade and bils payables BRI RENTR (10,039 (22971) - (1904 (14801) (24 - - - - -
Aecuedepensesandother BT R RE R

nayables (126,203) - - - (18,889 - - (1,005,59) - - - -
Gossexposurearsng fom ~ ERRAERERELN

recognised assets and labiifes B 6% 109343 63206 106261 145295 197,380 304850 20054 (1,004583) 459002 14537 2493 23355
Notonal amounts of overd. i hAEE

fodgnexchangecontiacts  NEANEEEE

used as economic hedges (3488 (11,729 - ([M517) (09648  @137) - - - - - -
Net exposure asig fiom BRRAEREREEN

recognised assets and labiifes B 1004855 51563 106261 103,738 07735 277479 20054 (1004583 450,032 14537 24934 23355
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHEER - MARERER)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 UHREABREERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE#E)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d EERKR@E)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) ASHERRRE)
2018
S0 B &0 AD 6B CHF PR G RWB HS OR WD RB

i
oo B ofr W B RO BB % m MBR B MR @R &6
RUBUD RVBOD RWBOID RVBOD RWBUID RVBOOD RWBUI) RVBOD RWBON RUBOD RNBUN RUBOD RMBON RUBOD
NERTTL ARMTT ARMTR ARMTT ARMTRL ARMTR ARRTRL ARMTT ARETL ARMTT ARKTL ARMTT ARRTL ARETR

Contactasses AREE 16028 - W - - - - - - - - - - -
Trade an s rceiabls SPRURENEE 06 1960 845 1809 674 1246 5701 1049 268 - 1008 87T AR 30
Deposts, pepaymertsandoher %% BREER

Tecevahles Bl 18568 47,170 - - %7 178460 5698 - - 00 e 1319 - -
Cash onhand and bk FEREREORE 80 S0 M6 11 20 - M S I - - - -
Trade and bl peyables DAEMTREAZE 29 Qe - - - - - ® -y - -
Acorued expenses and FtFR RfE 3

other payelles (14609 [238) - - - - - - - (85490 - - - -
Gosseposweaingion  EEAEERAEELH

reooyised assesand ebies  EEE B0 63704 49028 178100 220365 268083 11678 10429 27740 (83376) 428749 20086 24511 23210
Nofore amounsoforwrd~~~ BEEEESH R E

foreign exchenge contacts £higes

Used & economic hecdges (16742 (103%2) (4706 (50387 (206741)  {31967) - - - - - - - -
Net exposure asing fom ERRAERAGE

reoogised assesand ebies  ERIEE 01288 93312 432 17608 13614 2606 678 10429 27740 (@%3376) 428749 20086 24511 28200
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits that would arise if foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

usD e

Euro BT

SGD g
AUD Lo

GBP 4

CHF AR
JPY AT

MYR SRERTH
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31 UHEBREERSMIANAARE
E(#E)
@ E%RER#E
(ivy BBREDH

TRETHASENRE

HRAR AR R INE
EENZBBREMES

RE% AT Ho b P & B

KRR E - AEENT

1& 3 K 4R B 7| R &0 BB

2019 2018

Increase/ Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) in Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign taxand
exchange in retained exchange in retained
rates profits rates profits
BERE HiEME
HEEZ  RRETE NEEE  RREE
/(PR &/ EA/(TR) &/ (D)
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T NG S
10% 91,580 10% 79,270
(10)% (91,580) (10)% (79,270)
10% 5317 10% 5,223
(10)% (5,317) (10)% (6,223)
5% 4,554 5% 1,884
(5)% (4,554) (5)% (1,884)
10% 8,818 10% 10,846
(10)% (8,818) (10)% (10,846)
10% 10,575 10% 1,172
(10)% (10,575) (10% (1,172)
10% 23,585 10% 21,770
(10)% (23,585) (10% (21,770)
n/aT#ER  n/a TER 10% 993
naTER  naFER (10% (999)
nfa®ER  n/aFER 5% 443
n/aT#R  n/a TER (5% (443)
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p FE A )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHEER - MARERER)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 31 UHREABREERSMIANAARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE(#E)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) d EERRE
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (ivy BRBEDHE)
2019 2018
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/  (decrease) in Increase/  (decrease) in
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after
in foreign tax and in foreign taxand
exchange in retained exchange in retained
rates profits rates profits
BERE BRAE

HEEX  RREAE SNEEX  REREME
i/ (PR &/ (B LA/ (FR) &/ (id)

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT

CAD i 10% 2470 10% 2,358
(10)% (2,470) (10)% (2.358)

RMB ARE 10% (100,458) 10% (93,338)
(10)% 100,458 (10)% 93,338

HK$ BT 10% 40,682 10% 38,098
(10)% (40,682) (10)% (38,098)

QAR BB 10% 1,255 10% 1,727
(10)% (1,255) (10)% (1,727)

VND i) 10% 2,119 10% 2,083
(10)% (2,119) (10)% (2,083)

RUB Ef 20% 3,970 20% 3,956
(20)% (3,970) (20)% (3.956)
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit/loss after tax and retained profits
measured in their respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
sensitivity analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(e)  Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.
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S pr ST EL AT )

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(e)  Fair value measurement (continueq)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (continueq)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Recurring fair value
measurements:

Assets

Derivative financial instruments:

— Forward foreign exchange
contracts

Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments:

— Forward foreign exchange
contracts

PTESmT A :
—IRHEPINEBR LY

&f
ITEEmITA :
—RHPMNER K

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there

were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,

or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s

policy is to recognise transfers between levels of

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting

period in which they occur.

YUANDA CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2019

31

BHEEAREEREMTIANDIAE
B &)

€ 2RAEEEGRE

() BRAREBESENEHE
EREEE

R EEER (E)
Fair value measurements

categorised into Level 2

DEREBNAABETE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead)

(e)  Fair value measurement (continueq)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continueq)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts in Level 2 is determined by discounting
the contractual forward price and deducting the
current forward rate. The discount rate used is
derived from the PRC government yield curve
as at the end of the reporting period plus an
adequate constant credit spread.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBHIEHAIN - UARKERER)
32 COMMITMENTS 32 &I

(@) Capital commitments (@)

At 31 December 2019, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements were as follows:

Commitments in respect of buildings, FAIETF « #eS KR A #IE
machinery and equipment
— Contracted for — B4

BAREYE

H2019%12831H » REHE
TEMAR P I AR BME 2 AEE K

BEEAAFENT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®TR ARET T

1,730 7,104

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has not
committed to enter into any lease contract that is not
yet commenced.

(o) At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease (o)

payments under non-cancellable operating leases were
payable as follows:

Within 1 year —FK
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

32 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were
payable as follows: (continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
plant, buildings, motor vehicles and other equipment
held under leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17. The Group has initially
applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach. Under this approach, the Group adjusted
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (see Note 2(c)).
From 1 January 2019 onwards, future lease payments
are recognised as lease liabilities in the statement of
financial position in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 2(j).

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

Guarantees issued

At 31 December 2019, the Group has issued the
following guarantees:

BEAREIER -
RE SRR

Guarantees for construction
contracts’ bidding, performance
and retentions

As of the end of the reporting period, the directors of
the Company do not consider it probable that a claim
in excess of the provision for warranties provided by
the Group will be made against the Group under any of
the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group as
of the end of the reporting period under the guarantees
issued is the amount disclosed above.
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(@) BEELER

B# &
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B TAIER
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
1,901,761 2,054,923
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims

U

In December 2009, Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India, both wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group, jointly received a notice that they
are being sued by a former sub-contractor in
India in respect of Shenyang Yuanda’s and
Yuanda India’s non-performance of the terms
as stipulated in the sub-contract agreement
entered into between Shenyang Yuanda and
this former sub-contractor. Shenyang Yuanda
has made a counterclaim against this sub-
contractor for non-performance of the sub-
contract agreement. On 30 September 2016, a
first instance court judgement has been rendered
in favour of Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India
and pursuant to which the former sub-contractor
shall pay to Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda
India damages in the amount of INR81.8 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB8.0 million) plus
accrued interest.

The former sub-contractor and Shenyang Yuanda
and Yuanda India later on filed appeals and as
at the date of these financial statements, the
lawsuit is under reviewed before the Hon’ble
High Court of Delhi. If Shenyang Yuanda and
Yuanda India are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately INR1,410.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB138.0 million) plus accrued
interest. Shenyang Yuanda and Yuanda India
deny any liability in respect of the appeal filed
by the former sub-contractor and, based on
legal advice, the directors of the Company do
not believe it is probable that the court will find
against Shenyang Yuanda and/or Yuanda India.
No provision has therefore been made in respect
of this claim.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims (continuea)

(i) In addition to the lawsuits mentioned in Notes
33(b)(i), certain subsidiaries of the Group
are named defendants on other lawsuits or
arbitrations in respect of construction work carried
out by them. As at the date of these financial
statements, these lawsuits and arbitrations are
under reviewed before courts or arbitrators. If
these subsidiaries are found to be liable, the total
expected monetary compensation may amount
to approximately RMB207.0 million, of which
RMB18.5 million has already been provided for
and the Group’s bank deposits of RMB39.8
million at 31 December 2019 was frozen by
courts for certain of these lawsuits. Based on
legal advices, the directors of the Company
do not believe it is probable that the courts or
arbitrators will find against these subsidiaries of
the Group on these lawsuits and arbitrations.

Contingent compensation payable

In July 2016, it was reported that certain construction
materials supplied by the Group was found to contain
asbestos in two construction projects in Australia.
The Group is cooperating with relevant authorities on
investigation into the reason for the reported cases. As
at the date of these financial statements, asbestos was
not found in other projects constructed by the Group
and there was no related legal action against the Group
in Australia. As the investigation is yet to be completed
and claims against the Group from contractors have
not been quantified, the directors of the Company
cannot reliably estimate the repair cost and potential
compensation for projects found with asbestos. No
provision in this regard has therefore been made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)
Y 7% 3% B3 & ()

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEERAIN  RARBREL)
34 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 34 RAEENMBERREER

POSITION
2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR%T T AREFIT
(Note)
(H1a)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHB R R RE 2,189,122 2,050,058
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other T 30N EL At U R
receivables 327 805
Cash on hand and in bank FEER G MIRITIER 2,330 1,948
2,657 2,753
Current liabilities REAE
Accrued expenses and other FEET R R EAb FEAT R
payables 1,126,634 1,106,920
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (1,123,977) (1,104,167)
NET ASSETS REE 1,065,145 945,891
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#E
Share capital &z 519,723 519,723
Reserves it 545,422 426,168
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,065,145 945,891
Note: The Company has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 MiaF - AEER201951 A1 B RALE
using the modified retrospective approach. There has been no STIE WA B K FE A B PR B 7 3 s
impact on the Company’s statement of financial position. HRIZE165% o B R AM KRR

REEATE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed in
Note 2(c).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia outbreak (the “NCP
Outbreak”) since early 2020 has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment and may
impact the Group’s operations and financial position.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact from
the NCP Outbreak on the Group’s businesses and has
commenced to put in place various contingency measures.
The directors of the Company confirm that these contingency
measures include but not limited to, assessing the readiness
of the production units and revisiting the progress of curtain
wall systems projects, reassessing the adequacy and
suitability of the Group’s existing suppliers inventory of raw
materials, the expanding of the Group’s supplier base in
a view to negotiating with customers on possible delay in
delivery timetables, increase monitoring of the business
environment of the Group’s customers, and improving the
Group’s cash management by expediting debtor settlements
and negotiating with suppliers on payment extensions. The
Group will keep the contingency measures under review as
the NCP Outbreak situation evolves.

35

36
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36

37

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continuea)

As far as the Group’s businesses are concerned, the NCP
Outbreak may cause production and delivery delays on
curtain wall systems construction, but the directors of the
Company consider that such impact could be reduced by the
Group’s expedition of the production/construction process
when the situation resume to normal. In addition, the NCP
Outbreak may also significantly impact the repayment abilities
of the Group’s debtors and the willingness of the main
contractor to promote construction, which in turn may result
in additional impairment losses on trade receivables and/
or contract assets in future periods. These possible impacts
have not been reflected in 2019, and the actual impact may
differ from estimates adopted now as the NCP Outbreak
situation continues to evolve and when further information
may become available.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2019

Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of a business

BIFR s S ERIEI 2 (B5] - FHBEE
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, Definition of material
Re BB VR RESR 2B  EEMTEE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31
December 2019 to be Best Outlook Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

RS TEL IR )
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Five Year Financial Summary

I FEHERE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(B RERHEIMN - UARK AELRL)

Results
Revenue

Profit/(loss) from operations

Finances costs

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Income tax
Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities
Non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to

equity shareholders of the

Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

ES

EXHE
gETE/ (81
BaIAE,/ (&)
e
FRNE/ (B1)
AT AL
UNGIL 5

IR AtELS
FERNE,/ (B8

BERRE
FRBEE

nEE
mERT

mEEEFE
BEERRBRE

i

Ik

FRBBE

REE

BXRiRE

[rEN

3
RAARBRREE RS

Gk

SEEB S

£

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20155
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETL
4,041,253 4615704 5688650 7,324,415 8,594,364
338,541 222929 291,073 173,640 (168,395)
(142,523) (68,767) (232,801) (86,446) 1,107
196,018 154,162 58,272 87,194 (167,288)
(106,198) (65,991) 27 457 (10,577) (443)
89,820 88,171 85,729 76,617 (167,731)
89,820 79,119 60,652 87,039 (192,257)

= 9,052 25,077 (10,422) 24,526

89,820 88,171 85,729 76,617 (167,731)
1,134,011 1355031 1,672,104 1,716,027 1,728,283
8,399,134 8,706,332 0,809,008 11,463,726 12,610,538
6,624,937  7,048236 7,300,206 9,936,815 10,817,304
1,774,197 1,658,096 2,508,802 1,526,911 1,793,234
2,908,208 3,013,127 4,180,906 3,242,938 3,521,517
176,513 305,000 982,640 235,285 478,458
2,731,695 2,708,127  3,198266 3,007,653 3,043,059
519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723 519,723
2,211,972  2,188404 2,817,332 2,633,717 2,658,041
2,731,695 2,708,127 3,337,055 3,153,440 3,177,764
= = (138,789) (145,787) (134,705)
2,731,695 2,708,127  3,198266 3,007,653 3,043,059
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